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HARIN COUNTY, KY¥: Attracted thousands of cutsiders to
its mines in the 1920s and 30s. Very cosmo. pop. Pop.
peaked at 75,275 in 1940. By 1990 it had dropped to
36,574. Lost 12.7% of its pop. in the 1980s, the highes
(then) of any Ky. co. Coal slump, partly due to "bad"
market and partly to the use of machines replacing
workers. "Improved technology." Mine closings in the
1980s leaving a high unemployment rate with few alter-
native job opps. Co. hurt by over-dependence on coal.
Alternative means of employment actively scught. The H.
Co. Ind'l. Dev't. Auth. org. 8/1991 to seek outside co'
(IHL 3/8/92, Pp. Al,AlQ); also seeking to"diversify
its employment base." One prob. is the large amt. of cc
land cwned by outsiders. Distance from interstates also
hindered ind. dev. Little level land exc. in stream




valleys. (ICJ, 3/18/1990, Pp. Bl, Bd); H. Co. was the
60th org. in Ky. 468 sg. mi. Taken from Knox Co. The
co. is crossed by 4 mt ranges (Pine, Black, Little
Black, &-Stone). Jos. & Brice Martin were among the
earliest visitors to co. lst settlement in 1782 by
the Catrons, killed by Indians. Mot till the 1790s
were the lst settlements made, by Carr Bailey, Wm.
Turner, Sam'l. Howard, etc. Subsistence ag. & commer-
cial livestock prod‘n. were econ. mainstays till the
dev't. of timberland & coal in early 20 cent. The rr
into co. 1911 "spurred dev. of coal ind.’ peaked
in late 1920s. Pop. (1980)=ca. 42,000. Decline. Peak-
ed again in WWII. Dev. of tourist attractions sought



actively to enhance co's. econ. Several state parks
with rec. opps. Poke Salad Fest. & Kingdom Come Swap-
ping Meet. Pop. (1990)=36,574 (declined from 65,557 in
1930. (Jas. S. Greene III in KY ENCY, 1992, Pp. 408-9)



Following the commitment of the Wasioto & Black ME. RR
(later acq. by the L&N) to bulld lines up the Cumberland
R. into Harlan Co. & up its 3 head forks, several coal
companies were org. and dev'd. their operations in these
valleys. The first was Terry's Fk. Coal Co that, by 191f
became the Wallins Ck Coal Co., 1 mi from Wallins Sta.
{(W.R. Peck's paper presented to the annual mtg. of the Ky
Mining Inst., Pineville, Ky. 5/14/1915, P. 11); The Rex
Coal Co. began its op'n. 1913 at Kitts. Dr. P.E. Bennett
was its pres, C.V. Bennett was its veep & g.m., H.H.
Bennett was sec—treas, Succeeded Lynn Hol. Coal Co. whict
it leased in 1912. (W.C. Stump "“Chevrolet, Ky in Harlar
Mt. Roots, Vol. 6 (3), Spr. 1992, P. 100);.



I/HARIAN CC., K¥: Acc. to Long, Pp. 205-12, the co. was
created from Knox Co. 4/1/1819 resulting in 710 sg. mi
It gained 50 sg. mi from Knox Co. on 2/4/20 resulting
in 760 sg. mi. It lost 40 sq. mi to Knox Co. 12/2/20
resulting in 720 sg. mi. ILost 40 sg. mi to Knox Co.
on 1/27/38 resulting in 680 sg. mi. Gained 30 sq. mi.
from Perry Co. 1/28/41 resulting in 710 sq. mi. Lost
30 sq. mi to/ the creation of Letcher Co. 4/1/42 re-
sulting in 670 sg. mi. Gained 20 sg. mi from Clay Co.
1/9/52 resulting in 690 sg. mi. Negligible losses &
gaines to Knox & Ietcher Cos. 1856, 1864, 1865. lost
210 sqg. mi to/ creation of Josh Bell Co. 8/1/67 re-
sulting in 480 sqg. mi. Present boundary was fixed by
3/22/1873;




HARIAN COUNTY, K¥: Stephen Farmer in 1797 moved from
Clinch R, in the present Hancock Co, Tenn, to Harlan
Co., settling on Martin's Fk, 5 mi from the future
Harlan Town. A son, James Farmer, a’ surveyor, was ne
1800 and rep. the co. in the Ky. G.A, Wicks Howard was
the 1st child born in what became H. Co. (Felix Gilbert
Farmer, Stephen's grandson, of Manch, Ky., interv. by
Dickey 5/5/1898. (aAcc. to KY. EXPL. Vol. 13 (2), 6/98,
Pp. 76-77) ;




V HARLAN COUNTY, K¥: The co. was Ky's leading coal
producer in the early 1930s. L8N spurs went up Pucketts
Ck, Pocor and Clover Fks, Martin Fk, Yocum & Catrons Ckg
to ship coal. (A.B. Gloster, 1934, in KY EXPL. Vol. 8
(8), 2/1994, Pp. 50-1); Co. has Ky's. most rugged terr.
The only level land is in the narrow stream bottoms.
All settlements therein. The n sect. of co. is crossed
by Pine Mt. from sw to ne. Penetrated by several gaps.
Paralleled on the s border of H. Co. by Cum. Mt. The
co. 1s drained by the Cum. R & its 3 head fks.and theirx
many branches. (McGrain & Currens TOPO. Pp. 35-7);




v HARIAN COUNTY, KY: The lst white family to settle her
was Sam'l. & Chloe (nee Osborne) Howard in 1796. Sam'l
(1762-1840) was ne Buckifiham Co, Va.and is bur. in the
Gross Cem. at Wilhoit (later removed to the Wix Howard
Cem). Wilkerson (Wix) Howard was the 1st child born i
the co. in 1798. He was Sam'l. & Chloe's 1st child.
(Israel J. Howard of Manchester, Ky. in KY EXPL. Vol.
15 (5), 10/2000, Pp. 94-95); The co's.n.bound. is Pine

7 Mt. that separates it from Leslie, Letcher, & Perry Co

In its ne sect. it's dominated by Big Black Mts. with

Ky's highest ele. Several streams heading in the n pt.

of the co. are part of the Ky. R. system: Wolf, Greasy

¥k, & Buck Fk (?). H. Co. was also taken from Floyd:




The King Harlan {coal) Co., a subsidiary of the Detymt’
Edison Co. while the Black Mt. Corp. was a subsidiary
of the Public Utilities (sic). (Elmon Middleton's

H. Co. Hist., 1934, P. 49); The Wallins Ck. Collieries
Co's mines there were the lIst in the co. opened for
shipment 8/1911. The 2nd mines est. in H. Co. were on
Ewings Ck, also in 1911, by the White Star Coal Co. for
rail shipment on the newly arr. L&N. (Ibid,, P. 48);
Fordson was gone by the early 1930s. (Ibid.):;

Over 25 coal camps were opened in H. Co. betw. 1212 &
1928. (Wm. D. Forester Before We Forget (H. Co. 1920

thru 1930), 1983, P. 5):

~
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HARIAN CO., KY: Earliest surveyor-visitors to Harlan Co

were a party incl. Wallins, Catron, Thranks, Tr ace, et

They came along a trail from Rose Hill,Va. thrd McLin
Notch on the lLee Co. line. Trace Gap thru the Cumb. Mt.
(Condon, P. 48); The co's. lst families incl. the
Howards, Turners, and Middletons. Then the Hensleys,
Smiths, Cawoods, Kelly; Sargents, Cornetts, Creeches,
Joneses, Wynns, Saylors, etc. (before 1850). (Elmon
Middleton, Harlan Co., Ky. pub. by Jas. Taylor Adams o
Big Laurel, Va., 1934, P. 15);




/HARI_AN COUNTY, K¥: Pion. fam's. incl: Iedford, Smith,
Brock, Middleton, Cornett, Jones, Cawocd, Shackelford,
Creech; the 1st H. Co. settlers: Sam'l. Howard, Abner &
John Lewis, John Dickson, Lee, Creech. Living on Poor
Fk. were families of Lewis, Dickson, Gilliam, Creech,

& Coldiron. Then came the Polleys, Days, & Halls; Pion
families incl. Jesse Brock on Wallins Ck; Berry Caywood
(sic) a Rev. War vet. settled early in H. Co; Wn.
Turner, another H. Co. pion. (who died at age of 104)
lived 8 mi up Clover Fk of Mt. P. (Acc. to Wood Lyttle,
Manch, Ky. to Dickey 4/12-3/1898 in KY EXPL. Vol. 12 {8
2/1998, Pp. 90-2);




/ HRRIAN COUNTY, KY¥: 468 sg. mi. "Est. in 1819 from pts.
of Floyd and Knox Co's., this co. was named for Maj.
Silas Harlan {1752-1782), pion. Salt R. settler, who
served with Geo. Rogers Clark in his Ill. campaign and
fell at the Battle of Blue Licks." (Book-P. 131);

467 sqg. mi & 2000 pop. of 33,202. (1990 pop.=36,574);
The co's. 1910 Census counted 10, 556 and in 1920 there
were 31,546 residents. (Caudill, POWER, 1983, P. 85);

1 The co's. pop. was ca. 80,000 (ca. 1926) (Elmon Middle-
ton, 1934, P. 49);




RATIROADS (Harlan Co., Ky): In 1915 the Wasioto & Black
Mt. became the L&N's Ky. & Va. RR. {Herr, L&N, Pp. 202-
03); The Martins Fk branch of the Cumb. Val. Div. was
called the C.C. & O. Connection (Carolina Clinchfield &
Ohio Ry) to provide a direct link betw. Harlan Town &
the C.V. Div's. main line at Hagans, Va. The spur's
"construction followed the joint leasing by the L&N and
Atlantic Coastline of the CC&0 on May 1, 1923." It
‘provided a link betw. the 2 rr's." Then a 13.6 mi link
was built betw. Chevrolet (6 mi from Harlan) and Hagans
betw. 1927 & 12/1/30. (Ibid., P. 204);



RATIROADS (Harlan Co., Ky): The Pucketts Ck. Branch
betw. Blackmont & Wilfred (8 mi.) was completed by the
Black Mt. RR in 8/1919. Acg. by the L&N in 1923. And
the Clover Fk. Extension betw. Closplint & Glenbrook
(11 mi) whose service began in 1946. (Herr, L&N, P.204,
Some of the branches were built with L&N aide by coal
co's. who then leased them for operation. These incl.
the Catrons Ck. Branch, Slater's Ck. Branch, Lick Ck.
Spur, Four Mile Branch, etc. (Ibid., Pp. 205-06);

-



AGES (Harlan Co., Ky): Acc. to 1895-6 Gaz, this place wa
4 mi from Harlan. Martin Sargent (sic) was pm & gen'l.
storekeeper; Now: the Ages Bap. Chu. The Ages Commmu.
Reunicn on ILabor Day weekend. (Ora Mae Morgan in KY.EXPL
Vol. 17 {(4), 9/02, Pp. 88-0. Her address: PO Box 311,
. Baxter, Ky. 40806); Ages was 5 rail mi from Harlan. The
18N line reached it on 5/21/1912 (Herr, L&N, Pp. 203-4);
Ages Creek is 4 3/4 mi up Clover Fk. Coal on Lloyd Ball'
land (Hodge, 1912, P. 40); No Ages listing in 1880 Cens;



/AGES (Harlan Co., Ky): In Jan. 1913 Dezie Turner pet.
for a move 300 yds to a pt 40 ft from the Black Mt. &
Wasioto RR (sic) tracks. (Stat J.on"Ag , Smi e of
Harlan po, Zrm.eofCoxtonpo, 3 mi w of Evarts po, 20(
yds from Clover Fk, 1/8 mi from Ages Ck// Acc. to
Dezzier Turner (sic) 4/24/1914, the po was 120 ft on the
rr side of Clover Fk, 100 yds e of Ages Ck, 120 ft n of
the rr, 3% mi w of Evarts po// On 7/30/18, Wm. M. Howarc
pet. for a move 150 ft n to a pt 300 ft n of Clover Fk,
175 ft e of Ages Ck, 150 £t n of L&N, (sta=Ages), 1 mi ¢
of Coxton po, 1% mi w of Verda po, 4 mi s of Rosspoint
po. Eff. now (moved from store to sta. agent & merchant
Geo. O. Whisman's place of business// Acc. to Ruth
Saylor, 7/24/39, it was 5 ft e of Clover Fk. Highway



from Harlan, 100 yds e of Clover Fk R, 600 ft s of
Brookside po, 1 mi w of Verda po. (SIR); Acc. to J.H.
McKinley, 4/26/1930, the Brookside po wasl50 ft n of
Clover Tk, 200 yds e of Laurel Ck, 72 ft n of 1&N, 3/8
mi w of Ages po, 7/8 mi e of Coxton po, 5 1/8 mi e of .
Harlan po// Acc. to Ibid., 7/24/39, the po was on the
s side of Ky 68, ca. 1000 ft rw of Ages (rr) Sta, 75 £
n of L&N, "200 ft n of Clover Fk, ca. 1000 ft rw of Age:
po, ca. 1 mi e of Coxton po. (SIR);
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AGES (Harlan Co..ﬁgﬁ.): The only businesses
here are John Deaton's grocery and a used
clothing storé next to'it. On Ky 38. Resi-
dents of this and other communities along
"the fork" (i.e. Clover Fork) have been de-
pendent on coal mining. The fork "is the
shallow, littered stream that runs through
the settlements...and joins..the Cum, R.
John, above, is called "Junior Deaton". His
is the community's gathering place.(....)
(Irene Nolan, "The Country Store" LCJ&T,
1/26/1975, Pp. G1,8) (GeVe)esss '



/ AGES (Harlan Co.): "The Ages Ridge Goal Co. was
organized by J.D. Wheeler in 1914, The propert;
was leased from C.E. Ball and John D. Lewis., Ar
Indiana industrialist decided to promote anoth-
er operation on the north end of the lease
known as Draper. In- 1926 the Ages and Draper
mines were cut together." (sic% (Mabel Collins,
"Town Names Given by Railroads, Companies,
Settlers" unid, & undated Harlan newsp. clip.);
po est. 6/8/1892, Loyd Ball...Disc. 6/19/96 (m
to Harlan); Re-est. 12/10/1912, Dezzie Turner.
/ (NA); Named for Ages Creek. (B.W. Whitfield,
Brookside, Ky. in a letter to me, 5/11/1979);

Dicc. (94



/AGES-BROOKSIDE (Ha¥lan Co,)# Until Dec. 1975,
these were two separate 4th class post offices
but were combined into one with the above name
undér new pm, Rufus Hendrix. The orig. po's
were only 200 yards apart. Brookside's po
served merely the Eastover Mining Co. and was
in a room in the co. office. No -Brookside comn
as such; it was simply'the coal co. offices;
many of the miners lived in Ages, pop. ¢.800.
Each contended for the site of the new p.o.
The co. office ig 6 mi. up Clover Fk. from
Harlan....("Neither Rain nor Snow.nor Locks.:.
by Bryar)l Woolley, ICJ, 1/11/19?6 P Al:l-5,
A20:1-3




/ AGES and BROOKSIDE (Harlan Co., Ky): "Two almost conti-
guous coal towns are now served by a single p.c. on Ky
38 and Clover Fk. of the Cumb. R., 3% (air) mi e of
Harlan. In Feb. 1975 the separate 4th class po's. of
Ages and Brookside, only 1200 ft apart (the closest in
the US) were combined into one called Ages-Brockside,
located in the Eastover Mining Co. offices at Brookside
The Ages po had been est. on 6/8/1892, with ILoyd Ball,
pm, and named for Ages Ck which joins Clover Fk at this
pt. (The ck. is said to have been named for a Mr. Ages
In 1917 Harlan Collieries was est. at what came to be
called Brockside, given the name by Amme Keyes Whitfiel
in 1918 for its location betw. 2 brocks. To serve the c
more directly, the Brookside po was est. on 3/24/1930."
(Book-P. 2};




¥ BROOKSIDE and AGES (Harlan Co.): At one time
the 2 post offices were the closest in the US
1200 ft. apart. Now they are combined. Ages
was named for Ages Creek. The creek was named
for a man named Ages., The vil, is an old one
The Ages Ridge Coal Co. was not the forerunne:
of Harlan Collieries.. Harlan Col. est, 1917.
Eastover Mining Co. (an affiliate of Duke
Power) purchased the Harlan Collieries Co. in
1970. Brookside was named by Anme Keyes Whit-
field. J.D. Wheeler developed (1913) the Ages
Ridge Coal Co., later East Harlan Coal Co.
adjoining Ages on the east., These are/were 2
Separate commu's. The po is now located at
Brookside. As is Eastover Mining Co. Ages is
Still A amall win f[ﬂ.lﬂ' Whadt &5 Jetien, (128 /B0



v BROOKSIDE (Harlan Co., Ky): ca. 1979-B.W. Whitfield, Jx
as pres. of Harlan Collieries Co., Inc., miners & shipper
f Brookside Harlan Coal in Brookside, Ky; Tin Can Alley
as a resi. sect. of B. (ca. 1920s); The Eastover Mining
0. was org. in 1970 by Norman Yarborough who was its lst
res. till 1983 when the co. was sold. (doesn't say to
hom) , (Lex. Her-Iead, 3/10/1991, P. C5, his obit.); Bryan
. Augustus Foscoe Whitfield, bros., from Ala in 1911 in-
ested in the Clover Fk. Coal Co. at Kitts and in Harlan
ollieries at Brookside. Built homes, stores, & tipples
here and employed labor. In 1919 A.F. remained with Kitts
nd Bryan took over Brookside. (Caudill, Theirs Be the
ower, U. of Ill. Press, 1983, P. 111):




f
BHOOK&IDE (Harlan Co,): The mine there is
o¥ned by Eastover Mining Co., owned by the
Duke Power Co. of Charlotte, N.C. to supply
it with cogl, ne of the country's largest
coal burners. Eastover also owﬁﬁ% the mine
at Highsplint.Gldver Fork is a shallow stream
heading on Black Mt. _Thirteen mi. up the
fork from Harlan to Highsplint are a no. of
commu's, whose residents have been dgpendent
on coal for over 50 yrs. ‘Once busy towns,
most have been dylng u&mﬂ%qfﬁe mines’ worked
out., The remaining mines depend less on
human labor than on machines, But the commu's



*

still have their "roadside stores..{(retain
their names and .-some their post offices,”
300 families once livedpt_Brookside. Many
of the company-owned frame dwellings were
torn down during %he 1974 strike., Many
families moved to better homes in Ages, ¥m
Verda, Draper, Evarts...(Bryan Wolley, WE
EE HERE WHEN THE MORNING COMES, U, Press o:
Ky. 1974, Pp. xiv, -5).



BROOKSIDE (Harlan Co.): Scene of violent strik
1973-L to force recognition by Eastover Minin
vCo. of a UMWA local there. po est. 3/24/1930,
John H. McKlnley...(NA) Named Tor its loca-
tion (er~-$vwe-sides- e£—eree@>between two creeks
or brooks, 1918 when coal commu. was est. Acc
to B.W. Whitfield who operated the Harlan
Colfiieries here for 50 years. (Letter to me,

/11/1979), Harlan_ Collieries opened its min
in 1919,



/'I’he Eastover Mining Co., an affiliate of Duke Power Co.
of Charlotte, N.C., purchased the Harlan Collieries Co.
in 1970. Offices at Brookside. ca. 1977, Bryan wWhitfield
Jr. was Pres. of Harlan Collieries, Inc. which mined and
shipped Brookside Harlan Coal from B., Ky. (B.W. Whit-
field, Jr., letter to me, 6/28/1980);



% B.W. Whitfield, Sr. & his bro. A.F. cpened a mine at
Arjay in 1908. The left Fk. Coal Co. They bought the
Kitts site in 1911 and built its tipple before the arr.
of the rr. Then they were commuting from Cumb. Gap. By
the time they moved to Kitts in 1913 it was already a
thriving ccal town. In 1923 B.W. Jr. became g.m. of
Harlan Collieries Coal Co. at Brookside. It later became
the county's 1st mechanized loading op'n. In 1970 this
company- and Highsplint were sold to Duke Power Co. In
the surmer of 1982 Duke sold it to Duane Bennett. The
High Splint mine is now operated as Manalapan Coal Co.
(or Manalapan Mining:Co.). Actually Bennett, in 8/1983,
purchased the Eastover Mining Co. whose offices remaineé
at Brookside. "Member of Pioneer Operator Family Recalls
Early Days" by Ed Gibson, Harlan Heritage's edition of
the Harlan Daily Enterrpise, 2/28/64,Pp. 8-9, 11);




/ BROOKSIDE and the AGES-BROOKSIDE P.O. (Harlan Co, Ky):
Acc. to L&N's 1921 timetables, Brookside was 5 rail mi
from Harlan and less than a mile from Ages Sta. (Thus
there were 2 separate stations); The combined po was
est. 1975 and is APO. By 1/1/1996 it was on Ky 38;




VBROOKSIDE (Harlan Co.): Mrs. Amme Keys Whit-

v

field named Brookside after a brook. (Mabel
Collina, "Town Names Given by Railroads,
Companies, Settlers" unid. & undated Harlan
newsp. clipping); I&N RR reached Ases from
Harlan, 5 mi. away, on 5/21/1912. Kincaid A.
Herr, L&N RR, 1964, P. 203); Ages=home of the
Harlan Collieries Co., Inc. on the 1L&N. Co.
town for miners with company offices, commis-
sary, etc. B.W. Whitfield=pres. of the compar
es e ("Model Plant of Harlan Collieries Co.,
Inc." LOU. HERALD,. 3/21/1923);
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VALVA (Harlan Co.): po est. 10/11/1922, Jesse
L. anes...(N%);'Black Star Coal Co. deVelop-
ed mine here in -the early-1920s. (B.W. Whit-
field; Jr. of Brookside, Ky. in a letter to
me, 5/11/1979); Black Star Hi.Sch. was hexe; Acc.

to the L&N's 1960- timetable, the Alva Sta. on the
Pucketts Ck. Br. line was 8 mi from Blackmont and.5 mi

gabove Fee Sta;




VAIVA (Harlan Co., Ky): Acc. to Teddy D. Hail, 4/22/1922
this prop. po would be 8 mi se of the Cumb. R, 135 ft n
of Puckett Ck, 100 £t n of the Black Mt. RR (Sta=Alva),
6 mi from co. line, 4 mi n of Pathfork po, 6 mi w of
Liggett po. The po would be nr the center of the vil. o
Alva with a pop. of 300 which was expected to increase/.
Acc. to Henry H. Snodgrass, 7/1939, po was 50 ft se of
the Alva (rr) Sta, 30 £t from L&N, 150 ft n of Pucketts
Ck, 8 mi e of Cumb. R, 3% mi se of Pathfork po, 4 3/4 m
se of Imsull po, 5 mi w of Sampson po, 8 mi sw of
Martins Fk. po. (SIR);



/AVONDALE (Harlan Co., Ky): Acc. to Wm. Lee, 5/29/1897,
this prop. po would be 1 mi (?) from Brownies Ck, 7 mi «
of Rose Hill po (Va.), 10 mi e of Cubbage po (sic). Not
a vil// On 2/11/1904, Enos S. Howard pet. for a move %
mi e (?) to a pt ¥ mi n of Martins Fk (stream), 4 mi ne.
of Rose Hill po, 6 mi w of Hurst po// Acc. to Ibid.,
6/1912, po was % mi w of Martins Fk, 4% mi rmw of Cumb.
Val. (L&N) RR, 4% mi nw of Rose Hill po & sta, 9 mi ne
of Cubbage po, 9 mi sw of Smith po. (SIR);
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VAVONDALE (Harlan Co., Ky): po est. 9/14/1897, V. ILee,
3/24/03, David lee, 2/17/05, Enos J. Howard, Disc. eff.
10/31/1907 (mail to Rose Hill, Va.); Ré-est. 8/10/1912,
Ibid., Disc. 4/30/1913 {(mail to Ros€ Hill) (PCR-MA);
P3G has it ending in 1918. Which?...;



/BATILEY CREEK (Harlan Co., Ky): po est. as Smithville:
Acc. to Wright Kelly, 8/9/1872, this re-est. po would
be on the n side of Clover Fk, 6 mi sw of Leonard po,

+ 12 mi #g of Harlan Ct. Hse po. (SIR); this po was re-
'est. as Bailey. Acc. to John B. Kelly, 8/21/1880 the
prop. name for it would be Clover Gap (?)}, and it would

') be on the s side of Clover Fk R, on e side of Cocper Br
6 mi w of Leonard po, 12meofHar1anpo, Bmis of
Pine Mt. po. [Wm. R. Bailey was then pm at Leonard)//
Acc. to A.J. Relly (?), 1/1897, the po was on the n sid
of Clover Fk, 3% (?) mi e of Evarts po, 6% mi w of
Leonard po. (SIR);




v'BATLEY CREEK (Harlan Co.): This is what the
commu. is now called. Was never called Smith-
ville. Fred Smith operated a small mine opp.
Baglexs Creek in 1922-3. (B.W., Whitfield, Jr.
in a letter to me, 6/28/1980), Acc. to 1883-4 Caz
the Bailey po served a rural pop., 12 mi e of Harlan.
9 Kelly Wright had a gen..store. Two flour mills (1) J.
Creech, (2) E. Wyman; Acc. to 1895-6 Gaz, po/com. were
12 mi e of Harlan, pop. 150. A.Z. Kelly was pm_& gen'l.
storekeeper. Isaac Creech Bad a flour mill. Thns J.
Creech was a lumber mfx, H.C. Bailey had a furn. ‘store.
Other businesses; Acc. to 1876-7 Gaz, Bazly s Ck was a
amall rural po, aka Clover Bottom, serving wvil. of 100.
On Clover Fk. Settled 1812. B8 mi from ct.hse. Jos. S.
Kelly was pm. Gen.stores: (1) Allen Hensley, (2) Wm. B.
Kelly, (3) Calvin Pace;




/ BAILEY CREEK (Harla Co.)a/ﬁﬁ Baileys Creek
(sic) named for Carr Bailey, Rev. War wvet. who
was lst settleri™Sajld to have been the 1st
settler in Harlan Co% at the mouth of Bailey
Creek. (Lizzie Farmer of Harlan, Ky. contribu-
ted to WPA, 5/11/1939); "..named for the leade
of a party of men who camped 6n the banks of
this creek." (Mabel Green Condon, "A HIST. OF
HARLAN CO. Nashvilles Parthenon Pjﬁss, 1962,
7
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/P, 50); po est. as Smithville, 7/28/1857, Hug
Smith..Disc. 9/20/59; Re-est. 8/22/72, Wright
Kelly; Disec. 7/22/73; Re-est. 4/19/75, Jos. S.
Kelly; ch. to Bayly's Creek (sic), 7/1/75, Jos
S. Kelly...Disc. 5/3/1880; po est., as Bailey,
9/23/1880, John B. Kelly...Disc. eff. 9/16

1900 (papers to Evarts);




‘/BAIIEY CREEK (Harlan Co., Ky): "The hamlet with epo is
on the stream of that name, a n. bank br. of Clover Fk
of the Cumb. R., 7 (air) mi e of Harlan. The ck. is
said to have been named for Carr Bailey, a Rev. War
vet., who had settled at its mouth and was one of the
1st settlers of H. Co. The local po of Smithville,
est. on 7/28/1857, with Hugh Smith, pm, was renamed
Bayly's Creek (sic) with Jos. S. Kelly, pm, and disc.
in May 1880. It was re—est. as Bailey on 9/23/1880
with John B. Kelly, pm, and disc. in 1900." (Book-P. 1:
John Bailey (1748-50 and died in the 1830s.) ne West-
moreland Co, Va. and died in Harlan Co.. (KY ANC. Vol.
26 (1), Sum. 1990, P. 30);




BAILEY CREEK (Harlan Co., Ky): This stream was 9 mi up
Clover Fk. % mi up the creek and ¥ mi up its Left Br.
(which is one mi up the ck) is W.B. Kelly's land with a
cannel coal deposit. The’ Wright Kelly Mine, later calli
the Dixon Mine. (Jas. M. Hodge, "Rept. of the Upper
Camb. Coal Field: The Region Drained by Poor and Clover
Forks in Harlan and Letcher Co's For the Ky. Geol.Surv.'
Bull. 13, Serial No. 16, 1912, P. 61);




L/ T, Ay TN =

BARDO (Hax¥an Co., Ky): Acc. to Peter Howard Bean,
127871922 (?) this prop. po would be 50 ft e of Catrons
Ck, 7 mi se of Cunb. R, 50 yds w of L&N (the Catron Ck.
Branch) (Bardo Sta., a non-agency sta.), 6 mi from the
co. line, 1 mi ne of Liggett po, 6 mi sw of Elcomb po,
3 mi e of Kentenia po, to serve a vil. of 400//Acc. to
Kenes Bowling, 7/24/1939, po was 100 ft s of Catron Ck,
7 mi s of Harlan Sta. (rr), 60 ft n of L&N, Ymin of
liggett po. (SIR); AcCC. to LeN's 1921 timetables, the
Bardo sta. was 6 mi s of Dressen, 2 mi from Gulstcn, &
1 mi n of Liggett on the Catron's Ck. Br; (1960=same) ;



Y BARDQ (Harlan Cos): Corrupted from @elféeuxj)

. Bourdeux, the French city and port and named
by James Bowling, the superintendent of a mine
on Catron Creek,who had served in France in WW.
(Mabel Collins, "Town Names Given by Railroads
Companies, SettlérsyY wunid. & undated Harlan

, newsp. clipping); po est. 3/12/1928, Peter H.
Bean.ss (NA) H



 BARDO (Harlan Co., Ky): "This coal town with epo is on
Ry 72, at the mouth of Jones Br. of Catron Ck, 5% air m
s of Harlan. The name is said toc have been corrupted
from Bordeaux (the French city}, and was suggested by
Jas. Bowling, the superintendent of a nearby mine, who
had served in France in WW I. The po was est. on Mar.
12, 1928, with Peter H. Bean, pm." (Bock—-Pp..13-14);



BAXTER (Harlan Co., Ky): Was the term. of the project-
ed Wasioto & Black Mt. RR, 35.6 mi up the river val.
from Harbell. From here what was later acq. by the L&N
extended up 2 branches: (1) up Poor Fk. & Looney Ck.
to Benham, 24.3 mi from Baxter, (2) up Clover Fk. via
Harlan to Ages, 7.2 mi from Baxter. The rr reached

/ Baxter in Aprl. 1911. Till the line reached Harlan,

Baxter was the latter's shipping pt. (Herr, L&N, Pp.
202-3) ;



H 0
BAXTER (Harlan Co,.): Named by the RR Co., ac:

“ to Bert,Howard, a Harlan atty. (Mabel Collins,
"Town Names Given by Railroads, Companies,
Settlers" unid. & undated Harlan nhews. clip.)

v/ po est. 6/6/1890, John J. Hoskinsg...(NA);
PO was on Ky 413 (1/1/1996) ; Acc. to L&N's 1921 time- -
table, this sta. on the Ky & Va. RR was 1 mi e of
Ioyall and was at jct. of Poor Fk. Br., 3 mi below
Gatun and 22 mi below Poor Fk (Sta.), and at jct. of
Clover Fk Br., 2 mi mw of Harlan; No Baxter listings ir
the 1870 or 1880 Censuses nor in 1900 Census;



BAXTER (Harlan Co., Ky): Acc. to John J. Hoskins, 5/14/9i

prop. po would be on n side of Poor Fk, 1 mi w of Four M
Ck, 1% mi n of Harlan po, 7 mi w of Jonesburgh po, 7 3/4
mi e of Wallins Ck po// Acc. to no sign, 4/14, it was 30
yds mw of Cum. R, 3/4 mi ne of 4 Mi. Ck, 2 mi nw of
Harlan po, ca. 6 mi from co. line,4 mi ne of Wilhoit po,
3% mi s of Bledsoe po, 100 ft s of L&N (sta=Baxter)// On
4/12/29, L.R. Nolan pet. for move 700 ft ne to pt 250 ft
n of Cum. R, 75 ft s of LaN, 1% mi ne of Shonn po, 2 mi -
of Harlan po, 3% mi sw of Rosspt. po// On 9/15/36, Verna
North pet. for move 100 ft w to pt 225 £t n of Cum. R, 2
mi w of Harlan po, 2 mi e of Shonn po, 250 ft s of L&N
(Baxter Sta.)//Acc. to Ibid, 9/26/39, it was % mi sw of
US 119R, 300 ft sw of Baxter Sta. & 100 £t s of IL&N,150
ft n of Cum. R, 1 mi e of Iloyall po, 1% mi nw of Harlan
po. (SIR);



‘/BELKNAP (Harlan Co., Ky): po est. 4/28/1848 with Jas.
H. Greene, only pm, Disc. 6/2/1849 (PCR-NA); No such
fam's. listed in 1880 Census; Morris Burke Belknap,
Mass-born, had a busi. in the Cumb. Val. of Ky. His son
Wm. Burke Belknap, also Mass-born (1811-1889) helped
survey coal & ircn deposits on the r. until, in 1839, h
noved to Iouisv. where he became an iron and hardware
goods dealer, one of the so-called "Iron men" of the

1840s. (KY ENCLY. 1992, P. 67);



BENHAM/kHarlan Co.):"A man by the name of Ben-
ham was on a high hill hunting several years
ago, when he was killed by a panther. He was
found torn all to pieces and was buried on thi
hill.. The people who lived.near named the hil
Benhams Spur. ILater when the town was built i
was called Benham." (Lizzie Farmer of Harlan,
Ky. contributed this to WPA, 12/7/1938);
Founded 1910 by the Int'l. Harvester Co. ...
'(Ibid., 5/11/1939); "The Deering Harvester Co.
, purchased 3000 acres..from G.A. Eversole in
1905. Back ‘in the hills lived an old recluse o
+ maybe C.W. deserter named Bénham. Benham Spur,
o§e of the largest in the co., was named for
M. Another reports that he was killeq by a



panther." Acc. to Virgil Eversole, Sr. from
records maintained by his father. {(Mabel
Collins whom I guoted, "Town Names Given by
Railroads, Companies, Settlers" unid. & un-
dated Harlan newsp. clipping);



\/

¥
BE AM (Harlan Co6,): Coal mine commu, develo:
‘gd” by Wisconsin Steel Co., 1911. Third produc:
ing mine in the county._{B.W. Whitfield,
Brookside, Ky. in a letter to me, . 5/11/1979

. Named for'Benham Spur, .a long ridge 6ff Black

Mt. (Ibid., letter of 6/3/1979), Inc. as a

éth cl. city 3/196) in % sq. mi. An &x-coal '
camp. Later that yr. the city's trustees anné:
ed the rest of.the camp area. The wamp was esf
in the early 1920s by the Wisc. Steel Corp. t¢
mine coal for-its steel factories. In. 1960 the

Int'l. Harvester Co..-which then owned the

houses and most of -the town so0ld theéir. pro
to thelr employees and transmltted the utili-



ties, city hall, musi., audit., fire dept. #
and athletic area to the newly established
city....("Harlan County's 'Newest' Town Wil
Begin Operation with No Eonded Indebtedness'
by Palmer Wells, LEX. HERALD-LEADER, 8/13/
1961, P. 15:6-8); The Wisc. Steel Co's. plant her

v was bequn in 1910 and was almost completed with the
arrival of the rr. By 1915 the rr had reached here.
By 1915 it had become a model mining town. (Peck, P.
14) ;



‘/BENHAM (Harlan Co., Ky): "This 5th c¢l. city with po ex-—
tends e for 2 mi along Ky 160, in the narrow Looney Ck.
Val., from a pt. 20% air mi ene of H. It was founded in
1911 to house the workers of the newly dev'd. coal op'ns
of the Wisc. Steel Corp., a subsidiary-of Int'l. Harvest
er, and was named for the Benham Spur, a long ridge
bordering Looney Ck to the s. Acc. to trad., the spur
bore the name of a hunter or, perhaps, a C.W. deserter
whose body hiad been found there torn to pieces by wild
animals. po est. as Yowell in 1900 with Henry M.
Blair, pm, became Benham on 7/23/1911. The town was inc
in Mar. 1961." {Book-P. 20);

o\ B 2O



BENHAM (Harlan Co.): Jonathan Creech came
from N.C., and settled this site. Benham namec
for a pioneer settler. (Condon, P, 32); Found
ed 1910 by Wisc, Steel Corp., a2 subsidiary
of Int'l. Harvester Co. The mines opened in
1911, Yowell, not Howell, GCoal is still the

town's econ. base. (letter from pm, 5/15/80)
The old Benham Sch. is now a bed & breakfast. Nearxby

v is a cpal museum called the Ky Coal Mining-Maseum.
Museum is in the Int'l. Harv's. 3 story brick commis-
sary as a tourist attraction & to provide area jobs
after I.H.'s successor Arch Mineral Corp. laid off
much of its work force in the early 1990s. The B&B,
called The Schocolhouse Inn, is on Ky 160. (&P, 5/22/
1994) ; °



BENHAM (Harlan Co.):(Benhem-Spur}the highest
point in Ky. (4260 _feet). is on Benham Spurj;
The Benham Spur was named for 18th cent. hunter and
Indian fighter John Benham who built a cabin and grew
apple there. (Jackie Owen, "Early Settlers on the Poor
Fork of the Cumb. R." Sdlisbury, NC, 1990, Pp. 1-4);
The rr arr. here 9/1911; Acc. to 1900 Census, Henry M.
Blair (1/78) lived with parent? Eliz., a widow (12/26)
on Poor Fk. (No Yowell or Finley); wNo Finley listing
in the 1880 Census;



MmYv

BENHAM (Harlan Co.): Ine, as 6th cl. city Mar.
1961, A former coal mining camp it was est.
in the early 1920s by Wisconsin Steel Corp.
for its miners; their mine(s) supplied coal
for steel mills. Int'l, Harvester Co. owned
the houses and in:summer of 1960 sold them to
their employeesS....{(Palmer Wells, "New Harlan
County Town Starts Life With all Facilities--
and No Debt" CJ&T, 8/13/1961, P, 21); L+ oJ

S Vo thw Qo bu o g1y

/ po est. as Yowell, 5/1/1900, Henry SIRRARY
M. Blair,..1/21/08, Leander C. \srqu.m)

M K i H . . i h ’
PISRIEDYS Meche (SlceNf)o Eenhan
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v BENHAM (Harlan Co., Ry): Acc. to Henry M. Blair, 2/12/
1900, this prop. po would be called Yowell, tho' the 1s
name prop. for it was Finley, and it would be serving
that locality at the home of Henry Blair, on the n side
of Iooney Ck, 4 mi s of Poor FkK, 5 mi se of the Poor Fk
po, 8 mi s of Est po// Acc. to L.C. McKnight, 10/1907,
it was 50 yds n of Looney Ck, 4 mi e of Cutb. R, 4 mi €
of Poor Fk. po, 10 mi s of Est po, serving a vil. of
300// In Nov. 1910, Leander C. McKnight pet. for a move

7 2miwtoapt3mie of Iooney Ck, 2 3/4 mi e of Poor

" Fk po, 8 mi s of Est po, to serve a vil. not vet named
but would have a pop. of 1000 in 1911// Acc. to L.C.



McKnight, 2/9/1912, the po was now Benham and it was
2 3/4 mi e of Poor Fk, on the s side of Looney Ck, 200
yds s of L&N, 2 3/4 mi e of Poor Fk. po, 9 mi w of Arn
po (Va.), 6 mi s of Est po// Acc. to Fnily B. Ison,
7/24/39, po was on the s side of Ky 160, 350 ft s of
Looney Ck, 634 ft e of Benham Sta., 120 ft s of L&N,
25 mi e of Cunb. R, 2 mi w of Lynch po, 2% mi e of

, Cumberland po. (SIR); The city's 2000 pop. was 600;
For 30 yrs this town was wholly owned by Int'L. Harvest
er who abandoned it in 1961 to its inhabitants. (AP re-
lease, 12/10/2000); Schoolhouse Hill was named for a 2
rm. sch. ca. early 1920s. A company town. (KY EXPL. Vol
13 (5), 10/98, Pp. 90-1);




BENHAM (Harlan Co.): Inec, as 6th ecl. city
3/1961. Later that yr. added to the & sq. mi.
area the rest of the area occupied by the
camp which had been founded some 40 yrs. ago
by Wisc. Steel Corp. to house its miners. In
the summer of 1960, Int'l. Harv. which owned
these homes said it would sell them to its
employees. It did. I.H. also agreed to trans-
fer to a resident-est. city govt. the(gixg)
community's utilities & garbage collection,
eity hall, muni. auditorium, fire dept. park
with softball field & tennis courts. B'd. of
Trustees chaired by Bob King, a I.H. miner,
(LEX., HERAID, 8/13/1961, P. 15:6-8);



BENHAM (Harlan Co.): Never heard of Yowell.
Benham, Ky. has been called this at least
since 1911. Int'l. Harvestor' s&Wlscon51n
Steel Co. developed the 3rd mine in Harlan
Co. here in 1911 and produced 11,130 tons
that year. (B.W. Whitfield, Jr. in & letter
to me, 6/28/1980) The rail line from Benham to
Tynch was 3 mi (1917)(Herr, L&N, P. 204); Bcc. to 192
L&N timetables, its sta. was 24 mi on its Poor Fk. Br
from Baxter. J.W. Chadwick was agent. It was 1 mi
above Clutts Sta; B. was founded to furnish coke for
I.H.'s S. Chi. steel plant; It was founded in 1911 to

furnish coal for the furnaces of the §. Chi. steel
works:;



/BENI'I‘O (Harlan Co., Ky): po est. 9/17/1929 with James
Bennett....Disc. 1940 (POR-NA}; Acc. to Jas. Bennett,

4/23/1929, this prop. po would be 50 yds n of Clover Fk,
sexrving the vill's. of Benito and Gano (?) with a pop.

of 300 (2 coal camps), 1 mi e of Lejunior po, 1 mi w of
Ridgeway po. Also serving 2 L&N non—agency sta's. (SIR);




VBIG BIACK MOUNTAIN (Harlan Co., Ky): The highest peak i
Ky. (at 4,145), a landmark visible for scme distance’
from all directions. Said to have been named for "its
dark and gloomy appearance”". {WPA ms. on state elev.
names) ;  Pine Mt. is a 125 mi long range;



O

© BI Lan |
»BIG_LAUREL (Harlan Co.): po est. 5/25/192
Alice E. Boggs...(NA); ° Named for Big >
Laurel Creek. (B.W. Whitfield, Jr. in a

v letter to me, 5/11/1979); 'This hamlet with po
was named for its location at the mouth of Big Laurel

Ck, a br. of Greasy Ck, 9% (air) mi ne of Harlan.
The po was est. on May 25, 1925, with Alice E. Boggs,

.pm." (Book-P. 24); At the fk. of 3 rds: (1) down
Greasy Ck, (2) across the mt. to Blue Diamond, (3)
leading to Pine Mt. Cedar Chapel Sch, an ele. sch. 2
mi below B.L. Nearby was Abner's Br. Sch, 2 mi below
Cedar Br. Sch. (Frank Richardson, 111 N. County Lin
Rd, Hobart, In. 46342 in KY EXPL. Vol. 15 (5), 10/00
Pp. 85-87);




'BIG IAUREL (Harlan Co., Ky): Acc. to Alice E. Boggs, 6/7,
1924, this prop. po would serve a vil. of 100, 50 £t s of
Big Laurel Ck, 9 mi s of Poor Fk, 1 mi from co. line, 3%
mi n of Pine Mt. po, 3% mi se of Napier po, 9 mi s of
Yeaddiss po// On 5/18/35, Becky May Sexton pet. for a
move 65 ft w to pt. ca. 10 mi n of Cum. R, 15 ft n of
Greasy & Big Laurel Cks, 1% mi from co. line, 3% mi e of
Napier po, 4% mi w of Pin®Mt. po, 5 mi s of Big Rock po.
Eff. 6/1/35// Acc. to AlicCe E. Boggs, 7/39, it was 1 air
mi from Ieslie Co, 36 ft s of Big Laurel Ck, 125 ft se of
Greasy Ck, 3% mi w of Pine Mt. po, 3% mi e of Napier po/,
On 3/28/49, Alta Turner pet. for move 250 yds ne to a pt.
20 ft ne of Greasy Ck, 30 ft n of Big Laurel Ck, 5 mi e
of Napier po, 3% mi n of Pine Mt. po. (SIR);



BIG IAUREL (Harlan Co., Ky): PO was on Ky. 221, Jan.
1996; This sect. of the co. was still in Perry Co.
till 1941 (check); Was the Big Laurel stream known as

Combs Fk?



Re-est 6 [2>=|I876

/ BIG ROCK (Harlan Co., Ky): po operated intermittently
at (perhaps) several sites on Poor Fk, in the vic. of
its English Ck confl. from its est'mt. on 10/20/57 by
Sam'l. Powell. On 12/28/58 he was succeeded by John
Lewis, Jr. who was succeeded on 6/29/59 by Robert
Howard. The office closed on 7/31/1863 and was re-
est. on 6/2/65 by John Lewis, but closed again on
11/3/65. Calvin Coldiron re-opened it on 8/2/66, but
it closed yet again on 1/8/73. It may have been re-
est. sometime thereafter since an office of this name
was in op'n. till 1877. In 8/1897 Wm. D. Iewis was
running a Big Rock po (or at least trying to re-est.
it) at or just above the m. of English, 5% mi above
Baxter. It may thus have been a mile above Rosspt. &
Could \:\WLLM—DV\“‘_I 'FO\(LWV\V\QA: D[S-vt;.q f—,l?g



/

* BIG ROCK (Harlan Co., Ry): (sp. one word in PCR), 8/15/
1897, Wm. D. Lewis, Disc. 9/7/98 (papers to Harlan)
(PCR-MB) ; Acc. to Wm. D. Lewis, 8/1897, this prop. po
would be 1 mi from Poor Fk, on the s side of English

Ck, 5% mi e of Baxter po, 10 mi w of Creech po, 7 mi e
of Harlan po. Not a vil. (SIR);



v/

X g4 }3g
BIACKJOE (Harlan Co., Ky): po est. 1/19/1915, Leander
Bowling, 7/28/17, McCoy Bowling, 7/25/181, Howard F.
Dizney, 7/17/19{', Iouis C. Sienknecht, 5/19/20, Thos.
K. Watson, 5/11/22, Wm. H. Lackey, 11/27/22, Thos. R.
Phillips, 9/10/23, Geo. B. Williams, 3/12/24, Thos. K.
Watson, act. and a c. 3/29/1924, 5/14/1931, Arthur G.
Stanfill. DlSC. 1935 (POR“NA) t Acc. to Ieander Bowl-—
ing, 5/9/14, the prop. name for this new po was Ada &
it would be serving Wood (rr) Sta., 50 ft s of L&N, 90
ft n of Clover Fk, 1500 ft e of Foutze Br, 10160 ft e ¢
Kitts po, 6526 ft w of Coxton po// On 7/28/34, W.T.
Brooks pet. for move 75 ft se to pt 50 ft n of Clover F
75 ft n of L&N (sta=Blackijoe), 1 mi w of Coxton, 1% mi
of Kitts, 5 mi ne of Tway po. (SIR);



BLACK MOUNTAIN ACADEMY (Harlan-Co., KY): at
Evarts. c¢l890 funded by the Congregational
Church's Amer. Missionary Ass'n. and staffed
by Harvard-trained New England-'educgtors. e.g
M&M J.W. Jewett, Mary M. Pond, Sarah Endicott
Ober. Went thru the lst 8 grades. A teacher-
training academy. (Addie Ledford to John
Egerton for his GENERATIONS, 1983, P..82);




" BIATR (Harlan Co., Ky): Acc. to Rebecca Jane Lane, 7/28/
1941, this prop. po would be on the n side of Poor FkK,
2 mi from co. line, 2% mi n of I&N, 2% mi ne of Cunb.
{city), 3 mi sw of Partridge po, 4% mi n of Benham po.
Not a vil// On 6/10/1946, Damon Ricketts, act. pm, pet.
for amove 0.3 mi e to a pt 125 £t n of Poor Fk, 2.9 mi
from co. line, 2.8 mi e of Cumb. po, 4.3 mi w of Part-
ridge po, 5 mi from Benham (via Cumb. city). (SIR};
This po operated betw. 1941 and 1964 and was an R.B.
from 1964 to 1972; ©On US 119. Israel Blair Cem. there ..
incl: Charlie Blair (1852-1929), son of Enoch & Nancy ”
(Jenkins) Blair, Israel Blair, Sr. (1859-1923) was an—
other son. Jerusha Blair (1860-1953), etc;




BLEDSQOE {Harlan Co,): Acc. to a letter to
Delphine Haley, 6/21/1975 from Chester A.
Nolan, ex- postmaster (he¥ served from 1/30/
s 1918 to- 2/1941), it was named for the pioneer
Bledsoe family....Chester's father was A.H.
Nolan who, in 1907, became pm at Jane.(....)
(Ibid,); po est. 12/10/1900, Wm. H. Toliver, 1st pm,.
/ 1/11/1918, Chester A. Nolan....APO (POR-MA); Acc. to
P&G the po was est. in 1930; Bledsoe was lst called ¢
1 Salt Trace: (Mabel Collins); APO; PO was at jct. of Ky
221 and US 421 (1/1/1996); Acc. to 1870 Census, Jas.
Bleédsoe (42) & wife Sarah (36), both Va-born, lived
with children next to Wm. Nolen in Dist. 8 (Big Rock

po) ;



/ BLEDSOE (Harlan Co., Ky): Acc. to Jillson II, P. 1032,
Jas. C. Bledsow (sic) or Bledsoe, acq. 25 & 50 acres or,
Pine Mt. (1874, 1887) & 100 acres on Beech Fk. (1889).
Dale C. Bledsce (100 acres) on Mary Fk (1890) & 50 acre
on Reubins Ck (1890). A.L. Bledsoe (10) on Beech Fk.
(1905), Jas. M. Bledsce (10) on Lovely Br. (1905); Acc.
to 1880 Census, Jas. Bledsoe (54) & wife Sarah (46) &
children lived in Dist. #1l. They were the only Bledsoe
family in that census;No Bledsce listing in the 1860
Census;Acc. to 1900 Census, Wm. H. Toliver (1/61) &
wife Mary A. {2/61) lived in Mt. P. Dist. next to Geo.
H. Bledsoe (12/64) & wife Nancy A. (4/70);



v BLEDSOE (Harlan Co., Ky): Acc. to Wm. H. Toliver, 10/2:
1898, this prop. po would be at the head of (and e of)
Beech Fk, % mi n of Straight Ck, 6 mi mw of Baxter po,
6 mi se of Imlay po, 7% mi nw of Harlan po. Not a vil/,
Acc. to Chester A. Nolan, 5/21/14, po was 4 mi n of Cur
R, ¥ mi sw of Beech Fk, 3% mi from co. line, 4 mi n of
Baxter po, 7 mi se of Helton po, 3% mi w of Incline po
// On 12/27/17, Ibid. pet. for a move 2% mi n to a pt.
7 mi n of river, 50 ft s of Beech Fk, % mi from co.line
5% mi e of Helton po, 7 mi n of Baxter po, 6 mi w of
Incline po. Eff. 1/1/18// On 3/24/1941, Mrs. Allie Davi
pet. for amove 1 mi e to a pt 7 mi n of river, 20 ft «



of Beech Fk, 2 mi from co. line, 4 mi s of Helton po,
4 mi w of Incline po. Moved 3/10/1941// Reason: more
centrally located & away from a disreptuable establish
ment// On 1/7/50, Margaret E. Davis pet. for a move 1
mi w to a pt 1 3/4 rd mi from Ieslie Co. line, on s.
side of US 421, 100 ft e of Beech Fk. Ck, 11 mi w of
Harlan po, 3% mi sw of Incline po, 4 mi e of Helton po

(SIR) ; Acc. to Jillson II (P. 1756), W.H. Toliver acqg.

50 acres on Reuben Br. (1891) and 50 acres on Wolf Pen
Br. (1891);



/BOBS CREEK (Harlan Co., Ky): BAcc. to Mrs. H.C. Hensley,
10/21/1946, this prop. po would be 10 mi s of Cumb. R,
8 mi e of Harlan po, 1 mi s of Cawood po, 2% mi s of
Glidden (rr) Sta, 5 yds n of L&N, 3 mi n of Three Pt. x
2% mi s of Ienarue po. (SIR);



BROWNIES CREEK (Harlan Co., Ky): Named for an

0old elk. (See Oscar Rucker, Jr., Prof. of
Geog., MSU, ¢. 11/1991),... (Nov. 12, 1991);
He said that Harry Lee who lives in Browniles
Creek nr the MNensley Settlement (Bell Co=?)
would know that area's names., But he's termi-
nally i1l with cancer. (Ibid.);



’ CARGO (Harlan Co., Ky): Acc. to Jas. F. Henson (?), 2/1¢
1918, the prop. name for this new po was Hoyt for it
would serve the Hoyt mining camp with a pop. of 40, 15(
ft s of Cumb. R, 300 yds sw of Watts Ck, 37 ft s of L&N
(no sta.), 7 mi from co. line, 2.44 mi w of White Star
po, 2.98 mi ne of Wallins Ck po// On 6/9/32, Chas. Gross
pet. for move 60 ft w to serve Tremont comm, 600 ft s of
. the river, 300 yds e of Watts Ck, 900 ft n of L&N (sta=
Trernont) , 55 mi from co. line// Acc. to F.F. Gross, 5/1:
11954, po was serving Tremont Sta. (com-?), 4% mi ne of
river, 200 ft w of Watts Ck, 2 mi w of Dayhoit po, 3 mi
of Wallins Ck po, ca. 3minwofWhitestarpo, Ymin
of L&N, serving vil. of Tremont,400 ft n of po with pop.
of 400. Flag sta. with no agent. (SIR);



‘/CARGO (Harlan Co., Ky): po est. 9/28/1918, Alfred
Caruthers, 2/5/20, Rob't. L. Shelby, 4/4/21, Ezekiel O.
Rose, 2/28/22, Geo. Henson, Disc. 1/31/24 (mail to Day-
hoit); Re—est. 8/26/24, Thos. C. Noe, 4/23/25, Leity
Helton, act. and ass. ch. 7/18/1925...Disc. 1933 (PCR-
NA) ;



CATRONS CREEK (Harlan Co., Ky)': Pion. settlers were
Mpses Ball and sons Jas. & Moses, Jr. Before 1819;




v/ _CATRONS CREEK (Harlan Co., Ky: Named for a pion. sur-
veyor from Va.; Often locally pron. caternz; Was this
ever called Catherine's Ck (as per several maps)?;




GAWOOD (Harlan Co.): 41ley Ledford, ne 1787, (&
came from NC to the site of Cawood. (A HIST.
OE HARLAN CO. by Mabel Green Condon, Nash-
ville: Parthenon Press, 1962, P. 32); "Berry
upawood stated in his application for pension
\/that he came into Harlan Co. soon after the
Rev. War." (A HIST. OF HARLAN CO. by Mabel
Green Condon, Nashville: Parthenon Press
1962, P. 33); In Jan. 199, this po was on US 431s;
Berry Caywood (sic), a Rev. War vet, settled early in

H. Co; Stephen Cawood, son of John & Nancy {Turner)
Cawood; ’



ot

/CAWOOD (Harlan Co.): John Cawood was the son
of Berry Cawood, Rev. War vet. who accompanie
Geo. R. Clark on his NW expedition. John wed
Nancy Turner (nee 1795 on Clover Fork, at
mouth of Yoacums Cr. nr. the present site of
Evarts) on 3/3/1814. She was the 1st white
child born in Harlan Co. and the daughter of
Wm, & Susan Bailey Turner, who came from
Henry Co., Va. 1792 and settled there. Susan
was the daughter of Carr Bailey, Rev. War vet

qalleged to have been the 1lst white settler of

co. who settled at the mouth of Baileys Creek
which was named for him. John & Nancy set up
home at site of future town of Cawood... -

(Lizzie Farmer of Harlan, Ky. contributed to

WPA, 5/11/1939);



\/CAWOOD (Harlan Co., Ky): "This vil. with po is on US
421, at the mouth of Crummies Ck, a bxr. of Martins Fk
of the Cumb. R, and 5% (air) mi se of Harlan. The po
was est. on 4/4/1890, with Wilson S. Hensley, pm, and
named for the family whose progenitor is said to have
been Berry Cawood (1758-1848), a Rev, War vet. Berry's
son John may have been the site's first settler, about
1814. The local I8N RR sta. is called Cato." (Book-
P. 53):



\/ CAWOOD (Harlan Co., Ky): Acc. to Steven Moses Cawood,
10/15/1895, this po was on the n side of Martins Fk,
at the mouth of Crummies Ck, 9 mi e of Harlan po, 8 mi
n of Hubbards Springs po (Va.) Not vil// Acc. to G.F.
Cawocd, 4/30/14, po was 300 yds e of Martins Fk, 50 yd
n of Crummies Ck, 6 mi from co. line, 9 mi se of Harla
po, 5 mi ne of Smith po, 5 mi sw of Cranks po// On 1/1
/1924, J.B. Hensley pet. for move 1000 air ft w to a p
at the ctr. of Mag. Dist. #7, 150 ft w of Martins Fk,
800 ft from the mouth of Crummies Ck, 50 ft w of L&N
(Cawood Sta.), 5 mi from co. line, 3 mi s of Lena Rue
(sic) po, 7 mi n of Smith po,5 mi w of Cranks po. Eff.
2/1/1924. Moving store & office to new quarters, close
to the mining camp. Flag sta. with no agent//On 3/3/31



Jim Cawood pet. for a move 300 yds e to a pt 300 yds
ne of Martins Fk, 140 yvds n of Crummies Ck, 300 yds
e of 18N (Cato Sta.), 6 mi from co. line, 6% mi w of
Smith po, 3 mi e of Lenarue po, 1% mi w of Crummies
po// BAcc. to Geo. C. Cawood, 7/24/39, po was 1 air |
8 rd mi from Lee Co., Va. line, 200 ft n of Crummies
Ck, 50 ft s of Stillhouse Br, 50 ft n of La&N, 0.18 m
from Kato Sta. (sic), 4 mi e of Ienarue po, 2% mi w
of Crummies po, 3 mi ne of Three Pt. po, 6% mi n of
" Smith po. (SIR}:




/ CAWOOD (Harlan Co.): Located about 10 mi. s.
of Harlan. Originally small farming commu.
Now bordered by coal mines., (Pron. __/Wood)
Named for Cawood family who were among the ls-
settlers of the county. The settler, Berry -.
Cawood, was a vet, of Am. Rev. and is burled
nr . CAWo0d » (Bryan Wi Whitfiedds—Frey—o
—s—:bée---—l{-y*.vln a letter- to me, 4/20/1979),

QL' Qo.u.muo&_ T

In the 18905 this was the only po serv1ng tha-
sect. ofi.the co. And it was in.Cawood store.
c. 1898 the store:was being run by Dave Hedri¢
formerly of Days Branch. (Curtls Burnam Ledfo:
to. John Egerton in GENERATIONS, 1983, P." 72);



B (v

/ GAWOOD (Harlan Co.): po est. 4/4/1890, "
Wilson S. Hensley; Disc. 12/3/1890 (n¢ paper;
sent); Re-est. 1/27/1896, Steven M. Cawood;
9/24/08,- Jas. F. Cawood; 4/5/09, Geo. Cawood
3/28/17, Jas. F. Cawood...(NA); Berry Cawood

. a Rev, War vet. ne Bartley.Co., Va. in 175§
Fought with Geo,. Rogers Clark ih I1l, in ™.
1778 and. with Col. Bowman against the Shawnec
in Ohio. Died Harlan Co. 1848, 'After the Rev,
he moved to the Cumb, R. in Ky. where hHa.diec
Buried at Cawood, Ky. ("Berry Cawood--Rev.
Soldier" ms. n.d. in vert. files-£awood fami:
Ky. Hist., Soc., examined by me, 6/8/1980);



'/CH‘AD (Harlan Co., Ky): Acc. to the L&N's 1921 time-
table, Chad Sta. on the Poor Fk. Br. was 1 mi above
Hiram and 2 mi below Poor Fork; Acc. to 1870 Census,
Chadwell Nolan (25), son of Jos. & Mary Nolan and bro.
of Sam'l, Wm, & Benj. His dates=1845-1923. In 1863 he
marr. Louisa (1845-1918), 4. of Jas. & Eliz. (Clay)
Turner (whose 1lst husband was Stephen Cawcod) (g.v.)
They lived in Dist. 8 (Big Rock po). Chad & Louisa's
son Benj. (1865-1894) mar. Cora Ellis Kelly in 1887;



‘/CLUTTS STATION (Harlan Co., Ky): On Looney Ck was named
for Geo. Clutts who came here  as mine foreman for the
Looney Ck. Coal Co. Perry V. Cole org. that company.
His son Chas. D. was pres. of the Harlan Nat'l. Bank.
They came from Laurel Co. (Diam. Jub., 1954);




/CREECH (Harlan Co., Ky): Acc. to John W. Creech, 4/18/
1881, the 1st name prop. for this new poc was Pine Mt.
and it would be 1/8 mi n of Poor Fk, 6 mi s of Clover
Lick (Ck.), 17 mi ne of Harlan C.H. PO, 6 mi w of Pcor-
fork po, 6 mi ne of Cloverfork po. Not a vil// Acc. to
H.C. Lewis, 2/8/12, it was 200 yds n of Poor Fk, 1% mi
from the co. line, 60 ft n of L&N, 3 mi w of Poor Fk. pc
8 mi e of Nolansburg po, 4 mi sw of Gordon po// On 5/9/
1924, Edward W. Creech pet. for amove 1 mi e to a pt
3000 ft n of the river, 1 mi from the co. line, 100 ft r
of L&N (Chad Sta.), 2 mi w of Poorfork po, 4 mi e of
Dione po, 2 mi s of Gordon po. Eff. 5/20/24. Moving po
to rr sta. & to serve a larger pop. base. (SIR);




CHAD (Harlan Co.): A rr yard. There was a
coal tipple there. "I always understood it
was named for Chad Buford. John Fox's bro.,
Horace Fox, was our mlne engineer at Brook-
side for many years ! The Creech p,0. he
knows of was on Poor.Fork. (B.W. whitfield,
Jr. in a letter to me, 6/28/1980), Acc. to

| 1883-4 Gaz, the Creech po was 20 mi ne of Harlan;
Ditto, acc. to 1895-6 Gaz; John Creech (ne ca. 1790-3

v his fam's. H. Co. prog, lived at m. of Clover Lick Ck
of Poor Fk. Mar. Sally Smith (nee 1794) (Acc. to his
nephew Elihu Creech, ne Lee Co., Va. in 1816 and

interv. by Dickey in 1898. (in KY EXPL. Vol. 12 (4),
9/1997, P. 88);



{

v CHAD (Harlan 00./1(3;/.)
Named for Chadwiék Nolen, a right-of-way agenf
for the L&N RR. A rr sta. on the Cumberland
Valley Div. (RR South, "Our Station Names"

v’ 1&N MAG., -10/1949, P, 14). po est, as Creech,
6/15/1881, John W. Creech...Disc. 8/20/1889(%)
(papers to Poor Fork); Re-est. 9/14/1889,
Rhoda E. Lewis..n.ch. (sic) to Chad, 5/13/2k,
Edward W. CI‘eth- II(NA) HY He_r‘e the Li"b'tle

Shepherd of Kingdolm Come léft-home for Kingdom

Come via Hurricane{ Gap, acc. to John Fox's

novel.(B.W. Whitfield, in letter to me, 5/11}

1979); ; R D,‘.SC' {_"’]'}7/




CREECH (Harlan Co., Ky): Acc. to 1920 Census, several
Creech families lived in Prec. 4 (Upper Poor FK);



/CHAD (Harlan Co., Ky): "This hamlet with epo and a sta.
on the L&N RR's Cumb. Val. Div. is on US 119 and the
Poor Fk. of Cumb. R, 17% (air) mi ene of Harlan. The
po of Creech, est. on 6/15/1881, with John W. Creech,
pm, was moved one mi e in 1924 and renamed Chad for the
sta. which had been named for Chadwell Nolen, an L&N
agent there, or for Chad Buford, the hero of John Fox,
Jr.'s famous novel "The Little Shepherd of Kingdom &R".
(Bock—P. 55}; Acc. to 1870 -Census, Creeches lived i
Dist. 8 (Big Rock po); Chad. J. Nolan was son of J.M. ¢
Nancy W. (Smith) Nolan (sic) (Condon, P. 205);

Acc. to 1910 Census, Chadwell F.C. Nolan (65) & wife
Iouisa (65) lived in Upper Poor Fk. Mag. Dist. 3;

I

Con-



v CHEVROLET (Harlan Co., Ky): Acc. to Frank C. Eaton, 3/2
/1918, this prop. po was called Bee Pee and would be
200 yds n of Martins Fk, 50 ft s of the K&V RR, 2 mi e
of Grays Knob po, 4 mi w of Cawood po// Acc. to Ibid.,
3/12/19, the po, now Chevrolet, was 50 ft s of L&N, 6%
mi from the Cumb. R, 2 mi e of Grays Knob po, 4 mi w of
Cawood po// Acc. to T.D. '(?) Shea, 7/22/39, po was on
the n side of Ky 66, 60 £t n of Chevrglet Station, 500
yds nw of Cumb. R. (sic), 1% mi w of Lenarue po, 2% mi
e of Grays Knob po. (SIR); The po closed before 1990;
C. was 6 rail mi from Harlan. A 13.6 mi rail link was
built betw. C. & Hagans, Va. betw. 1927 & 12/1/30.
(Herr, La&N, P. 204);




CHEVROLET (Harlan Co., Ky): The Chevrolet Miss. Bapt.
Chu. was built in 1948. Active. The local mine was acc
by Blue Diamond Coal Co. Closed by them in 1957. "The
ccmpany went completely out of business in May 1998
when it sold its Ieatherwood Mine (in Perry Co.) to tt
James R. Coal Co." (Chas. Carr of Talbot, Tenn. in KY
v EXPL. Vol. 15 (8(, 2/2001, P. 7);PO suspended 3/4/88
v/ (Jenny Lynch, 9/22/03); This po served the mines of tt
Harlan Superior Coal Co. and the'Williams By-Product
Coal Co. (1924); Acc. to 1920 Cens, Frank C. Eaton (3:
v/ & wife Sallie (28) Lived on 3rd St., Harlan. He was mc
of a mine commissary. No one in fam. with initials B.I



v/

/

CHEVROLET (Harlan C6. ) Named for a 1919
model 490 Chevrolet auto. (B.W. Whitfield,
Jdr, of Brockside, Ky. in a letter to me, 5/1
/1979); The 1st mine at Chevrolet was openec
¢, 1918 by the Williams ByProduct Coal Co.,
owned by John & Dover Williams of Knoxville,
Tenn. They .sold out to Blue Diamond. Never
heard of Bee Gee (Ibid.,.6/28/1980); Acc. to
LeN's 1921 timetable, this sta. on the Martins Fk. Br.
was 5 mi from Harlan, -1. mi above Grays .Knob & 2 mi
below Glidden Sta and 1 mi below Merna;



/CHEVROLET (Harlan Co., Ky): 6 mi from Harlan. The bros.
John, Dover, & Tom Williams from Tenn. were early H. Co.
coal operators. Tom was with the Lick Br. Coal Co. of
Coxton. The Williams ByProducts Coal Co. began its op'ns.
on the Hagan Trail (now US 421), then a very rough road.
ca. 1917. Tom had a Chevrolet "touring car". While seek-
ing a name for their local ship. pt. the car broke down.
Tom suggested naming the place for his car. He's supposec
to have aid "let's name the place after this blasted
Chev. because it looks like the thing is going to be
here as long as the mine is." (W.C. Stump "Chevrolet, Ky'
in Harlan Mt. Roots, Vol. 6 (3), Spr. 1992, Pp. 99-100);




\/CHEVROLET (Harlan Co., Ky): "This coal town and L&N RR
sta. with po is at the mouth of Enoch Br. of Martins Fk
of the Cumb. R. and US 421, 2% (air) mi se of H. The
1st local mine was opened in 1918 by the Williams By-
Product Coal Co., owned by John & Dover Williams of
Knoxville, Tenn. which soon sold out to the larger Blue
Diamond Coal Co. The local po of Bee Gee, est. on 6/5/
1918, with Frank C. Eaton, pm, was re ¢ Chevrolet
in Dec. of that yr. for the car driven/by either an
early mail carrier or the foreman of the construction
gang building a coal tipple, whose el 490 Chevrolet
car is said to have been the first drive over the
local road." (Book-P. 57); ¢ = ? hva wieoh

Aot Pee-




V/CHEVROLET“(Harlan Co.): "A mail carrier named
the place for his car, which was of that make
after other proposals to the P.0. inspector
were unacceptable.” (Hardy, 1949, P. 82);

J "A foreman in charge of a coal tipple under
construction brought in a Chevrolet car which
he had to drive over a very rough siretch of
road to get to the tipple, being the first
automobile to travel the road, and supplying
the suggestion for the name of the community,’

/ (M, Ladd, WPA, 4/1941); po est, as Bee Gme, (e

v 6/5/1918, Frank C. Eaton; n.ch. (sic) to

Chevrolet, 12/17/1918, ibid. «..(NA);
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nowntgdn ro2ds of thot nelerhhorhood wig -
Chewrrolet 8riven by one of Hhe consgtrveticn
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nonulay Foney...." (R.R. Southﬁ "Ouwr Btaticn
Waomeg-~Thelr Tamily Trees" L. & I'. EIPICYVIS!
UAGAZIFE, 11/1C40, P. 15:1).



More redent info. has it that the naming of
the community occurred c¢ 1920 "following an
extensgion of the gtub vhich constituted the
original Martin'g Fork Branch....The siation
wag named after William Veherable, an extra
gang foreman of the era, who had this mis-
foriune to have-hle Chevrolet turn ovek near
the Blue Diamond Mind s commissary.at what
became Chevrplet." (Ibid., 1/1950,.F..17:3)
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pEO
/ GLOSPLINT (Harlan Co., Ky.)

RR sta. name is(beineéfderived from that of
the Cilover Splint Mine of the Conselidation
Coal Co. nearby. (RR South, "Our Station
Names" L&N MAG., 3/1950, P. 35). po est. 2/16/
1928, James Rpy Parsons... (NA); Derived from
Cloversplint, which was named for the Clover
Splint Coal Co. 1926. (B.W. Whitfield, Brook-
side, Ky. in a letter to me, 5/11/1979); The
Clover Splint Coal Co, opened its mine in 1927
po on the ne side of Ky 38 (1/1996); Acc. to 1960 LaN
timetable, its sta. was then 4 mi above Highsplint and :
mi above Closplint No. 2, and 9 mi below Glenbrook at
the head of the line. It was 9 mi above Harlan Sta;




v

SPLINT coal is "a hr:d coal that will not
break into small pices when handled or ship-
ped....It makes a good coal for domestic use
and for locomotives and hand-stoked steam
boilers, I% ships well and stocks well....”
(THE ANNUAL REPT. OF THE INSPECTOR OF MINES
OF THE STATE OF KY,FOR THE YEAR 1900, Lou,,
1901, P. 213); .



f CLOSPLINT (Harlan Co., Ky): "This coal town with L&N RR
sta. and po, on Ky 38 and the Clover Fk. of Cumb. R, 13%
(air) mi ene of Harlan, was named for and by the Clover
Splint Coal Co. which opened its local mine in 1926.
The po was est. on 2/16/1928, with Jas. Roy Parsons, pm.
(Book-P. 62); Acc. to Jas. Roy Parsons, 10/27/27, this
prop. po would be 200 ft n of Clover Fk, 100 £t s of L&t
(Closplint Sta.), 2 mi from the Va. line, 1% mi n of
Iovellen po, 5 mi s of Holmes Mill po, 7 mi w of Cumb.
po. (No sta. agent). (SIR); The Clover Fk. (rr) Exten-

sion betw. Closplint & Glenbrook (11 mi)l Service
began on this in 1946;



/CLOVER (Haxlan Co., Ky): po est. 6/18/1901, John M. Huf
6/28/02, John K. Morris, Disc. 12/15/02 (papers to Poor
Fork) ; Re-est. 3/12/09, Rena Hall, 5/14/14, Preston C.
Hall, 3/19/30, Garland Blair Disc. 1934 (POR-NB);




~ CLOVER EORK (Harlan Co.): Now: a large miney

()

-

The Glenbrook Mine developed by Stonego Coal
& Coke (now Westmoreland) in 1946. Stonego
operated a mine at Keokee, Va, out through
Little Black Mt, to Clover Fork River and
operated a mine in Big Black Mt. In 1912
there were no less than 50 camp houses &t
Clover Fork, Ky. (B.W. Whitfield, Jr. in a
letter to me, 6/28/1980); Acc. to 1895 Gaz, th
_po was 30 mi e of Harlan; Acc. to 1876-7 Gaz, po was,
named for stream. Pop. of com. it served=200. 20 mi
from Harlan. lst settled 1810. Isaac W. Huff was pm.
Gen. stores: (1) C.F.C. Nolan, (2) Jonathan P. Smith;



/CIOVER FORK (Harlan Co., Ky): Acc. to Malinda L. Legq,
1/7/1898, this po was on the n side of Clover Fk, on the
w side of Lowders Ck, (a rural po, not a vil.), ca. 5 mi
w of Crab Orchard po (Va), 5 mi n of Kirk po (Va.), 5 mi
e of Klondike po// Acc. to Ibid., 5/3/06, it was 1/16 mi

\ n of Clover Fk, % mi below the mouth of Rogers Fk, 3 mi
w of Crab Orchard po, 2 3/4 mi e ofKlondike po, 8-5 mi e
of Leonard po// Acc. to C.E. Flanary, 3/6/16, po was 60
ft n of Clover Fk, 200 yds w of Regers Ck, ca. 13 mi
from co. line, 4% mi nw of Keokee po (Va.), 2 mi ne of

Klondike po. (SIR); Kgpqmrf ch.



CIOVER FORK (Harlan Co., Ky): 3/2/1891, Wm. Huff; n.ch
to Cloverfork 2/13/94, Abner J. Blair, 11/19/95, Enoch
C. Blair, Disc. 11/11/1896 (mail to Crab Orchard, Iee
Co., Va.); re—est. 1/27/189% with Felix L. Huff (de-
cllned 2/23/98, Enoch C. Blair, 5/25/99, Elisha Brow
1/24/03 Green Clay (order rescinded, 11/24/03 5/3/04
Jacobh Blair, Disc. eff. 10/31/04 (mail to Crab Orchard
Re—est. 6/1/06, Dora B. Caudill, 2/5/08, Enoch C. Blai:
Disc. 6/30/12 (mail to Keokee, Va.); Re-est. 6/9/16,
Jas. D. Clay, 1/29/19, Stephen N. Parsons (failed to
qualify), 8/18/20, Frank Morris, 2/25/22, Jas. P.
Kennedy, act and ass. ch. 6/5/22...Disc. .1934) (POR-NA

1] 3



/ CLOVER FORK (Harlan Co.): Named for Clover
Fork, one of the headwaters of Cumberland R,
(Hardy, thesis, 1949, P,. 17); Po. ert. y/29/+1,
1§ oe N, Hwfd g OGS g [vrolyg; RuL-osd, F‘—/’1.-al/-:'¢.r
iwia (.Y (pa2; The Clover Fork Coal Co. openec

/its mine”in I912; Ace. to trad., Jos. Martin,
Virginian "seeking out-lands for a syndicate

//that ineluded Patrick Henry, wandered into
(the future Harlan Co.) before Boone blazed
the Wilderness Trail. He found wild clover
growing along a stream and left behind two
names=-Martin's Fork (q.v.) and Clover Fork."
(Hagg¥ M. Caudill, Theirs Be The Power, 1983,
P, )




v CLOVER FCRK (Harlan Co., Ky): "This has been a coal
town since 1912, located on Ky 38, 21% (air) mi e of
Harlan. It was named for its location nr. the head of
cne of the 3 fks. of the Cumb. R. The aptly named
stream flows w to join Martin and Poor Fks. in the vic.
of Harlan. The 1local po, since closed, was cone of the
oldest in the co., having been est. as Clover Fork on

. 7/28/1857 with Isaac W. Huff, pm." (Book-P. 62);
The 300 yd wide Clover Fork Valley above Harlan is

v/ bordered by perpendicular cliffs. Big Black Mt. is 220
ft above the fork. Icgging in this val. in the 1890s.
(Rev. L.E. Tupper, ca. 1896, journ. of a trip thru H.
Co. in KY. EXPL. Vol. 17 (5), 10/2002, Pp. 15-7);




V' CLOVER LICK CREEK (Harlan Co., Ky): Joins Poor Fk. 25

mi. above the latter's mouth; Clover Lick wa&‘a deer
lick named for the red clover on its banks (Jackie Owel
"Early Settlers on the Poor Fk...,' Salisbury, NC, 1990,

Pp. 1-4); Deer would lick salt on the rocks along its
banks;




VOLOVERLICK (Harlan Couwnty, Ky.) "...there dig
HoT used Lo be a town here. The holler,
Cloverliclz, was so0 named ag there was g lick
or gpring which wag suvrrounded by red clover.
Thig ig where ve want our Jwnlor college to
e 1f we get 1% incgtead of Harlan. The colles:
might erase the sgtigma of living there now.
We always say, 'He looks 1like he came from
the head of Cloverlick,' means real cowtry."
(Ina Mae Enzor of Harlan Co., Ky. One of
Lz2onard Robert g 'folklore gtudents, Uhion Coll.
1957. .



| CLOVER (Harlan Co., Ky): Acc. to Wm. W. Cornett, 5/11/
1901, the 1lst name prop. for this new po was Clover Lic
and it would serve the Clover Lick vic., 5 mi s of Cumb
R, on the s side of Clover Lick (Ck.}, 5 mi se of Poor
Fk. po, 5 mi nw of Klondike po, 9 mi se of Creech po//
Acc. to Mrs. Rena Hall, 9/09, po was 5 mi ne of Cumb. R
50 yds s of Clover Lick (Ck), 7% mi nw of Keckee po (Va
5 mi se of Poor Fk. po// Acc. to P.C. Hall, 10/26/15,p0
was 4% mi s of Cumb. R, 100 ft s of Clover Lick Ck, 4%
mi s of Ky. & Va. RR, 5 mi from co. line, 4% mi s of
Poor Fk po, 7 mi sw of Benham po// On 3/20/30, Garland
Blair pet. for move 1/3 mi ne to a pt 5% mi e of river,
250 £t s of Clover Lick Ck, 5% mi ne of L&N. Eff. now
(SIR) ;



[

vGOLDIRON (Harlan Co.)s Vil, named for Elihu
Coldiron, early settler. (Mabel Colling, "Town
Names Given by Railroads, Companies, Settlers"
unid. & undated Harlan newsp. clipping);
po est. 11/16/1928, Mary E. Coldiron...(NA);

/ "“This vil. lies betw. US 119 and the Cunb. R., 7 (air)
mi w of Harlan. Its po was est. on 11/16/1928 with
Mary E. Coldiron, pm, and probably named for Elihu
Coldiron, an early settler." {Book-P. 64); Wm. Coldirom
ne ca. 1800 nr Cumb. Falls mar. Ieah Iewis, d of Abner
& niece of John Lewis. Wm. was son of Conrad Coldiron,
a "Black Dutch" from Eurcpe & a Rev. War vet. (John D.
Coldiron of Laurel Ck, Ky to Dickey, 4/9/98 in KY EXPL
Vol. 8 (7), 12/93-1/94, Pp. 78-9);



/ COLDIRON (Harlan Co., Ky): On 9/1/1933, Mary E. Coldiro
pet. for a move 1 rod e to serve the commu. of Dixie
Town and the rr sta. of Ameron, 800 £t n of Curb. R,
1500 £t s of Jesse's Ck, 1580 ft n of L&N, 3% mi from o
line, 3 mi w of Wallins Ck po. Hisey Blanton was/would
be the pm// Acc. to Gayle M. Taylor, 7/26/39, po was 2%
air & 3 rd mi from Bell Co, 150 ft s of US 119, 1953 ft
w of Coldiron Sta, 1700 ft nw of L&N, 1600 ft rw of the
Cumb. R, 1800 ft rw of Jesses Ck, 2% mi w of Wallins Ck
po, 2% mi e of Molus po. (SIR); APO; po was on Forrest
ers Ck. Rd. (1/96); The Ameron Sta. was on the Ky & Va.
RR {1921), 1 mi e of Layman and 2 mi w of Wallins and
10 mi from Baxter (L&N 1921 timetable};

2

]



v/ COIDIRON (Harlan Co., Ky): Conrad Coldiron (ne ca.
1760 in Bexks Co., Pa. settled on Wallins Ck with
his family ca. 1815 at the Cim's. confl. His scns
John & Jesse later moved to site of late' Coldiron &
Conrad lived with John till his death. Conrad was
"Black Dutch". (P. 570) Died ca. 1835. The po was est
11/16/1928 and is on US 119 (Heritage, Vol. 5, P. 14)
PO was est. by Elihue L. Coldiron (ne 1879), son of
Jesse W. and Eliz. (Saylor) Coldiron. The po was
named for him as he was the vic's. lst settler. His
wife Mary Ella Taylor (mar. 1905) as the 1lst pm. The
town was called Dixietown. The area incl. the Terrys
Fk. sect. of Wallins Ck. Rev. Claude Taylor, Mary



Ella's brother, was pm frem 1932 to the 1950s. Elihu
was born there. It was then called Iayman and the L&
had a sta. there then. Layman po closed in 1922 and
moved across the river. Commu. was then known as
Dixie Town. Elihue ran the store there. Acc. to Bill
Brown, FM, ca. 1981l. Elihue died in 1942 and is bur.
there in the Coldiron Cem. (Pp. 594-5) (Otto Green
Coldiron, Jr., comp., "Descendants of George Cold-
iron (1730-1805), 1997) (copy in the Mag. Co. Hist.
Soc. Libr.) John Coldiron, son of Conrad, lived on
Terry's Ck, 11 mi below Mt. P. (Ibid., P. 653) The
ck. was probably named for Terry Melton (ne ca.l826)
for Terry had deeded 50 acres of Wallins Ck. land to
John. (Ibid.):




COLDIRON (Harlan Co., Ky): Acc. to Jillson II, P. 1137,
Jesse Coldiron acg. 100, 50, 500, & 50 acres on Fosters
Ck (sic) (surv. 1844, 45, & 60). Jess B. Coldiron acqg.
50 acres on Cum. R (1845). Wm. Coldiron acg. 50, 50, &
160 acres on Cum. R. (1845, 46, 82). Wm. Coldiron acg.
250 on Platts Fk (1844). Other Coldirons with other

/ properties....; The Coldirons were descendants of
Johan Georg Kalteisen (1730-1805); Acc. to 1920 Census,
John Coldiron (43) & wife Sarah (29) & son Elija (11)
lived on the Forester Ck. R4. in Prec. 9 (Layman), next
to Henry Riddle (50) & wife Lizzie (34). lots of Saylor
fam's. in that prec;



/COXTON (Harlan Co., Ky): Acc. to Moses B. Smith, 6/14/
1899, this prop. po would be 25 ft n of Clover Fk, 50 £t
e of Ages Ck, 4% mi e of Harlan po, 4% mi sw of Evarts

) po// On 3/4/13, Rasa B. Freed (?) pet. for amove % mi ¢

' to a pt 340 £t n of Clover Fk, 1 mi w of Ages Ck, 1 mi v
of Ages po, 3.7 mi e of Harlan po, 4.7 mi se of Baxter
po, 75 £t n of L&N// Acc. to W.T. Powell, 7/24/39, po
was serving a coal camp, 300 £t n of L&N, 250 yds n of
Clover Fk, 2 mi e of Kitts po, 1 mi w of Brookside po,
10 mi n of Chevrolet po. (SIR); Acc. to L&N's 1921 time-
table, this sta. was on the Clover Ck. Br. 4 mi above
Harlan, 2 mi above Kitts, 1 mi below Brookside.Not giver
in the 1260 timetable;



COXTON (Harlan Co., Ky): Acc. to 1920 Census, Charley”
Cox (40) & wife Ellen (44) 1lived in the Coxton Prec. #1
with issue. Wm. M. Cox (38) & wife Liona (?) lived in
Ibid. (she was 32). This place was named for Gordon L
Cox (Harlan Mt. Roots, Vol. 1 (7). Winter 1986, P. 50);




J/ COXTON (Harlan Co.): po est. 9/16/1899, Carl
B. Crider...(NA); Commu. preceded the rr. K.W
Maguire developed the Harlan Coal:. Mining Co.
here in 1912, Installed here was one of the
first rubber belts to convey coal. (B.W. Whit
field, Jz, of Brookside, Ky. in a letter to
me, 5/11/1979); po was disc. in 1952 and was a CPO
from 1952 to 1980 (POR-NA); No Coxton fam's. in 1880
Census; Acc. to 1900 Census, Carlo Crider (4/68) &
wife Sarah E. (6/75) lived in Mt. P. Dist. but no Cox-
ton or Cox; Acc. to 1900 Census, Moses B. Smith (2/82)
& wife Iouisa (5/62) & issue lived in Mt. P. Prec.
but no Cox or Coxton;



CRANKS CREEK (Harlan Co., Ky): The Cranks Creek Lake.
Its 188 ft high earthen dam was completed in 1965. It
was one of Gov. Combs' small lakes projects built for
flood control & rec'n. The lake was reduced in size
from ca. 300 acres to 150 (by early 1973). (ILCJ, 4/16/
1973, P. Bl:1-6); One of a party of the earliest

{ surveyors in H. Co. was a man named Thranks. Came along
a trail from Rose Hill, Va. thru Mclin Notch on the
Iee Co. line.... (Condcn, P. 48); APO; PO was on US 421
(1/1/1996) ;




CRANKS CREEK (Harlan Co., Ky): Acc. to Albert Skidmore,
10/16/1871, this po was 3 mi e of Martins Fk, on the s
side of Crarnks Ck, 13 mi se of Harlan po, 8 mi nw of
Jonesville po (Va.)// Acc. to H.L. Ledford, 3/1908, the
Cranks po was % mi n of Cranks Ck, 5 mi n of L8N & its
Ocoonita Sta. (?), Va, 3% mi sw of Ledford po// Acc. to
W.M. Howard, 2/15/10, it was 4 mi e of Martins Fk, ¥ mi
n of Cranks Ck, 4 mi s of Ledford po, 4 mi e of Cawood p
& 8 mi n of Smith po//Acc. to Peter Day, 7/8/13, it was
5 mi e of Martins Fk, % mi n of Cranks Ck, 3 mi from co.
line, 5 mi w of Cawood po// Acc. to no sign, 5/14/17, th
prop. hame for this po was Herald & it was 3 mi from co.
line, 300 yds w of Cranks Ck, 5 mi e of Cawood po, 8 mi
ne of Smith po//Acc. to lLeander Day, 7/24/39, it was on
Ky 66, 200 yds nw of Cranks Ck, 3 3/4 mi e of Crummies
po (SIR);



//CRANKS (Harlan Co., Ky): "This hamlet with po just w of
US 421 and Ky 568, 9 (air) mi se of H., was named for it
location on Cranks Ck, a br. of Martins Fk. of the Cumb.
R. The name of the ck. and nearby Cranks Ridge and gap
is said to have been corrupted from Thranks, that of a
pion. surveyor. Yet it could have been named for one or
more families of Crank known to have lived in Knox, Bell
& Clay Co's. in the early 19 cent. The Cranks po was
est. on 4/9/1908 with Harvey L. ILedford, pm. An earlier
po on the ck—-in fact, one of the cldest in the co.--was

/Cranks Creek, in op. from 5/27/48 to 9/8/49, and again,
tho' perhaps at another site, from 10/25/71 to 1/8/74.:
(Book-P. 71);




Lo

CRANKS (Harlan Co,): "I have no record but
feel sure that Crank's Creek, Gap, and Ridge
were named for someone of that name. The c%t.
hse. of Harlan Co. was burned during the Civi:
War and most of the records were destroyed.
The 1800*Census of Harlan Co. does not show
" anyone named Crank in the state. (Wm, Fitz-
gerald of KHS in a letter to Raymond D. Crank
7274 Grace Lane, Rt. 2, Salinas, Cal. 93901, .
on 5/13/1968) Crank was seeking geneol. info
on Crdgk & allied families as late as July
1977 and had earlier asked KHS for this info,
By 1977kﬁa5 living at 404 Mormon St.. Folsom,
Cal. 95630



Two Crank families 'in Knox Co. in 1850
Census--those of Cornelius & Hames Crank
(Seex P. 350). Other Cranks lived 19th cent,
in Jackson, Lindoln, Bell, Clay, Knox,
Perry, Owsley Co's. David Crank, ne Knox C
1800/1 and died there 1831. His widow,
Deborah Rose Crabk died Knox Co. late 1850s
early 1860s., (Ibid., 7/19/1977) Haymond and
his wife, Velma, lived at 404 Mormon in '79
His gt. gt. grandfather, .Jas. Crankih & wife
Wilender Taylor Crank lived on Turkey Creek
in Knox Co., in 1809, He gave the land for
the Turkey Creek Sch. & chu. 'in 1850. The
bldg. stlll stands, He died 1862 & is burie

A (QCCLO\ Coam . (s da Rowd awasi. rad. AeN,



CRANKS (Harlan Co.): Is not a coal town. The
creek was named for a man named Thranks but
was corrupted from usage. acc. to P. 48 of
HIST. OF HARLAN CO. by Mabel Green Condon.
(B.W. Whitfield, Jr. in. a letter to me, 6/28/

1980); Thranks or Cranks Creek wis a Martin's

b ———— e

Fk. trip. Was named for "an o0ld woodsman that
had r gked there back in Jos. Martin's time."
v The COranks PO was in Day's Store. c. 1978, the

com. was a "scattering of homes and trailers
along the val., ‘highway and in the hollows ex-
tending from it." Mrs. Mabel Day ran the store
The creek heads at Little Black Mt. (Curtis
" Burnam & Addie Ledford te John Egerton in his
Generations, 1983, Pp..éﬁ,,ﬁ?, 105, 107);




/ GRANKS (HarlaniCo.): Cranks Creek & Cranks Gaj
Named for a man named Thranks, an early sur-
veyor, contemporary of Wallins, Catron, etc.
Corrupted in usage. (Mabel Green Condon, A HIS
OF HARLAN.CO. Nashville: Parthenon Press, 196:

v Po 48); po est. as Cranks Creek 5?2?/1814—55, Kz
Henry Skidmore ; Disc. 9/8/1B849 (where locatec
?) Re-est. but dk where? 10/25/187L, Albert
Skidmore; Disc. 1/8/1874; po of Cranks est.
6/19/1907, Peter Day, order rescinded 7/23/07;

/14/9/1908, Harvy (sic) L. Ledford; Disc. 11/30,
1910 (mail to Cawood): Re-est. 12/26/1913,
Peter Day...(NA); : '

hRO



/CRUMMIES (Harlan Co., Ky)}: Acc. to Thurman Clifford
Chappell, 2/29/1928, this prop. po would be 2 mi e of
Martins Fk, 100 ft n of Iong Br. of Crummies Ck, 50 ft n
of L&N (Crummies Sta. but no depot), to serve vil. of
Crummies with pop. of 500, 2 mi e of Cawcod po, 2 mi sw
of Cranks po, 4 mi ne of Three Pt. po// Acc. to T.C.
Chappell, 7/24/39, po was on Ky 66, 200 ft e of Long Br,
1 mi s of Cawood po, 3 mi nw of Cranks po. {SIR); 2

/ 01d legend that someone once cbserved a large herd of -
buffalo (or deer) with crumpled horns. A cow with
crocked horns is still called a crummie or crummy. PO
was named for the creek;



, CRULIIES CREEBK (Harlan Co., Ky.) "...uas
named because a drove of buffaloes with
crunpled hern roamed wnder and around some
c1iffs there." (From W.W. Smith's daughter,— by
Eva Parks, Harlan, Ly. GCollected fmewmTary T.
Greene, Bell Co., Ky. é@%ﬁ%,one of "
T.eonard Roberte' students at Uhion College (?)
clSGh. ﬁk allowed me %0 copy thics from her
typecopy, 5/24/1571)

, Both this and CRIMHIES (a2 populated comainliy)
are ligted in Tield'g Gulde, tov. map. FPl6...

po est. as Crummies, 8/11/1928, Thurman C.
Chappell...(NA); nire 483



\/CRUIVIMIES (Harlan Co.): The creek was
allegedly named by the Indians "place where
water the great deer herd with the erumpled
norns" (sie) (Condon, P, 115); "This hamlet with

v po d an L&N RR sta. is on US 421 and Iong Br. of
C ies Ck, 7 (air) mi se of H. It was undoubtedly
named for the stream, a trib. of Martins Fk of the Cun
R., along which, it is said, scmeone had once observed
a large herd of buffalo (or deer) with crumpled horns.
A cow with crocked horns is still called a crummie or
crummy. The po was est. on 8/11/1928 with Thurman C.
Chappell, pm." (Book-P. 74);



v/ CUMBERLAND (Harlan Co.): "The land along the
river from Harlan extending north for about 2
mi,, was so poor that nothing could be raised
on it so the river was named Poor Fork..The
small town was called Poor Fork; now it is
called Cumberland." (Lizzie Farmer of Harlan,
Ky. contributed this.to WPA, 12/7/1938); po

_est. as Poor Fork,2711/1837, Hezekiah Brunson;

v/ Disc. 1/19/1839; Re-est. 2/14/1845, das, J. .
Lewis...Disc. 10/2/57; Re-est. 11/14/57, Am-
brose Powell.,.Disc. 7/31/63; Re-est. 6/2/65,
Jonathan P. Smith...Disc. 27/1/75; Re-est. 8/2°
1875, Benj. F. Nolen (sig): 1/25/26, Ira

Field?; ?.ch. (sie) i?/Cumberland, 6/1/26,
ibid (NA); c,
—2 A0 %‘ 7|1, Q)\"Ld I 4.C

W) 1aaa




‘/CUMBERIAND (Harlan Co., Ky): 4th cl. city, the co's.
largest with a pop. of 3,712 (1980), 3,112 (1990). Site
was settled in the 1820s. First called Poor Fork. In
1926 it was renamed for the river as more suitable for
business. (KY. ENCY., 1992, Pp. 244-5); Hezekiah
Branson was Poor Fork's lst pm; The stream heads nr
Eolia in Letcher Co; The town was the trading center

/ for the Fork's families. (Jackie Owen); Two stores the:
by the late 1870s: Huff Bros store and a water-powered
corn mill. Cornetts also had a store. Place became a -hex
trade center for large area of upper Poor Fk;



\/CUMBERIAND (Harlan Co., Ky): "This 4th cl. city with
po and the largest town in the co., is centered at the
ject. of US 119 and Ky 160, 19 (air) mi ene of H. Until
1926 the town was called Poor Fork for its location on
one of the three (head) forks of the Cumb. R. The
stream, which is said to have been named for the rela-
tive unproductivity of its soil, flows wsw to join the
Curb. R. at Baxter, just below Harlan. The po, one of
the oldest in the co., was est. as Poor Fork on 2/11/
1837 with Hezekiah Brunscon, pm. After an intermittent
existence it, like the town, was renamed Cumberland on
June 1, 1926 by local businessmen who sought a more
significant and propitious name for their growing com.'
(Book—P. 75);



v CUMBERLAND (Harlan Co.): Poor Fork was named

for the Poor Fork Creek which, 'in turn, was
named for the unproductivity of the local
soil. (Hardy, thesis, 1949, P. 21); The late
Jos. .E. Isaac, Sr. "was instrumental in havin
the name of Poor Fork changed to Cumberland."
A native of Syria, he arr. at Poor Fork, as i
was then called, in 1925. He was pres. & gen.
mgr. of the Cumberland Amusement Co. which
ran a chain of theaters in SE Ky. and was
chairman of the (Poor Fork) city planning &
. zoning comm'n. He died 9/8/1972, age 74, in
Daytona Bch., Fla., where he was then living.
cf son, Rigdon Isaac, of Whitesburg...(Obit.
in CJ&T, 9/10/1972, P. B4:1);




CUMBERIAND (Harlan Co., Ky): In Oct. 1910, Mrs.
Iucinda J. Huff pet. for a move of the Poor Fork po
900 ft se to a pt 520 £t s of the Wasioto & Black Mt.
RR (under construction), 1300 ft w of Poor Fork Sta.,
50 ft w of Poor Fk, 3 mi ne of Creech po, 4 mi w of
Yowell po, 3 mi se of Gordon po// Acc. to Ibid., 2/14/
1911, po was 125 ft n of Poor Fk, 1/8 mi ne of Clover-
lick Ck, 450 ft s of L&N, 3/4 mi from co. line, 3 mi
ne of Creech po, 3 mi w of Benham po, 4.7 mi se of
Gordon po//Acc. to Ira Fields, 5/15/1926, the po name
was changed to Cumberland eff. 6/1/1926, and it was
300 ft sw of Cumb. R, 600 ft from mouth of Cloverlick
Ck, 2 mi from co. line, 300 ft se of L&N, 1% mi w of



Pee Vee po, 2% mi ne of Chad pod mi n of Clover po//
On 7/14/32, Lizzie B. Davisworth pet. for a move on
7/10/32 (but nothing mentioned of distance/direction
moved) , to a pt 30 ft w of Poor Fk, ca. 6000 ft sw of
ILooney Ck, 75 ft s of 1.&N, 5% mi sw of Partridge po,
2 3/4 mi se of Gordon po, 1 3/4 mi nw of Pee Vee po//
Acc. to Mildred Fuchter (?), 8/3/1939, po was 0.2 mi
se of US 119, 0.3 mi e of Cumb. Sta. on the LaN, 50
ft e of the river, 23 mi sw of (?) Harlan po, 4 mi se
of Benham po (sic). (SIR);



DAY (Harlan Co., Ky): Acc. to Jillson II, Pp. 1170-1,
John N. Day acg. 50, 50 acres on ILunies Ck (sic) (1843
and 50 on Pen Lick Br. (1847) & 100, 50 on same (1868)
[Actually the listing is for John M, John B, & John M
Day. Then Dan'l. Day acqg. 200 on Poor Fk (1882). Iouis
Day (50) on Ieft Fk. of Crain Br. {(1891). Newton Day
(30) on S. Black Mt. (1902); Milton Hensley (1845-
1926), Day's 1st pm, was the son of George Washington
and Sarah (Noe) Hensley. Milton was mar. in 1872 to
Nancy McGeorge in Wallins Ck. He was a Civil War Unio
J/ Amy vet;Acc. to 1920 Census, EQ Day (47) & wife
Mournia (?) (40) lived in Wilhoit Prec. 8C, a farmer;



/ DAYHOIT (Harlan Co., Ky): Acc. to S.L. Osborne, 2/24/19,
this prop. po would be 4 mi s of Cumb. R, 50 yds n of
L&N (Wilhoit Sta.), 3% mi e of Wallins po, 4 mi w of
Baxter po, 1 mi n of Whitestar po// On 3/27/30, Doxie
Bussell pet. for a move 150 ft s to serve the comm. of

 Wilhoit, 400 ft n of the river, % mi s of Ewings Ck, 1
mi rw of White Star po, 50 £t n of L&N (Wilhoit Sta.),

3 mi n of Shonn po, 2 mi s of Cargo po// Acc. to Dail
Bussell, 7/25/39, po was 100 ft n of Wilhoit Sta. & 100
ft n of L&N, 500 ft s of the river, 2 mi w of Keith po.

(SIR) ; APO; Acc. to 1/1/1996, it was on the e side of
Bwing Ck;




DAYHOIT (Harlan Co., Ky} : "This vil. with po lies on the
Cunb. R. just below the m. of Ewing Ck, 2% (air) mi w of
H. The po was est. on 8/7/97 as Day for a local family.
In 1913 the name was ch. to Wilhoit for Roy Wilhoit, the
founder of a local coal co. In 1915 the po was moved to
the site of the White Star Coal Co. mines, 1 mi up Ewing
Ck, and renamed White Star. When it closed in 1930 its
papers were transferred to the Dayhoit p.o. which had
been est. on 4/22/1921 at or close to the Wilhoit site
where the Wilhoit sta. of the Ky. & Va. {now L&N) RR had
been located several yrs. before. Dayhoit was undoubted-
ly a combi. of the names of Day and Wilhcoit, its predec-
essors."” (Book-P. 78);



VDAY (Harlan Co., Ky): po est. 8/7/97, Milton Hensley,
12/6/97, Dora B. Howard (a miror), 1/20/98 Chadwell M.
Howard, 4/21/99, Almon J. Howard, order to disc. 10/10/
1904 with mail to Wallins Ck. was resc. 10/22/04, 10/24
1904, Abraham L. Wax (?) [or Ware/?] (resc. 2/2/05),
2/7/05, Silas Lewis, 2/4/07, Wm. E. Cornett, Disc. 7/30
1907 (mail to Baxter) [but order was rescinded], 9/26/
1907, Bessie Blanton, 5/8/11, Camille Noe; n. ch. to
Wilhoit, 2/26/191.2/.._.. (g.v. Wilhoit, White Star...)

(FOR-TR) 5 Fred 0. Keidhly



DAYS BRANCH OF MARTINS FORK (Harlan Co., Ky):
named for a local family. Days Branch School.
Dave Hedrick had a store at its mouth in the
1890s. He later moved his stock to a store in
Cawood. ¢.,1898. (Curtis Burnam Ledford to Johr
Egerton for his GENERATIONS, Lex: U Press of
Ky, 1983, P. 72);




v DELVALE (Harlan Co., Ry)}: po est. 2/23/1911, John H.
Blair; Disc. 1/31/1913 (mail to Evarts) (POR-NA);
Acc. to John H. Blair, 11/1910, this prop. po would be
200 £t n of Clover Fk (?), 1 mi w of Tungate Ck, 4% mi
w of Leonard po. (SIR);



\/DILT_.ON (Harlan Co., Ky): po est. 7/10/1915, Nancy J.
Cornett (declined), 11/4/1915, Wm. D. Iewis, 9/15/19,
Mattie Iewis, Disc. eff. 5/31/1927 (mail to Putney)
(POR-MA) ; Acc. to Wm. D. Lewis, 12/27/1915, this po was
100 ft n of Poor Fk, 4 mi e of English Ck, 55 ft s of
the rr, 3 mi w of Nolandsburg po, 5 mi e of Rosspoint
po, 4 mi s of Pine Mt. po. (SIR); (see Dicne entry
Acc. to 1910 Robt. W. Cornett (25) & wife Isab‘e,lle_
(17) in the Upper Poor Fk Mag. Dist. 3 nr Nancy g.
Cornett, a 51 vr old widow. But no Dillon; Acc. to
1910 Census, no Wm. D. (for Dillon) lived in Poor Fk.
Prec. 5, Mag. Dist. 4; Acc. to L&N's 1921 timetable,
this sta. was on the Poor Fk. Br. 1 mi above. Putney,
8 mi above Baxter, 2 mi below Laden, 3 mi below
Nolansburg, 14 mi below Poor Fk (Cum. City):



V/bIONE (Harlan Co., Ky): Acc. to R.W. Cornett, 6/1912,
this po was 60 ft. s of the L&N. Dione Station . The
po was 1 mi w of the depot, 40 ft. n of Cumb. R. (SLR);
Acc. to the T&N's 1921 timetable, this sta. on the Poor

V' Fk. Br. was 2 mi above Colton, 16 mi above Baxter, 3
mi below Hiram, .6 mi below Poor Fk (Cumb. City); Acc.
to 1910 Census, Nancy J. Cornett (51), a widow, who
lived with Jonathan I.. Blair (31) & his wife Rebecca
(28) in the Upper Poor Fk. Mag. Dist. 3 but no Dione.




V DIONE (Harlan Co., Ky): Acc. to R.W. Cornmett, 11/11/
1913, this po would move 28 ft w to a pt 60 ft n of
the river, 65 ft s of L&N, 1% mi from co. line, 4 mi v
of Creech po, 4% mi e of Nolansburg po, 5 mi rnw of
Ileonard po// On 12/14/13, Rob't. W. Cornett pet. for ¢
move 28 ft w to a pt 50 £t n of the river, 6 mi nw of
Clover Lick Ck, 1% mi from co. line, 4% mi w of Creect
ro, 4% mi e of Nolansburg po, 68 ft s of W & BM RR
(sta.=Dione) // On 3/8/1918, Ibid. pet. for a move 3/4
mi e to a pt 400 £t n of the river, 60 ft n of L&N
(Dione Sta.), 2 mi from co. line, 3% mi w of Creech
po, 4% mi e of Nolansburg po, 4 mi sw of Gilley po.



eff. 3/25/1919// On 1/10/30, L.W. Harris pet. for a
move 265 ft w to a pt ca 350 £t n of Poor Fk, ca. 700

7 ft e of Grave Br, 125 ft w of L&N (Dione Sta.), 2 mi
from co. line, 3 3/4 mi w of Chad po, 5 mi e of Nolan
burg po, 3 mi n of Iouellen po// Acc. to Ibid., 8/2/

,.’1939, po was % air & 1% rd mi from Letcher Co. line,
50 ft n of US 119,500 ft n of Poor Fk, 15 mi s of
Gilley po (?), 35 mi n of Louellen po (?), 2 mi e of
Totz po, 6 mi w of Cumb. po. (SIR);



/ ; Disc, j]957 .
DIONE- (Harlan CO ); PO est.- 5/14 1912, Robt.
W. Cornett...(NA)



DIZNEY (Harlan Co., Ky): After the death of Henry
Surgener, pm (ca. 1939, acc. to RMR), the po was moved
a short distance to Paces Store with Lucy Pace, PM. It
was moved again in 1951 to the Jones Bros. store, just
above Pace's, with Milton Jones, pm., and here it close
in 1993. (Chas. W. Jones of Dizney, (via Evarts po) in
letter to me, 1/5/2004);




Y DIZNEY (Harlan Co.): Named for Elijah Frankl:
Dizney, a local school teacher whose student:
submitted his name for the mining camp. He
was Tather of Howard Dizney. (Mabel Collins,
"Pown Names Given by Railroads, Companies,
Settlers" unid. & undated Harlan newsp, ﬁli

v/ po-ests 1/15/1898, John G. Farley...6/10 15%
Roscoe F. Weaver; n.ch. (sic) to Xenvir, 1/3
1921, Ibid...(NA) (q.v. Kenvir....);

KQQAnother Dizney po est. 12/13/1922, Henry
Surgéner...(NA); E, Frank Pizney, the lst
prin, of Black Mt, Academy, a chu. sch, est.
by the Congreg. Chu., in Evarts, in 1893,
(Condon, P. 98);



DIZNEY (Harlan Co.): Kenvir was never call-
ed Dizney. Dizney is 3 mi., above Kenvir on
Yokum (sic) Creek. Never heard that there
were 2 post offices called Dlzney at 2
different times. (B.W. Whitfield, Gimtmxx )
letter to me, 6/28/1980),



\/DIZNEY (Harlan Co., Ky): "This hamlet with po is on Ky
215 and Yocum Ck, at the mouth of Bills Ck, 10% (air) m
e of I. The po was est. about % mi w on Yocum Ck on
1/15/1898 with John G. Farley, pm. In 1921 pm Roscoe F
Weaver removed it 2 mi w to the present site of Kenvir
and renamed it for that developing coal town. The
Dizney post office was re-est. in 1922 by Henry Surgene:
Dizney was probably named for E-{lijah] Frank[lin] Dizne
the 1st prin. of Black Mt. Acad., which had been est. b
the Cong. Chu. at nearby Evarts in 1893. The Dizney
comm. is now also locally referred to as Punkin Center
{(Book-P. 83);




V/$IZNEY (Harlan Co.): The name refers only to
the p.o. and the commu. is called locally
Punkin Center (pron. Sehn/er) Nothing there
before the po was est. 1922, The pm of the
1st Dizne% po foved to Black Mt. and evident-
ly took e po with him and it was ch. to
Kenvir, Then a new po was est., for the Diz-
ney commu. (sic) Dizney site at present was/
is not a coal town. Apparently the Dizney
name was given to honor the lst sch. tchr,
there. No one recalls his first name, Nowﬂ
60~65 families with 2 chu's., 2 stores, & the
apo. (from Vicki R. Creech, postmaster, Diz-

y ’ L) - . e,
who got info. £fer one of the community's
oldtlmers. in letter %o me, 5/27/1980)='.



vDIZNEY (Harlan Co., Ky): Acc. to Lucy Pace, 7/27/1939,
this po was 3 rd mi from Iee Co., Va., 2% mi e of the
Kenvir po, 100 ft n of Yocum Ck, 5% mi e of Evarts po.
(SIR) ; This po was on the s side of Ky 215 and had been
suspended by 1/1/1996; No Dizneys listed in the 1870
Census;Nor in the 1880 Census; This po was suspended
5/18/1993;



\/DIZNEY—KEI*NIR (Harlan Co., Ky): In June 1908, Allen S

Farley pet. for amove 1 mi w to a pt 5 mi w of Black
Mt. RR & Sta. (in Va.), 3 mi e of Evarts po// In May
1914, Ibid. pet. foramove 1 mi e to a pt 4 mi e of
Clover Fk, 100 ft n of Yocums Ck, 4 mi se of Evarts p
5 mi w of Black Water po (Va.)// On 10/14/16, Ibid.
pet. for a move 15 mi e to a pt 5% mi s of Clover Fk,
15 yds s of Yocums Ck, 1% mi from co. line, 55 mi e o
Evarts po, 3 mi w of Black Mt. po (Va.). Eff. 11/1/16
(Henry F. Cloud may then have been pm)// On 1/25/18,
A.L. Timms pet. for amove 1 mi w to a pt 5 mi se of
Clover Fk, on the n side of Yocums Ck, 2 mi from st.




line, 5 mi e of Evarts po, 3 mi w of Daxbyville po
(Va.) // Acc. to Henry Surgener, 3/20/1922, the po was
now Kenvir but everything else in his SIR entry is
too light to read// Acc. to no sign, 2/13/1920 or
1921 (?), this po, now Kenvir but late Dizney, was

2% mi se of Clover Fk, 100 ft s of Yocums Ck, 5 mi
from co. line, 2% mi se of Evarts po, 5 mi s of Sea-
graves po, 100 ft n of La&N// Acc. to John A. Van Pelt
8/8/39, po was 3 mi e of Ky 38, 100 £t s of Yocum Ck,
3 mi e of Evarts Sta, 1% mi e of Redbud po, 2 mi w of
Dizney po. (SIR);




/DRAPER (Harlan Co., Ry): po est. 6/4/1924 with Franze S
Newport...Disc. 1952 (POR-NA); Acc. to Franze Sigle
Newport, 3/17/1924, this prop. po would be 100 yds n of
Clover Fk, 50 ft se of 18N (Draper Sta.}, % mi ne of
Kildav po, 1 mi sw of Draper po {(?), serving the mining
camp of the J.L. Smith Coal Co. of Kildav and the
Middieton Add'n. of Evarts, Ky., with a pop. of 300
(SIR); Acc. to L&N's 1921 timetable, thls sta. was on
the Clover Fk. Br. 1 mi above Iksksmoiieusii=rk Verda,
close to Kildav, 1 mi below Keith, 10 mi above Baxter;
Sometime betw. 1947-1960 its sta. name was ch. from
Draper to Harcrow (L&N's 1960 timetable);




“'DRAPER (Harlan Co., Ky): Acc. to 1920 Census, J.E.

Draper (30), a Tenn-born salesman for a scale co. livec
with his wife Marie (22) & issue on Central St. in

Harlan;



/ DRESSEN (Hoxland Co., Ky.) one mi. 0. of
Harlan (city) on U2 221, Derived itg name
"begauge & group of rallroaders wltnessed
(involwnterily, of course) & young lady dress-
ine before on wghaded window." {R.R. Soush,
"Our Statlon Namea~-Thelr Family Trees", THE

gL & W. EMPLOYERS'! MAGAZINE, 5/1949, P, 18:3)

. Named for the city in France (sic) (Mabel Collins);
Acc. to the L&N's 1921 timetable, this sta. was on the

/ Martins Fk. Br. 1 mi s of Harlan and 3 mi n of Grays
Knob. It was jct. with Catron's Ck. Br. and 4 mi below
Gulston and 6 mi below Bardo and 4 mi below Mary Alice.
. (1960 timetable); The Sunshine po operated from 1938~
1951 (POR) ; '



Dy e 1§35

Y ELCOMB (Harlan Co.): po est. 5/2/1918,
Squire M. Wheeler..,.(NA); McComb Coal Co.
(B.W, Whitfield, Jr. in a letter to me, 5/11,
1979) ; Acc. to Squire M. Wheeler, 2/5/18, the prop.
name for this new po was McComb and it would be sexv-
ing the "town of" Wheeler Camp whose rr sta. was
Keernan or Keeman, 2% mi from the vil. of McComb with
a pop. of 150-200, % mi se of Catrons Ck,15 £t se of
L&N, 3 mi n of Pansy po, 2% mi s of Harlan po, 2% mi v
of Grays Knob po. (SIR); .No Wheeler, Keeman, or Keer
nan lived in McCombs Prec.-#25, acc. to 1920 Census;
McCombs Coal Co. served by the. Elcomb po (1924);




v~ ENGLISH CREEK (Harlan Co.): A s. bank
braneh of Poor Fk., of the Cumb. R., above
Rosspoint is called English Creek. "A band
of Indians chased a white woman from the top
of (Black Mt.) down to the creek. She jumpe:
in the creek to get away from them and was
about to drown when some white people came
along and threw some stout cords to her to
hold to and she got out on-the other sideffra
the Indians and made her escape. The woman’
name was English and after that this creek
has always went by the name of English Creek
(Thelma Kirby, Loyall, Ky., Pack Horse Libr.
Carrier, Harlan Co., as told to her by A.H.

Howard, then over 80 yrs. of age. for WPA,
mid 1930s).




1/ EST (Harlan Co., Ky): lst entry in POR for this po was
3/30/1898 with John L. Blair, pm, 9/10/98, Iear Lewis,

Disc. eff. 7/31/1908 (mail to Maynard); Re-est. 9/4/08,
Mary A. Coldiron, Disc. 6/30/1912 (mall to Poor Fork)
(POR-NA) ; heev=to—Pi6—the—po-was—est—aim=1892) Acc. to
John L. Blair, 2/1898, this prop. po would be on the s
bank of the Cum. R, 1% mi n of ILooney Ck, 5% mi e of
the Poor Fork po, 6 mi w of Maggard po, 6 mi e of
Creech po. A rural po// Acc. to Mary A. Coldiron, 8/08
po was 200 yds s of Poor Fk, 1% mi sw of lLewis Ck, 3
mi sw of Maggard po, 5 mi ne of Poor Fk. po. (SIR);

Acc. to 1900 Census, no John L. Blair or Est;



Y4
EST (Harlan Co., Ky): Acc. to 1880 C&A_I?é, Esfer Blair
(50) lived with her bro. Joseph Blair’and his wife Judy
(43) & their children. No John. But nearby were two
babies named John, in Dist. #1;



/ EVARTS (Harlan Co., Ky): "This 5th cl. city with po lie
at the confl. of Yocum Ck and Clover Fk. of the Cumb. R
6 (air) mi e of Harlan. The po was est. on 2/9/1885
with Jane Kelly, pm, and allegedly named for an early
Harlan Co. family." (Book—P. 96); The lst settlement
at the mouth of Yocum Ck. was made in 1800. Pion. fami-
lies there incl: Turners, Kelleys, Paces, Middletons,

Kings, Smiths, and Creeches. (Harlan Daily Enterprise,
2/28/1964, Pp. 20-22);




/ EVARTS (Harlan Co., Ky): a trade ctr. for much of the
Clover Fk. valley. Among large vic. mines was ¢ne main-
tained by the Peabeody Coal Co. at Black Mt. from 1919+,
A major destructive fire in Evarts in 1926. (Wm. D.
Forester, BeforeVe Forget, 1983, P. 94);




EVARTS (Harlan Co.)s Named for an army officex
{(Mabel Collins, “Town Names Given by Railroads,
Companies, Settlers" .unid. & undated Harlan
‘newsp, clipping); PO est. 2/9/1885, Jane
Kelly...(NA); Town later owned by the Black Mt,
Coal Co.; Named for a very early family. One of
/ the sons married the daughter- of Wm, & Eliz,
Cornett Campbell on Poor Fork. (Condon, P. 32)
But no listing of Evarts family in the 1850
Census), An old community, it was named for a

family,” (B.W. Whitfield, JP. in a letter to me
7 6/28/1980); a¢o ok . @1y E5(e)



v/ﬁVARTS (Harlan Co,): Wm, M. Evarts, a direct
or of Consolidation Coal Co, 1872-77. (Beach-
ley, P. 98); Ace. to 1895-6 Gaz, this place was 8 |
mi e of Harlan with a pop. of 175. Moses Turner was pn
& gen. storekeeper. Other gen. stores: (1) B.F. & A.Z.
Kelly, (2) C. Middleton, (3) Middleton, Pace & Co.
Temuel Smith had a gro. D. Brownley was RR and expr.
agent, Capps & Lyttel had a sawmill. John H. Creech
was a shingle mfr. Wm. Pace had a sawmill. Other busi-

/ nesses;Evarts had a 2000 pop. of 1100 and is an apo;

No Evarts in 1820 or 1870 Censuses nor in 1880 Census,
nor 1860 Census;



EVARTS (Harlan Co.): c¢. 1948: had 7 chu's.,
movie theater, 2 poolrooms, other businesse:s
"At the mouth of Yocum Creek where it flows
into Clover Fk., between Little Black and

v,B’ig Black NMts....Trade center for..the camps

" along the..2 creeks which extend 15 %o 20
miles above it." (Glyn Morris, LESS TRAVELEL
ROADS, NY: Vantage Press, 197F, P. 237);

/ Acc. to the LiN's 1921 Timetable, the Evarts po
served the Peabody Sta. at the jct. of Yocum Br. & Ky
and Va. line;



EVARTS (Harlan Co., Ky): In June 1907, Harvey B. Turne
pet. for a move 1 mi nearly s to a pt on Clover Fk,
serving the vil. of Evarts with a pop. ©of 250 that was
1 mi s of the po (map)// Acc. to Jas. H. Turner, 4/5/
1909, po was 200 yds e of Clover Fk, on the s side of
Yocum Ck, 5 mi e of Coxton po// On 8/20/1919, H.B.
Turner pet. for a move 120 ft s to a pt 200 £t n of
Clover Fk, 75 ft s of 1&N (B.Z. Edwards was sta.
agent), 2% mi w of Dizney po, 1 mi n of Kildav po, 3
mi sw of Lejunior po, (Evarts Sta.), eff. 9/1/19//

On 9/26/32, John C. Jackson pet. for a move 300 ft se
to a pt 600 ft n of Clover Fk, 500 ft w of Yocums Ck,



1200 ft n of I&N (Evarts Sta.), 1 mi w of Red Bud po,
1¥ mi e of Kildav po, 8 mi ne of Highsplint po// Acc.
to John (?) W. Cox, 7/24/39, po was 700 ft s of L&N &
Evarts Sta, 100 ft n of Clover Fk, 1 3/4 mi sw of Red

4 Bud po, 3% mi sw of Lejunior po, 1.8 mi se of Kildav
po. (SIR);



“FOUR MIIE (Harlan Co.): Named for its dist&nce
4 miles, from Harlan. (Mabel Collins, "Town:
Names Given by Rallroads, Companies, Settlers,
unid. & undated Harlan news. clipping); Four

"Mile Creek is 4 mi. on from mouth to court hse.

via state highway.’) (Grace Cox, Pack Horse Libr.

for WPA Harlan COm/PN ms., P. 26); Fourmile is

at (er=nr.) Keith PQ and comm. (cheek...), Keith
po aka Fourmile. oW FYoe Four Mi, Sch.
is just up from the mouth of the branch. The
branch is identified on the Harlan 15 min. map
(1919) but No Keith or Four Mi. com. is mention

d- Fz
e ( 95) . waM 7
w_',i'




/FRIEND Hﬁ (Harlan Co., Ky): po est. 9/12/1854 with Tho:
M. » 2/19/56, Washington Smith, 7/3/60, Leander
Skidmore, Disc. 10/22/1860; Re-est. 11/6/65, Ibid, Disc.
6/21/1867. (POR-NA); Re-est. sometime after 1867 becaust
P&G has it extending till 1896. check...; po est. as
Martin's Fork 8/21/1854 with Thos. M. Harris, lst pm
{(cheek) , n.ch. to Friendship, 9/12/54, Ibid... (see
above) ; Acc. to Jemy Lynch, 9/22/03, the po was not re
est. after it closed on 6/21/1867;




FROG LEVEL (Harlan Co., Ky.) "A small commu-
nity on on the outskiris of ﬁaflan, Xy., 1g called
Frog Level. Thig land used to be gwampy and
had lots of ponds on it. O0ld {timerg said you
could scarcely hear your ears there 1n uhe
spring becausze of the frogs hollering." (Grace
Howard, Harlan Co., one of Leonard Roberts'
folllore students, Wion College, 1955-56.)

Only a frog pond at oné time. Acc. o0 Ina iige

Enzor of Harlan Co., ﬁy.,_rom her seconé cousi:

Ogcar Yeary. (Ing was student of ibid.....,
1957.



/.

FULKERSON (Harlan Co., Ky): po est. 1/25/1903, Clarence
Fulkerson, 10/1/1904, Robert F. Witt, Disc. eff. 5/31/0¢
(papers to Avondale) (POR-NA); Acc. to Clarence Fulker-
son, 1/1/1903, this prop. po would be called Morley but
operated as Fulkerson, serving a vil. with a pop. of

200, 9 mi s of the Cum. R, con the n side of Martins Fk,

4 mi w of Hurst po, 55 mi e of Avondale po. (SIR);
No Fulkerscns listed in the 1900 Census;



GAP RIDGE (Harlan Co., Ky): po est. 5/4/1876 with Henry
L. Howard, 3/18/80, Eli lewis, Disc. 10/6/1880 (PCR-NA);
Acc. to Henry L. Howard, 6/17/1876, this po was 100 yds

n of Poor Fk, % mi n of English Ck, 5 mi ne of Harlan
Ct. Hse po. (SIR);



/GEORGE (Harlan Co., Ky): po est. 6/15/97, Benj. H.
Mitchell, 8/5/98, DanlelS Farmer, 1/2/04, Enoch S.

Osborne, Disc. 11/30/1909 (mail to Harlan) (POR-NA);
Acc. to Benj. H. Mitchell, 3/9/96, this prop. po would
be on the e bank of Martins Fk, on the s bank of Turtle
Ck, 4 mi rw of Cawood po, 6 mi se of Harlan po, 7% mi
se of Baxter po. Not a vil// On 2/19/02, Dan'l. S. Fam
T er pet. for amove 1 mi e to a pt 1/20 mi n of Poor Fk,
"'on the n side of Turtle Ck, 3 mi nw of Cawoocd po, 6 mi
se of Harlan po, ca. 9 mi e of Pansy po. (SIR); No Benj.

H. or George are—tistedin-35" mitehell ona UWsed 1y
<Tl (300 Camnsul:



/ GIaSS (Harlan Co., Ky): No listings for this family in
1880 and 1900 Censuses; leander Farmer, ne 1874, marr.
in 1893 Rebecca, daughter of Stephen & Sallie (Russell)
Ledford, but no Glass; Acc. to 1900 Census, Leander &
Rebecca Farmer lived in Lower Martins Fork dist. but nc

Glass;




/GIASS (Harlan Co., Ky): po est. 9/9/1898, Leander S.
Farmer, 10/10/1900, Josephus C. Green, 2/18/1901, Jas.
W. Skidmore, Disc. eff. 8/31/1901 (mail to ledford)
(POR-MA) ; Acc. to Jas. H. Iedford, 6/1898, the 1st
name prop. for this new po was Hurst and it would be
6 mi e of Martins Fk, 50 yds w of Cranks Ck, 4 mi e of
Cawood po, 4 mi s of Leonard po, 6 mi ne of Hubbard
Springs, Va. Not vil//On 3/27/01, Jas. W. Skidmore pet
for amove 1 mi ne to a pt 7 mi ne of Martins Fk, 50
yds e of Cranks Ck, 2 mi sw of Iedford po, 4% mi nw of
Cawood po, 3% mi w of Domino po (Va.), 4 mi n of 1&N.
(SIR) ;




¢ /

GRAYS KNOB (Harlan Co.): Mining commu. of c.
200 families. In 1969 there was only one mine i
operation, owned by the V&C Coal Co. Charlotte
Sta. was a sort of lgading sta. for the mine
which was then owned by the late CJ.R. Bennett.
His wife was Charlotte. ‘He also shipped what
he called "Queen Charlotte Coal", a certain kin
of coal, from his mine. Charlotte is now also
dead. The sta. called Charlotfe is no longer in
existence and her name is no longer used for a
kind of -coal. A son ofBennett's is still asso-
ciated with-the V&C Coal Co. Charlotte was his
step-mother: Clyde Bennett, Grays Knob Coal Co.
Grays Knob, Ky. He might not be willing to be
interviewed on this matter; he's rather toughy




-on the-subject since his father killed him-
self” and a year later, Charlotte was found
dead under odd circumstances. This was in the
early 1950s, The mine in question, the only
one informant knows of in the past 25 years,
was opened in 1945-6. (Amn R. -Sharp, pm of
Grays Knob, Ky. in a letter to me, 4/28/1969
,/ The Grays Knob po was est. 1/13/1916 with Paul Berger,
5/23/19, Robt. C. Scott, 9/27/22, Thos. R. Mitchell,
2/10/27, Thurman C. Olive, act and ass. ch. 4/8/27,
5/22/31, Albert Pennington, act. who ass. ch. 6/22/31
....APO (POR-NA) ;



\/GRAYS KNOB (Harlan Co., Ky): 3162 ft. elev.
Said to have been named for a pioneer settle
named Gray. (WPA P.N. notes, M. Ladd, cl94l)

j Hall E1/Jr. Hi.Sch. betw. the lower camp & thé hill cam

Named for former ownsr of camp. The camp was once calle

Wilsonburger (sic) Camp for the coal co. and was later

renamed Gray's Knob for a peak overlooking the area. The

upper camp was occupied by the mine bosses. The po was
cn the highway across the river, separated by a 2 lane
bridge from the coal camps. Recently a 4 lane highway
was built thru the lower camp. Most homes are privately
owned. The APO is in another commu. below the camp. The

sch. is current. {Eliz. H. McKinney, RR 1, Box 130,

Keokee, Va. 24265, 540-546-2178, in KY. EXPL. Vol. 16

(3), 7-8/2001, Pp. 95-6);




'§VEEAX§JEEQ§ (Harlan Co.): Wilsonberger (sic)
was named for C,E, Wilson and T.C. Berger. Th
ist bookkeeper of this mine was Robt. Scott,

78r., 1918. The company that owned this also
rowned the Mary Helen Mine. (Mabel Collins,
"Town Names Given by Railroads, Companies,
Settlers" unid. & undated Harlan newsp. clip..

v po of Grays Knob, 1/13/1916, Paul Berger...

v (NA); Named for Grays Knob of Black Mt. Char-
lotte Sta. was named for C.V. Bennett's 2nd
wife. Wilgsonburger Sta. was named for a Mr,
Wilson and a Mr. Burger who founded the
WilsomBurger Coal Co. (sic) c. 1917. (B.W.

Whitfibld, in a letter to me, 5/11/1979);




/

GRAYS KNOB (Harlan Co., Ky): "This coal town with po lie
on Martins Fk of the Cumb. R., 2 (air) mi s of H. The
po was est. on 1/13/1916 with Paul Berger, pm, and named
for a nearby elevation. The commi. has also been identi
fied as Charlotte Station, a now extinct loading sta. fo
a local mine, and was named for the 2nd wife of the mine
owner, C.R. Bennett. It has also been called Wilson—
berger Station for C.E. Wilson and T.C. Berger, who
founded the local Wilsonberger Coal Co. in 1917." (Book-
P. 124); ca. mid 1920s: Bradley Pennington ran a sawmil
at the mouth of Grays Br. of Martins Fk. Wilscn Berger
had coal mines at G.K. ca. mid & late 1920s. (KY EXPL.
vol. 17 (2), 6/02, P. 85);




GRAYS KNOB (Harlan Co., Ky): ca. 1/1/1996, po was on

US 421 S. Browning AC (POR); po was in op'n. by 1/1/96
\-but not by 8/2000; Acc. to the L&N's 1921 timetable,

this sta. was on the Martins Fk. Br. 3 mi above Dressen
,a short distance above the Coburn Sta. and a mi. below
, Chevrolet, 4 mi above Harlan;



'GRAYS KNOB (Harlan Co., Ky): Acc. to Paul Berger, 10/4/
1915, this prop. po would be ca. 500 ft s of Martins Fk,
300 £t e of Mill Ck, 100 ft s of an ext. of the L&N. Thic
name will also be given to the sta. & to the mining camp
being est. by the Wilson-Bexrger Coal Mining Co. It will
be 4% mi s of Harlan po, ca. 6 mi nw of Cawood po// In
6/1931, Albert Pennington, act. pm, pet. for move 680 yds
e to a pt on Martins Fk, 680 ft from the Coburn (rr) Sta.
2 mi w of Chevrolet po, 25 mi e of Harlan po. Eff. 6/1.
Reason: "coal mine was worked out and will close." (map)
Robt. Hampton was rr agent// On 9/17/31, Ibid. pet. for &
move 600 yds e to a pt on the n bank of Martins Fk, 600
yds n of L&N (Ccburn Sta.), 2 mi w of Chevrolet, 3% mi e
of Harlan// Acc. to Ibid, 7/24/39, it was 2040 ft n of
Coburn Sta & I&N tracks, 2 mi & of Chev, 3? mi s (?) of

Howdon. (oer); W

O A



GREASY CREEK (Harlan Co.): "Allegedly named
pecause of the grease which flowed into the
creek from the carcass of a slain bear."
(Glyn Morris, LESS TRAVELED ROADS, NY:
Vantage Press, 1971, P. 77); Many bears in
that val. were troublescme to early settlers. They
were killed and their meat, etc. were washed into
the stream causing "a greasy film to form on the
surface" of. the water. (Mrs. Chester Rankin of Iou,
Ky., once a H. Co. tchr, to WPA. Bird C. Greer, 3/4,
1941) ;

1



/ GRCSS (Bell and Harlan Co's., Ky): [Late in Bell Col/

4/21/1921 in Harlan Co. with Gillis Howard, pm, Disc.

8/31/1921 (mail to Redfox) (POR-NA); Acc. to A.B. Gros
7/1/02, this po was in Bell Co., 8% mi up Straight Ck
from the river, on the n side of the ck, 3% mi e of Iock
po, 4% mi w of Pass po. Not vil. but only a rural po//
On 4/18/16, Mary Sewell pet. for amove 1 3/4 mi ne to a
pt. still in Bell Co, 200 ft s of Straight Ck, 1% mi
from co. line, 7 mi ne of Kettle I. po, 5 mi n of Burch-
field po.// On 10/24/19, Dan'l. Howard pet. for a move 4
mi e tc a pt in Harlan Co., 5 mi n of river, 150 £t n of
Straight Ck, 2 mi ne of B. Co. line, 12 mi e of Kettle I
po, 5 mi nw of Wallins Ck po. Eff. at any time. EM re-
signed & patrons wanted a more convenient po. (SIR);



/, GROSS (Harlan Co., Ky): Acc. to 1920 Census, several
Gross families lived in Prec. 20 (Pine Flat) incl. Bige
G. Gross (71) & wife Mary J. (65);



GULSTON (Harlan Co.)s Pansy=7 mis from H
(Mabel Green Condon, A HIST¥ EF HARLAN GOE:"I‘lar
Nashvilles Parthenon Press, 1962, P. 48);
v'po est, as Qulston, 6/27/1927, Mary E. Vaughn
«+«o(NA}; 1st called Pansy for the flower. "An
engineer of the L&N RR .Co. by the name of Gull
called it Gulls Town, shortened to Gulston
when -a small sta. was established in the earl;
twenties." (D.E. Hensley, Jr., ‘pm, in letter 3
to .Delphine Haley, 6/23/1975); Acc. to 1930 Cens,
Pansy had a pop. of 100 (WPA); Gulstor: was an apo ca.
winter 1997-8 (Acc. to a photo in KY-EXPL., Vol. 12 (7},
1/1998, P. 108); Ca. 1/1/1996, po was on Ky 72; po was
not in op'n. by 2000 (PCR); .



VHARLAN (Harlan Co.., Ky. ): 1st setilers of
the county were the family of Sam'l. Howard
(then spelled Hoard) who arrs from Va. in
1796 and settled on the site.of present (fuxx
Harlan...s(Wm. C. Kozee, PIONEER FAMILIES OF

EASTERN AND SOUTHEASTERN KY. Balti: Geneal
Publ. Co., 1973, P, 10); po est. as Harlan
/ Ct. Hse, 9/19/1828 John N, Martins..ch. to
Spurlock, 9/14/1861 -Josiah B. Spurlock;. ch.

to Harlan 50 HY) 11/3/1865, Wllkerson M.
Howard....(NA);



/HARIAN (Harlan Co., Ky): "This 4th. cl. city and seat of
H. Co. is on US 421 and the fks. of Cum. R....By 1819,
when the settlement became the new co's. seat, it was
already called Mt. Pleaant, for reasons unknown. The po
was est. on 9/19/1828 as Harlan Ct. Hse. with John N.
Martin, pm, since the Mt. P. name had been pre-empted b
another Ky. po. In the 1860s the po was called Spurlock,
probably for the pm then, one Josiah B. Spurlock, but in
1865 it adopted the name Harlan, which it has borne ever
since. Tho' inc. as Mt. Pleasant in 1884, the town was
locally called Harlan Town or Harlan Ct. Hse. It was re
inc. as Harlan in 1912. The name honored Maj. Silas
Harlan (1752-82) who fought with Gen. GRC and was killed
at the Battle of B.L." (Book-P. 131);




./ HARLAN (Harlan.Co.,, Ky.)

J

Orig. called Mit. Pleasant. DK when n-ch. to
honor Major Silas Harlan, a Rev., War officer
‘who was killed at the Battle of Blue Licks
Springs. (RR South, "Our Station Names" I&N
MAG., 5/1949, P. 18.) The co. and town were
named for Maj. Silas Harlan, ne Va. 1752. To
Ky. 1774. Est. Harlan's Sta. 7 mi. s. of
Harrodsburg on Salt R., 1778. A spy for Geo. R.
Clark in I11. campaign, 1779. Fell at the Bat.
of Blue Licks, 1782 and buried there. {Highway

mar?er at ¢t. hse, ace, to GUIDE, No. 785, P.
117);




See- Lafayette Dunlap article in the KHR 9/
1914) re-Harlan which was named for the.
Harlan famlly who “originally spelled its nam
Haerlen, Ma name still. to be found in Hollan
though the suggestion has been made by a
cultural Hollander that it may be a mis-.
spelling of Haerlem, a well known Dutch city
(Mary Middleton Nicholas, "Significant Names
of Ky;{ unpub. typewritten manu. in flles of
KHS th?‘ “Names: Geog:Misc,)

1§20 -1.



/ EBRIAN (Harlan Co., Ky): On US 421 & 119. The lst
permanent settlers of the future town were Sam'l. &
Chloe Howard in 1796. They sold 12 acres for the co's.
seat in 1819 and the town was platted in 1820. It was
named Mount Pleasant for an Indian mound. Inc. 1876.
After 1885 the town was extended east up Clover Fk.
The city's name was changed from Mt. P. to Harlan in
1912 (to conform to the po's & co's. name) Limits ex—
tended s, up Martins Fk. after WWII. 1980 annexed.
The Clover Fk. diversion tunnels built for flood con-
trol ca. 1990. 4th cl. city with a 1990 pop. of 2686.
(Jas. S. Greene III in KY. ENCY. 1992, P. 408);




. V'HARLAN (Harlan Co.): Inc. 4/15/1884 as Mt.
Pleasant (ACTS 1883/4, Vol. 1, P. 1413); n.
ch. to Harlan, 3/13/1912 (ACTS, 1912, P. 22
Named by Sam'l. Héard, Harlan's .first settl
He was a Rev. War. vet. (B.W. Whitfield of
Brookside, Ky. in letter to me, 5/11/1979);

/ The Mount Pleéasant p.o. operated from 1818 to '1823.
It became the Harlan Ct. Hse. po in 1824; This town
is 161 mi, se-of downtown.lexington (via I-75, Ky 80,
and the rd s from Hyden); 2000 pop. = 2081; The city
had a 1930 pop. of ca. 5,000; The Mt. Pleasant po
was est. 9/20/1818 with John Pate, pm, 6/9/20, John
Ridgeway till 1823; The L8N arr. here 1911 ;(Herr) ;

P



HARTAN (Harlan Co.): 1lst called Mt. Pleasant
n.ch. to Harlan in 1912 for reasohs never
sufficiently explained in pet. to the Ky. Leg
Believed that the town's B'd. of Trustees
felt that to progress, the commu, should have
a name that was "less small townish" than M.P
Harlan was selected as it was the county's
name. As such it was named for Maj. Silas
Harlan, Rev, War vet. DK why The Mt. P. namé
was originally applied but it was, back in
1819. Pet., via Hs. Bill 6, was passed by the
Leg. on 4/1/1912. "Board Sought New Name for
Mt. Pleasant in 1912" HARLAN DAILY ENTERPRISE
50th anmi. ed. 9/23/1962, P. 117=8); Tl oz

s Aot Ao Mosdoan 0. 615 HERIE




VHARLAN (Harlan Co.): Pop. 4327 (1930). 1st
called Mt. Pleasant Renamed for Maj. Silas
Harlan, to Ky. from Va. 1774, Killed at the
Battle of Blue Licks, 8/19/1782. Town in val.
betw. Big and Little Black Mts..at the jet.
of the 3 forks of the Cumb. R, Settled 1819
by Virginians led by Sam'l. Hoard (or Howard’
Little growth for 1st 100 yrs. RR came 1911
and town became prosperous timber shlpplng o
and center for large scale coal prod'n. (KY.
A GUIDE TO THE. BLUEGRASS STATE, Fed.. Writers
Proj. of WPA, Ky., ¢l939, U. Ky., reprlnted ')
Hastlngs Hse., 1954 P. 441); - _




v/ BBRLAN (Harlan Co., Ky): Acc. to L.J. Skidmore, 10/21,
1879, the po was Harlan Court House and was serving
the commi. locally called Mount Pleasant, 1% mi s of
the river, on the n bank of Clover Fk, 5 mi w of Gap
Ridge po// Bcc. to M.B. Hurst, 12/20/98, the town's
name is still Mount Pleasant and its po was 1/8 mi n
of the river, at the confl. of Clover & Martin Forks
to form the Cumb. R. Poor Fk. joins the r. 15 mi n
of the town// Acc. to Nannie L. Ward, 4/27/14, po was
13 ft s of Clover ¥k, 1 mi se of Catrons Ck, 1750 ft
n of rr, 1% mi se of Baxter po, 2 mi w of Kitts po, 6
mi se of Bledsoe po// Acc. to no sign, 7/25/39, po




was on Ky 123, 1500 ft n of 1L&N, 1000 ft n of Clover
Fk, 3/4 mi ne of Sunshine po, 2.2 mi w of Kitts po,

2% mi s of Baxter po, 3.8 mi n of Grays Knob po. (map)
(SIR) ;



J

BARLAN.- (Harlan.Co., Kentucky)

In-¢1875, only ‘10 families there and it was
known as Mount Pleagant ,Ky. Name changed by
the Btate Legigl. in 191.2. (Elmon Middleton,
HARLAN COWNTY, XENTUCKY, Big Lgurel, Va.:
James Taylor Adams, 1934, P, 50), 1st called
Mt. Pleasant by earliest explorers from Va. or
N.C. At the confluence of the Clover Fk, Martj
Fk., and Catron Creeks where they formed the
headwaters of the Cumb. R. Poor Fk. joins the
river 1 mi. away at Baxter. (Pp. 20—1? Inc. ir

1876, PO named Harlan Ct. Hse. since there was

another Mt. P. in Ky. But people would call it
Harlan Town or Harlan Ct. Hse. until 1912 wher
it was re-inc., as Harlan.(P, 21) Until then




the town was still officially called Mt.
Pleagant. (P. 22)}.... (A HIST. OF HARLAN CO.

by Mabel Green Condon, Nashvilles Parthenon
Press, 1962); Acc. to 1876-7 Gaz, the Harlan Ct.Hse

po served Mt. Pleasant, a vil. with a pop. of 75, on
Clover Fk. Alsc had grist & saw mill and several other
m;ills nearby. Stores: (1) Jones & Bailey, (2) C.C.
Qaillman, (3) D.C. Skidmore, (4) D.H. Smith, (5) T.S.
Ward; Another listing of late 1870s stores incl: Jones
& Bailey, (2) Quillen & Howard, (3) Skidmore & Jones,
(4) Noble Smith, (5) T.S. Ward. G.W. Blackburn had a
boots/shoes business. A.L. Harris had a gro. & hotel
as did D.C. Skidmore. Cther businesses;




\/HIGHSPLINT (Harlan Co., Ky): "This coal town and sta.
are on the L8N RR's Cunb. Val. Div., at the m. of Sea-
graves Ck, a br. of Clover Fk. of the Cunb. R, & 10%
(air) mi ene of H. The commu. & its recently disc. po,
est. on 2/17/1918, with John D. Casey, pm, were named
for the High Splint Coal Co. which had opened a mine in
that vic. The rr was completed to this pt. in 6/1919
and the sta. est. there was lst called Seagrave." (Book-
P. 140); Acc. to the L&N's 1921 timetab e, the Seagzave
Sta. was on the Clover Fk. Br. 2 mi above Shields Sta &
2 mi below Lisbon Sta. BAcc. to 1960 timetable, it was
6 mi above Bvarts, 2 mi below Closplint 2 Sta. and 4 mi
below Closplint Sta;



i

y”HIGHSPLINT (Harlan Co., Ky): Acc. to Wm. R. Ballon,
7/2/1917, this prop. po would be 200 ft s of Clover
¥k, 50 ft w of Sagamore (?) Ck, 6 mi e of Evarts po//
Acc. to C.H. Jones, 7/24/39, po was 2 air mi from the
lee Co. line, 200 ft sw of Highsplint (rr) Sta, 75 ft
e of LaN, 300 £t e of Clover FkK R, 2 mi sw of Louellen
po, 15 mi se of Benito po. (SIR); Served by the High
Splint po (1924) were the High Splint Coal Co's. High
Splint Mine and Harlan Mine;



vHIGHSPLINT (Harlan Co.): named for the'séam
of coal. (Mabel Collins, "Town:Names Given by
Railroads, Companies,” Settlers" unid. & undate
Harlan news. clipping); aka Seagrave, 1/6 rail
i. from Shields, Ky. The rr was. completed to

\/Ehis point 6/21/1919. (Kirieaid A. Herr, L&N RR
1964, P. 204); po est. as Highsplint, 2/7/191
John D.Casey...(NA); High Splint Coal Co.
1919. (sic) (B.W. Whitfiedd, Jr. of Broockside
Ky. in a letter %o me, 5/11/1979);
Seagraves of H. Co. (ca. 1920);

Joseph



H-or | aon
HIGHSPLINT POST OFFICE (Hereim Co., Ky): Acc. to C.H.
Jones, 10/5/1926, this po was in the e part of the
mining camp, 200 ft. e of Clover Fork, 1 mi e of
Ridgeway po, 2 mi sw of Louellen po, 2 air mi w of
the co. line. (SLR); po est. 2/7/1918, John D. Casey,
*10/26/18, Columbus C. Horton, 3/31/20, Elmer H. Smith,

7/8/1925, Chas. H. Jones, act. and a.ch. 11/4/25..,.Disc
1974 (POR-NA) ; The Clover Fk. Museum heie 1 e EG

coal op's. Now a commu. ctr. Built ca. 1930. (KY EXPL.
Vol. 15 (9), 3/2001, P. 11); Seagraves=the rr sta. for
Highsplint. The 1.6 mi were conpleted from Shields to her
on 6/21/1919 (L&N);




VHIRAM (Harlan Co.): Named for landowner,
Hiram Lewis., (Mabel Collins, "Town Names Given
by Railroads, Companies, Settlers" unid. & un-
dated Harlan newsp. clipping)i Acc. to Frances E.

/ Creech, 2/11/1943, this prop. po would be serving the
vil. of Chad with a pop. of 500, and Hiram Sta. (a non-
agency sta. 125 ft away, po would be 60 ft s of L&N,
300 ft n of river, 3 mi w of Cumb. po, 3 mi e of Dicne
po, 6 mi s of Gordon po. The vil. of Chad had been de-
stroyed by fire. (SIR);



‘HIRAM (Harlsn Cownty, Ky.) a railroad station
named for Hiram Lewlg. Acc. %o Fred Pemnington,
his grandeon. (Betty Cusick, Evarts, Ky. A
student of Leonard Roberts, Union College,
1856.) ; Acc. to 1900 Census, Hiram Lewis (1/58) & wife
Rhoda E. (12/58) lived in Upper Poor Fk. Prec. next to

/ Campbell H. Hurst (12/72) & wife Frances (11/74). Anothe
Hiram Lewis (12/59) lived with wife Hannah (11/59) in
Lower Poor Fk nr. other Iewises; acc, to 1920 Census,

Hiram C. Lewis (61) & wife Rhoda (61), a farmer, lived ir
Prec. #4, Upper Poor Fk;



'

HIRAM (Harlan Co., Ky): Hiram Iewis and his wife Rhoda
(nee Ely) had a water mill on Poor Fk. They maintained
the po (on the Cornett family in Harlan Mt. Roots, Vol.
3 (3), Spr. 1989, P. 101); His dates: 1882-1934. He was
son of James Jarrett (Jared) & Malinda (Lynda) (nee
Cornett) Ilewis. (Ibid., Pp. 110-11);




/HIRAM (Harlan Co., Ky): "This hamlet and sta. on the L&
RR's Cumb. Val. Div. are on US 119 and the Poor Fk. of
the Curb. R, 16 (ailx) mi ene of Harlan. The sta., est.
around 1920, was named for landowner Hiram lewis. The
area does not have its own po." (sic) (Book-P.'142);
The Hiram Bap. Chu. was next to the Blair Gen'l. Merch.
& po. (KY. EXPL. Vol. 12 (10}, 4/1998, P. 21); Acc. to

/the L&N's 1921 timetables, this sta. on the Poor Fk. Br.
was 19 mi above Baxter, 3 mi above Dione, 1 mi below

/Chad, 3 mi below Poor Fork Sta.; PO operated betw. 1943
and 1964 when it became an RB till 1965 (POR); Acc. to
1910 Census, Hiram C. Lewis (52) & wife Rhoda (51) liver
in Upper Poor Fk. Mag. Dist. 3; Acc. to 1910 Census, an-
other Hiram Lewis (52) & wife Hannah R. (48) lived nr
other Iewis fam's. in Poor Fk Prec. 5, Mag. Dist. 4;



/HOLMES MILL (Harlan Co., Ky): po was est. 3/24/1926
with Wiley Holmes, lst pm.... APO (POR-MA); Acc. to
Wiley Holmes, 7/24/25, this prop. po would be betw.
Black Mt. & Cumb. Mt, 50 ft n of Clover Fk, 6 mi w of
Clover Fk. po, 6 mi e of Louellen po// Acc. to Ibid.,
7/27/39, powas 1 air & 8 rd mi from Iee Co, 20 ft n
of Clover Fk. R, 5 mi e of Closplint po, 6 mi w of
Keokee po (Va.). (SIR); Wiley Holmes ran the local
mill. (Mabel Collins); po on Ky 38 (1/1996); Acc. to
1920 Census, Wiley Holmes (36) & wife Lilly (28) lived
with her father Hampton Short (70) in Klondike Prec. 3
Wiley was a civil eng. in a ccal mine;



HURST (Harlan Co., Ky): Elijah Hurst represented the
co. in the Ky. House 1869-71; Acc. to 1900 Census,
Felix P. Fee (ne 12/56) & wife Martha (2/67) lived in
the Upper Martins Fk prec. nr. other Fees but not nr
any Hursts who were then living in the Upper Poor FkK &
Mt. P. districts; Acc. to 1920 Census, Walt Middleton
(27) lived with mother Mintie (50) and bro. James (23)
and sister Mary (16) & br. Fred (12) in Baxter Prec. #:
but not nr any Hurst families; Acc. to 1920 Census,
McKinley Hurst (21) & wife Dora E. and bro. Jessie B.
(sic) Hurst lived on Clover St. in Harlan. He was a
janitor of a barber shop;



v/ HURST (Harlan Co., -Ky) : po est. 5/14/1900, Felix P. Fe¢
2/25/07, John Scott, Jr., 1/2/08, Sam'l. L. Blanton,
Disc. eff. 5/31/08 (mail to Hagan, Iee Co., Va.), re—
est. 7/14/08, Felix P. Fee, Disc. 6/15/10 (mail to
Hagan) (PCR-NA); Acc. to Felix P. Fee, 3/1/00, this
prop. po would be 100 yds n of Martins Fk, 4% mi s of
Pansy po, 3% mi n of Hagan po, 6 mi w of Smith po//
Acc. to John Scott, 2/1907, po was 5 rods s of Martins
Fk, 1 3/4 mi n of L&N, 3 mi nw of Hagan po & sta, 7 mi
s of Pansy po, 4 mi sw of Smith po// Acc. to F.P. Fee,
6/1908, po was 3 mi n of L8N, 3 mi n of Hagan Sta, 5
mi s of Pansy po. (SIR):



/IMLAY (Harlan Co., Ky): po est. in Leslie Co. Acc. to
Richard L. Wilson, 1lst pm, it would be serving the Bi¢
Branch locality, 6 mi e of Helton, on Beech Fk. The
po officially opened 6/1/1893. On 2/20/94 Wilson was
succeeded by Jas. Duff, who was succeeded on 5/11/95
by Eliz. Duff, and on 2/4/96 by Jane Duff. On 1/21/
1904 John J.C. Napier became pm. (POR); Could the po

/ have been named for the early American writer Gilbert
Imlay? Little is known of his life. He may have been
born in NJ ca. 1754. After serv. in Rev, to Ky. by
1783. Acq. land grants of over 28,000 acres & penned
"Topographical Description of the Western Territory
of No. America" (pub. in 1793) and, in that yr, a



novel "The Emigrants". His 28,000 acres incl.4200
acres on an unknown ck. in the Licking Val. (surv.
in 1784) . His writings are said to have encouraged
early Ky. settlement. But he may have left the terr.
by 1786. (Jas. C. Klotter in KY ENCY. 1992, P. 451);
He was briefly a surveyor with John May at the Falls
of the Chio. Exs ILand speculations led to the loss
of his claims and a hasty departure from Ky & the US
by 12/1785. (From DAB and Col. Chinn's Ky, Pp. 592-5



/ IMIAY (Harlan Co., Ky): 1/21/1904, John J. Napier, 2/24
1911, Geo. W. Bailey, 2/28/12, Hiram B. Davis. Disc.
7/31/1913 (mail to Bledsce) {POR-NA); PO was est. in
1893 in Ieslie Co. (check...); Acc. to John J.C. Napier
5/19/1904 this po was now in Harlan Co., 100 yds n of

? Buck Fk.% % mi from Leslie Co. line, 3% ml s of Helton
po, 3% mi n of Bledsoe po// In Nov, 1911, Ibid. pet.
for amove 1 mi e to a pt 5 mi w of Incline 1(30 (SIR) ;
* Qoo (7) It was % mi within H. Co. (Acc. to
wﬁﬁ' nglnfrﬁi, gledsoe PO, 6/14/1904 SIR); Check Wash.
Co., Ky. sources for Imlay, a perscnal name there;



/ INCLINE (Harlan Co., Ky): Acc. to Harrison Cornett,
5/24/05, this prop. po would be serving the McKnight
locality, 4 mi n of the Cumb. R, on the w side of
Laurel Ck, 3 mi e of Bledsce po, 6 mi w of Jane po,

6 mi s of Napier po// Acc. to Jos. G. Creech, 11/29/
1915, it was 4 mi from river, on lLaurel Ck// Acc. 1o
Jana M. Creech, 11/13/16, it was 3 mi n of Poor Fk,
100 yds n of Laurel Ck, 4 mi from co. line, 6% mi w o
Pine Mt. po, 4 mi e of Bledsoe po// On 12/29/1918,
Geo. W. Holbrook pet. for a move 3/4 mi w to a pt 200
yds w of Laurel Ck, 5 vds n of Wolfpen Br, 3 mi from
co. line, 5% mi ne of Rosspoint po, 7% mi w of Pine



Mt. po, 5 mi se of Bledsoe po// On 5/22/22, Ibid.
pet. for a move 400 yds e to a pt 100 vds n of
Laurel Ck, 3 mi from Leslie Co. line, 7 mi n of Ross-
point po, 6% mi w of Pine Mt. po, 5 mi s of Napier
po, eff. 6/12/1922// Acc. to Ibid, 9/26/39, po was 3
mi from Leslie Co. line, 30 ft n of Laurel Ck. (SIR);



/INCLINE (Harlan Co., Ky): po est. 6/21/1905, Harrison
Cornett, 1/6/06, Campbell E. Ball, 5/14/08, Jos. G.
Creech, 10/2/16, Jona M. Creech, 1/11/1919, Geo. W.
Holbrook. . .Disc. 1951 (PCR-MNR) ;



INDIAN HILL (Harlan County, Xy.) "This is a
TQovely hill on which I used to play. We were
told that Indians were buried there. We tried
to find some but never did." (Ina Mae Enzor
of Harlan Couwnty, Ky. gtudent of Leonard
Robertg, Uhion College, 1957.) -



/INSULL (Harlan Co., Ky): Acc. to C.L. Gurley, 12/29/24,
the proj prop. name for this new po was Fee to serve a vil.
of that name with a pop. of 500, 50 yd: yds from the Rocky
Branch Sta. (a non-agency pass. stop), 3 mi e of the
Curb. R, 50 yds s of Pucketts Ck, 75 yds s of L&N
{The Pucketts Ck. Br..with its Insull Sta.), 3/4 mi e
of Black Snake po, 1% mi w of Path Fork po, 3%-4 mi s
of Cardinal po, 50 yds from Bell Co.// Acc. to Ibid.,
7/25/39, po was % mi from B. Co, 1/8 mi e of Puckett Ck
4 mi s of Cun. R & Blackmont, 2 mi n of Path Fork po,
5mi n of Alva po, 5 mi s of Hulen po. (SIR);



i/ INSULL (Harlan Co., Ky): On 10/4/1926, C.L. Gurney (?)
pet. for a site ch. 125 ft. se to a pt. 3 mi e of the
Cumb. R., 100 ft. s of Pucketts Creek, 3/4 mi e of Blac
Snake po (Bell Co.), 1% mi w of Path Fork (sic) po, 2%
air mi ne of Balkan po (Bell Co.), 150 ft. s of the L&
Insull Sta. 600 air ft. from the co. line. (SLR); The
Fee Sta. on the L&N's Pucketts Ck. Br. (1960) was 3 mi
from Blackmont and 5 mi below Alva;



Vs, (YT a—

Vv INSULL (Harlan Co.): po est. as Insull, 7/24
1925, Canda (sic) L. Gurley...(NA); (" len/
s21") (Red Harp, 3/24/1979); Samuel Insull wa
a Chicago-based owner of  Harlan & Bell Co. coa

, Mines; Sam'l. Insull, ne Lendon, Engl, 11/11/
1859, To US 2/1881. Was Thos, Edison's pvt.
sec, and had charge of all his busi, affairs,

Gen'l. mgr. of his Edison Machine Works, 2nd
veep in charge of manu, & sales of Edison Gen,
Elect. Co. &802-19072) and later veep of Gen'l,
Eleet, Co.,, pres. of Commonwealth Electrie Co,
1892-1907 & of Commonwealth Edison Co. from
11:907+ Lived in Chi, (WHO'S WHO IN BMER, 1920-1

- * 1468); . .



JANE (Harlan Co., Ky): Acc. to 1870 Census, Wm. Nolen
{28} mar. Jane Howard, daughter of Sam'l. & Sarah
(Pace) Howard. Her dates=1839-1920. They lived in Dist
8 (Big Rock po). They lived nr Chadwell Nolen (25), so
of Jos. & Mary Nolan, and thus bro. of Wm. Chad's date
=1845-1923. Chad marr. in 1863 to Iouisa (1845-1918),
daughter of Jas. & Eliz. (Clay) Turner. Their daughter
Mary Jane (1867-1906) mar. Jas. Farmer Skidmore in
1887. Elhanon Nolen (1862-1941) was a nephew of Wm. &

Chad. Nolen....;



JANE (Harlan Co., Ky): Mary Jane (called "Jennie")
Nolan, daughter of Chadwell & Louisa Jane (Turner)
Nolan (1867-1906) was the lst wife of James Farmer
Skidmore in 1867 (?) His dates=1865-1943. (John Skid-
more of Harlan Co., Ry by Wm. F. Skidmore & Holly Fee,
1987, P. 16); Acc. to 1900 Census, Jas. Skidmore

(ne 9/1865) & wife Jane (11/67) lived in Mt. P. Prec.
He was a lumber agent. Bnother Jane (2/58) was the wif
of Jerome Skidmore (5/50) and they lived with their .
son James (4/87) also in the Mt. P. Prec. next door tc
Chad J. Nolen (5/81) & wife Mollie (2/80);



v/ JANE (Harlan Co., Ky): On 8/13/1912, Jas. C. Creech
pet. for a site ch. 1 mi ne to a pt. 3 mi n of Poor Fk
and ¢ mi e of Greasy Creek, 4 mi n of Nolunsburg (sic)
po, 17 mi from co. line. (SLR); Acc. to Elhanan M.
Nolen (sic), 9/30/1899, po was 2% mi n of Poor Fk, on
Greasy Fk (sic), ca. 9% mi n of Nolansburg po, not a
vil. (SIR) [See Pine&:Mt. po....]; Jane Nolen marr.
Jeems Skidmore (Condon, P. 24); Was she the daughter of

V' Ethanon Nolen?; Sometime betw. 1947 and 1960 the Jane
Sta. was renamed Anco No. Two (1960 L&N timetables) ;




JANE (Harlan Cowmty, Ky.) p.o. est. 10/24/

T899 with Elhanan M. Nolen, lat pm (g.v.)

Name changed to Pine Howntain but d.k. when.

Y Check.vs. (Aoc. to the Ngtionmal Archives).
Pine Mt. po est. 5/4/1876, Jonathan Cornett;
Disc, 1/20/188F  Jane po est. 10/24/1899,
Elhanan M., Neolen (sic); 4/2/1908, Wm. Creech..
6/29/1912, James C. Creech; n.ch. (sic) to
Ping Mt. 10/20/1919, Elhanan M. Nolan (sic)...
NA); Pine Mountain's last pm was Bessie M. Watking

v and it closed in 1975. (POR-MA); Acc. to 1920 Census,
Chad Nolen, Sr. and wife Jane (44) lived in{@axter Prec

#2, a farmer;




Chadwell F.C. Nolen (sic), son of Jos. Nolen,
Dr. who may have been the recipient of a
grant in the present Harlan & Bell Co's, His
daughter, Mary Jane Nolen, married James F.
Skidmore of another pioneer Harlan Co. family
The Nolen grant included the site of Middles-
boro & most of both counties. (Ace. to a
letter by Robt. A. Skidmore, Jr. to the Hist®
Records Sect., office of Ky. Sec, of State,
7/19/1965, on file Nolin Files (sic), KHS.
His address then: 721 Neil Av., Lancaster, 0)
Ace. to 1870 Census, Chadwell Nolan (sic), ag
25, a farmer, was married o Louisid, 25;.bot

born in Ky. Had children then: James, 6; Benj
5; Mary Jane, 3; and Wm., 1; . Cra T )




‘/JONESBURGH (Harlan Co., Ky): po est. 10/2/1886, John L.
Jones; Disc. 5/13/96 (mail .to Harlan); But operated as
Jonesburg from 1894 to closing. (POR-NA); Acc. to John
L. Jones, 8/27/86, this prop. po would be serving the
Gap Ridge locality, on the n side of Poor Fk, 1 3/4 mi
s of English Ck, 7 mi from Harlan po, 10% mi w of
Creech po. (SIR); Acc. to 1879-80 Gaz, Gap Ridge was a
rural po. Henry L. Howard was pm, gen.storekeeper, &
shoemaker.:Hugh H. Boggs was cocoper and carpenter as was
John N. Howland;. Jones Creek was named for Stephen Jones
Rev. War vet. from Va. Nr. Verda. (Condon, P. 33); The
ck. is 6% mi up Clover Fk; Acc. to 1895-6 Gaz, po was 7%
mi from H. John L. Jones was pm-storek. Flour mills: (1)
J.H. Metcalfe, (2) J.A. Miller, (3) D.C. Mullins;



KaYU (Harlan Co., Ky): Does this refer to the Kentucky
Utilities Company? At least by 1915;



CMANUAMND
‘ 1/ an Co., Ky): Acc. to Rebecca Ball Bailey,
77871938/ this prop. po would be srving a place called

Bmling (2}, 600 ft mw of the river, 30 ft e of 4 Mi.
Ck, 700 ft nw of LeN, 1% mi ne of Dayhoit po, 2% mi sw
of Ioyall po. (SIR); Tts mouth was 4 mi from the ct.
hse. (Grace Cox, Pack Horse Carrier, ca. late 1930s);
The Keith po on US 119 had been suspended by 1/1/96;
Acc. to the L&N's 1921 timetables, the Keith Sta. on
the Clover Fk. Br. was ll mi above Baxter, 1 mi above
Kildav, and less than a mile below Evarts; The po was
est. 1938; Acc. to 1920 Census, Rebecca Bailey (23)
lived with husband Wm. L. Bailey {28) in the Baxter Pre

#22 but not nr any Keith families; The Resthaven Cem.
is at Keith;




/KEITH (Harlan Co., Ky ended 8/31/

. ) e 1Eno was sus
1950 {(POR); Emerling Station is 2 mi below Loyall &
6 mi above Kerr Sta. (1960 L&N timetable) ;




v KELLIOKA (Harlan Co., Ky): po est. 8/26/1901, John P.
Kelly, 2/3/1903, J.S. Sergent (xescinded 7/4/03), 10/1/
1904, Carter C. Howard ({(declined), 2/24/05, Henry Nolen
(sic), Disc. eff. 2/29/09 (mail to Rosspoint); Re-est.
5/29/09, Josiah L. Nolan (sic), 4/5/11, Elihugh L.
Howard (sic), Disc. 2/2/14 (mail to Rosspoint); Re-est.
2/4/1920, Paul M. Sherwin (?) (failed to qualify), 6/12
1920, Geo. D. Batcheler, Disc. eff. 3/31/1921 (mail to
Nolansburg) (POR-NA); Acc. to the I&N's 1921 timetable,
this sta. on the Poor Fk. BrY was 12 mi above Baxter,
mi above Nolansb., 2 mi below Colton (Totz); Acc. to
1900 Census, John P. Kelly (8/28) & wife Martha (10/31
lived in the Yocums Ck Prec;



/ REILIOKA (Harlan Co., Ky): Acc. to J.L. Nolan, 5/1909,
po was on Poor Fk, 1 mi n of Englishes Ck, 4 mi s of
Incline po. Not a vil// Acc. to Elighue L. Howard, 2/18
1912, po was 150 ft n of Poor Fk, 30 £t e of Turkey Br,
58 ft n of L&N, 1 3/4 mi e of Rosspoint po, 6 mi sw of
Nolansb. po, 4 mi se of Incline po// BAcc. to T.M.
Sherwin, 8/25/19, po was 150 ft e of Poor Fk, 3 mi from
co. line, 200 ft e of L&N (Kellioka Sta.), 15 mi n of
Nolansb. pod mi s of Dione po. (SIR); PO on the n side

of Poor Fk,[ opp. mouth of Cance Hol. (Hodge, 1912);



4&ENTENIA (Harlan Co.): The Kentenia Corp., a
land compdny, "played a major role in(Harlan
County's) ind. dev. In 1870 Edward H. Davis
of Philadelphia had .acquired-an 86,000 acre
tract in Harlan & Bell Cods....Following com-
pletion (of a geol. survey of this area in 190:
3), the Kentenia Corp. was org. as a holding
co. to clear title to the property."” (Acc. to
Supplement to HARLAN ENTERPRISE, 4/10/1908,
quoted in John Watts Hevener, A NEW DEAL FOR
HARLAN: The Rocsevelt Labor Policies in a Ky.
Coal Field, 1931-1939, Ohio St. U., PhD Diss.,
%Zﬁ%ﬁ-P' 5); Kentenia Corp. helped bring in th
» By-193% the "company heid 38,000 acres

f



in Harlan County...and was leasing coal
properties to a no, of the county's largest
operators.” (Ibid. from Middleton, HARLAN
CO0, 1934, Pp. 44-7); The Kentenia Corp. was
inc. in Del. Responsible fofmuch of the
dev. of H. Co. Est. as a holding company _
for the land owned by the Edward M. Davis |,
heirs. It arranged for a geol. survey of
Harlan Co. in 1902-3 (sic) and cleared the:
title to 86,000 acres whose ownership till
then was in dispute. It leased coal lands
%0 Fordson Coal Co. & other firms and was
successful in securing the extension of th
L&N RR into the Harlan Coal Fields by 1910

(Elmon Middleton. HARLAN CO. KY. 1934. Pu.



V/%ENTENIA_(Hérlan-Co.. Ky): The Kentenia Corp.,
a NY co. controlled by the Delanos long before
1912 bought the mineral rights to much Harlan
Co. land which they later leased to the coal
co's. & the L&N. Coal began being mined in a
big way ca. 1912. (John Egerton in interview
with Curtis Burnam Ledford in GENERATIONS: AN
AE%R. FAMILY, Lex: U. Press of Ky., 1983, P.
26); '



' KENTENIA (Harlan Co., Ky): The Kentenia Corp. was a lan
company formed to lease timber and coal land. It was
inc. in 1907 and was named for the 3 states in which it
held prop. 86,000 acres from patents issued in 1845 an
bought in 1870 by Edward Mott Davis of Phila, Pa. His
grandson Charles Henry Davis in 1901 had the land sur-
veyed and arr. for its leasing to coal developers. Was
to own 100+ sg. mi. in Bell & Harlan Co's. The Kentenia
S5t., Forest est. 1919, the state's first, was deeded by
the corp. The corp. was acg. by the Norfolk & Western
RR in 1980. (H. Fred Howard & Jas. S. Greene II in KY.
ENCY, 1992, Pp. 487-8);



KENTENIA (Harlan Co,): The ¥entenia Corp. "A
landholding company with acreages in Ky.,
Tenn., & Va. was org. 1907 with headquatiters
for this area in Harlan Co. The company did
more to develop this end of the state than
anything that had come to Harlan. They were
instrumental ,in getting the L&N RR to build
a branch line into the county”....headquarte:
were in Big Stone Gap. (Condon, Pp. 12-3);
Now: a few camp houses. At one time Ky. King
Coal Co. had an operation there. On Wallins

Creek. (B.W. Whitfield, Jr. in letter to me
6/28/1980) ; '

/S.LLUNMI-TL@LM_ Re T Powel, 1787, P27



/?KENTENEA (Harlam Co., Ky): Kentenia Corp., a

~hHolding co. est. by Chas. Davis & assoclates,
inel. Warren Delano, FDR's uncle,. "to manage
the prop. and make preps. to lease large
tracts of it to major coal mining co's. as
soon as the rr was in operation." Delano was
also a director of the L&N. Edward M. Davis ¢
Phil,, Pa. sent reps. to Harlan Co. in the
1870s to acquire mineral rights incl. the 86,
000 acre Ledford-Skidmore-Smith-Farmer survey
Davis held on to the lands. His grandson,
Chas.. He Davis in 1901 underwrote extensive
‘geol. surveys of the land & its rescurces &

confirmed "practically an inexhaustible suppl



of high grade bituminous coal...waiting %o
be mined in Harlan 'Co." (John Egerton,
GENERATIONS, U Press of Ky. 1983, Pp. 99-100)
Acc. to L&N RR's 1921 timetables, this was a sta. on
its Banner Fk. Branch 3 mi above Kerr Sta. and a mile
ba2low Lisle and 2 mi. below Low Sta (Twila po); The
Kentenia Corp. was acg. in 1980 by the Norfolk & West.
RR (which later became the Norfolk-Southern Corp.)
(Caudill, Theirs Be the Power, 1983, Pp. 147-8);




7veyors of 190,000 acres-in the 1840s. 86,000 acres of
.this were acg. in by Edward Davis of Phil. The
bulk of this was then acg. by Warren Delano, Jr. in
anticipation of the L&N's entry into the coal fields of
E.Ry, Ten, & SW Va. In 1907 he org. the Kentenia Corp.
acq. mineral rights to this land. The co's. main office
were in S. Yarmouth, Mass. The syndicate incl. Edward
Davis' son Charles. Kentenia's holdings centered on
Pucketts and Catrons Cks. Will Ward Duffield of Harlan
was the co's. gen'l. mgr. Kentenia leased land to
several coal mining co's. The Fk. Mining Co.,
acg. in 1920 by Fordson (another holding co. owned by
Henry Ford & named for his son Edsel. It was "abandoned
in 1931" when resources were exhausted. (Caudill, POWER
1983, Pp. 85-102);

v éfli‘ffb
KENTENIA (Harlan Cok&;;;w le Smith, one of the sur-



/KEN’I‘ENIA (Harlan Co., Ky): po est. 4/10/17, Lewis P.
Johnson, 6/26/18, Abner ILunsford, 4/16/26, Alford Vass,
act. amdxassxxshx 11/26/26, Floyd C. Howard, Disc. eff.
6/30/30 (mail to Wallins Creek) (POR-NA); Acc. to L.R.
Johnson, 1/19/17, this prop. po would be serving the
Banner Fork Coal Company Camp (with a pop. of ca. 100),
2% mi s of the river, 500 ft e of Wallins Ck, 75 ft e of
the I8N (Kentenia Sta.), 2% mi s of Wallins Ck. po, 2%

mi n of prop. Louellen po, 7% mi sw of White Star po.
(SIR) ;



/KE:NVIR (Harlan Co., Ky): "This coal town with po is on
Ky 215, 3 mi up Yocum Ck from its confl. with Clover Fk
of the Cumb. R. and 8 (air) mi e of Harlan. It was
founded in 1919 by the Black Mt. Coal Corp. and its name
probably refers to its prox. to the Ky-Va. state line.
The po was moved from Dizney, 2 mi. e., to this site on
Jan. 3, 1921 with Roscoe F. Weaver, pm." (Bock-Pp. 158-9
Coal op'ns. in the Kenvir area incl. Peabody Coal Co.
(1921-6) , the Black Mt. Coal Corp. (1927-52), Peabody
{1953-8) . Green Sch. & then the Black Mt. Sch (which be-
gan as a hosp., ca. late 1930s5-40s (Gertie Ellen Stidhar
Eachus, 32 N. Horton St, Dayton, O. 45403, 937-252-8453
in KY EXPL. Vol. 16 (1), 5/01, Pp. 95-6);



KENVIR (Harlan Co.): 8 mi. e, of Harlan by the
confl. -of Yoacum Creek and the Clover Fk. of
Cumb., R. at the fooi of Big Black Mt.\Coal
vmine town... (see Dizney....) Coal mining comm
founded and owned 1919 by Black Mt. Coal Corp.
(B.W. Whitfield, Brookside, Ky. in a letter to
me, 5/11/1979); Coal town built c. WWI by the
Peabody Coal Co. along Yocum Creek, 11 mi. se
of Harlan. Named for its site nr. the Va-Ky.
line. Most local people call it Black Mt. Had
5000 pop. at its peak + 2 schools, hosp., 5
chu's., several rest's., theater, police &
fire dep'ts., Kenvir Water Works. Peabody Co.
closed its Black Mt. Corp. Tho' retained title

PRO



to the land, the firm sold ims coal camp
homes "and left residents to fend for them-
selves." At the foot of Black Mt. (Lee
Mueller, "Effort to Save Tiny Utility a
Tonely Battle" Lex. HER-LEADER, 4/10/1988,
P. Bl:2-5 to B6%/~y ) n=2000 pesgple 'S
Lese ™ G i shen s, b{, AN e bt tn- L VYN
ok ahsvnp V4, i e e—-ﬂ—aJno_A.’t_r oh telimre, ..

B rittva Canady, Corap o ‘(vaun"/‘-(\ L;l‘op




v, KENMVIR (Harlan Co., Ky): Locally called Black Mountain
3 mi e of Evarts. Derived from an early dispute of
ownership claim by the 2 states. Coal town with compan
store, sch, po, other businesses & stores, Dx's. offic
(Gertie Fachus in KY. EXPL. Vol. 15 (4), 9/2000, Pp.
83-4) ; Bapt. chu, drug store, camp was west of the
comuissary (or company store) (Ibid. in Ibid., P. 15

» (2), 6/2000, Pp. 94-5); The Peabody Coal Co. closed
its mine here in Mar. 1958. (NYT, 1/11/59, Pp. 1, 40);
APO; ca. 1/1996, po was on Ky 215; Acc. to L&N's 1921
timetables, its sta. was on the Yocum Ck. Br, 3 mi
above Peabody Sta.:




KENVIR (Harlan Co., Ky): In 1919, the po was in the
Peabody Black Mt. Corp. Mine No. 30 Commissary .till the
co. moved it to its present site in 1950. (Chris W.

Jones of Dizney, Ky. (via Evarts peo) in letter to me,
1/5/1904)



/KIIDAV (Harlan Co., Ky): "This coal town with epo on

Clover Fk. of the Cumb. R., 5% (air) mi e of Harlan, was
named for Messrs. Killebrew & Davis of Nashwville, Tenn.,
who opened the King Harlan Coal Co. mines there in 1916.
The po, since closed, was est. on 5/17/1916 with Squire
M. Wheeler, pm." (Bock-P. 159); J.L. Smith Coal Co. at
Kildav. Mr. Geo. R. Neel (ca. early 1924); the 1.6 mi
(rail) from Ages to Kildav were completed 3/20/1916;
Acc. to the L&N's 1921 timetable, Kildav Sta. was 3 mi
from Ages and 1 mi above Verda, a very short distance
below Draper, and 1 mi below Keith on the Clover Fork B:



KILDAV (Harlamr Co., Ky): Narrow bottom land
across creek from road. Coal camp houses from
he 1930s.. Several trailers and cottages.. On
Clover Fk. ca. 1885-95 strip was owned by Sher:
iff Ewell Van King. (John Egerton, GENERATIONS.

U. Press of Ky., 1983, P..221);



‘/KI]'_DAV (Harlari Co., Ky): Acc. to Squire Merwin Wheeler
1/17/1916, 4his prop. po would be 150 yds n of Clover
Fk, % mi W of James Ck (?), 50 yds s of L&N (Kildav

¢ Sta.), 2 mi/‘/of Ages po, 1 mi/e/of Evarts po// Acc. t

W Chas. E. Barton, 7/27/39, po was 1/8 mi e of Clover Fk
7 mi n of Harlan Sta, 1 mi n of Verda po, 15 mi s of
Evarts po. (SIR);



PrSox If>2,
KIIDAV (Hzarlan Co.)s Named for its two owners

Kilgore & Davie before the mine was sold to
Detroit Edison. (Mabel Collins, "Town Names
Given by Railroads, Companies, Settlers" unid
& undated Harlan newsp. clipping); I1&N RR
reached this pt. c. 3/20/1916. (Kincaid A.

/ Herr, L&N RR, 1964, P. 203); po est. 5/17/16
Squire M. Wheeler...(NA); Named for Messrs.

v Killebrew and Dayis of Nashville, Tenn. who
developed the King Harlan Coal Co. in 1917,
(B.W. Whitfield, Ir. of Brookside, Ky. in a
letter to me, 5/11/1979);



\/KITI‘S (Harlan Co., Ky): Acc. to Geo. P. Fitz, 2/1913,
this po was 150 ft s of Clover Fk, 220 ft e of Kitts
Ck, 50 ft s of L&N (Kitts Sta.), 3 mi from co. line,

2 mi e of Harlan po, 2% mi w of Coxton po, 3% mi e of
Baxter po// Acc. to Grant Mason, 7/39, po was 600 ft s
of Clover Fk. Ck, % mi from Ky 68, 2 mi e of Harlan
(rr) sta// On 7/1/1949, Sam'l. Chester Surgener pet.
for a move 120 ft n to a pt 150 £t s of Clover Fk, 2
mi s of Harlan po, 5 mi w of Coxton po, 3% mi e of
Sunshine po. (SIR); Acc. to L&N's 1921 timetable, this
sta. was on the Clover Fk. Br. , just above Forester,
2 mi above Harlan, 2 mi below Coxton; The Kitts Br. o
Clover Fk is 1% mi up C. Fk. Coal on J.B. Howard's
land (Hodge, P. 37);



D

V&EEELﬁ (Harlan Co.): Acc. to the Whitfield
family, the place was hamed for a family of
Kitts, not for a mule as has been popularly
asserted. (Mabel Collins, "Town Names Given
by Railroads, Companies Settlers" unid. &
undated Harlan newsp. clippings); po est.
1/4/1913, Geo. Pi Fitz...(NA); Named for =a
mule. Clover for the coal co. developed 1912
by G.F. Whitfield and B.W. Whitfield, the 5tk
mine in the co. to produce coal. (B.W. Whit-
field, Jr. Broockside, £y. in a letter to me,
5/11/1979); po was suspended 10/1/1982 (PCR) ;



/RITTS (Harlan Co., Kg): "This coal town with po is on

Ky 38, just above the mouth of Kitts Ck, a br. of Clove:
Fk. of the Cumb. R., |1 mi e of Harlan. Some say the
town and its po, est: on 1/4/1913, were named for the
Kitts family, but others say they were named for a mule
(Book-P. 162); Bryan| & Augustus Foscoe Whitfield, bros,

v from Ala in 1911 invested in the Clover Fk. Coal Co, at
Kitts and in Harlan Collieries at Brookside. Built
homes, store, & tipples there and employed labor. In
1919 A.F. remained with Kitts and Bryan tock over
Brookside. (Harry Caudill, Theirs Be the Power, U. of
I11. Press, 1983, P. 111);




/KITI‘S (Harlan Co., Ky): Acc. to the L&N's 1921 timetabl
the Forester Sta. was just below Kitts, 2 mi above
Harlan, on the Clover Fk. Br. but's it's not mentioned
in the 1960 timetable; Acc. to the 1920 Census, living
in the Kitts Prec. 15 were Bugustus Whitfield, Jr. (387
and wife Evangeline (22), pres. of a coal mine co. He &
his father were born in Ala. He lived nr Augustus Sr.
(58), a boarder with Jas. Baker, and also a coal mine
operator, ne Ala. whose father was ne N.C. They lived
nr Bryan W. Whitfield I(54) & wife (undec.) and their sc
Bryan Jr. (17), also ne Ala. & other issue. BWW was als
a coal mine op; Servéd by the Kitts po (1924) : Rex Co:
Co., Clover Fk. Coal Co., Golden Ash Coal Co while the
Kitts Ck. Coal Co. was served by the Harlan po;




[ KIONDIXE (Harlan Co., Ky): Acc. to Wm. H. Short, 1/18/98
this prop. po would be 300 yds n of Clover Fk, on the n
side of Rock House Ck, 5 mi e of leonard po, 3 mi n of
Slemp po (Va.), 75 mi w of Crab Orchard po (Va.), not a
vil//Acc. to Wm. Thos. Holmes, 5/09, po was on s side of
Cloverfork R, on the w side of Breedings Ck, 3% mi e of
Ieconard po, 5 mi w of Cloverfork po, 8 mi s of Poorfork
po, serving a scattered rural pop// Acc. to S.N. Parsons
10/2/15, po was 100 ft e of Clover Fk, 1 mi e of Childs-
es (sic) Ck, 12 mi se of Evarts po// COn 11/11/15, Ibid.
pet. for move 1 mi w to a pt ca. 50 £t s of Clover ¥k,
¥ mi s of Childe's Ck, 11 mi e of Evarts, 4 mi n of
Darbyv. po (Va). .Eff. asap. The resigned & moved, acc
to new pm Mrs. Cretia Dal{en. _\"LP\)}'



/ KLONDIKE (Harlan Co., Ky): po est. 2/15/1898 with Wm. H
Short, 4/17/01, Green Clay, 4/26/02, John B. Moore, 9/3l
/1905, Tilman A. Bailey (order resc. 2/19/06)}, 2/23/06,
Enoch C. Blair (order resc. 8/21/06), 8/22/06, Jas. F.
Moore, 2/7/07, Tilman A. Bailey (declined), Disc. eff.
9/14/1907 (mail to Cloverfork); Re-est. 6/14/09, Wm. T.
Holmes, 5/4/1910, ILundie Holmes, 7/20/12, Moran Kelly,
3/18/13, Stephen N. Parsons, 11/15/%% Cretia Bailey,
Disc. 10/15/1918 {(mail to Clover Fk.) (POR-NA); [Eheck

-EretivBaitey-date;—above...];



V/IADEN (Harlan Co., Ky): po est. 2/18/1925, Chad Lewis
...Disc. 1936 (POR-MNA); Acc. to Chad Iewis, 4/2/1924,
this prop. po would be 500 ft n of Poor Fk, 100 ft n of
L&N (Laden Sta.), 7 mi from co. line, 5% mi sw of Pine
Mt. po, 1% mi e of Dillon po// On 6/26/34, Mattie Lewis
pet. for amove 1l mi w to a pt 350 £t n of Poor Fk, 30(
ft n of 1&N, 1 mi e of Putney po, 3 mi w of Nolansb.po
Eff. 7/1/1934 (SIR); Acc. to the L&N's 1921 timetable,
this sta. was on the Poor Fk. Br. 2 mi above Dillon,

1 mi below Nolansb., 10 mi above Baxter, 12 mi below
Poor Fk (Cum. City); Acc. to L&N, this sta. was lst

called Zande;



/

IAYMAN (Harlan Co., Ky): po est. 2/10/96, Ulysses
Howard, 12/5/00, Wiley M. Saylor, 5/14/04, Frank R.
Blanton, 4/28/06, Wm. F. Howard, 11/5/16, Hisey C.
Blanton, 4/5/22, Hiram M. Osborne, act, 8/30/1922, Jess
J. Howard,..Disc. 1933 (PCR-NA); No Layman listing in
the 1880 Census; In 1922 the po moved across the river
from the sta. to serve commu. of Dixjetown. Elihu Cold-
iron ran local store. (see Coldiron) (Otto Green Cold-
iron); Acc. to 1900 Census, Ulysses S. Howard (11/71) ¢
parents Hiram B. (9/36) & Jane (4/40) & sibs lived in
the Foresters Ck. Prec. but no ILayman or Leona; There
was a Layman Calloway Coal Co. at Hulen, Bell Co. po
(Jillson, Ky Coal, KGS, 1924, P. 112);

X Py w1870
Cemsus,



\V/IAYMAN (Harlan Co., Ky): Acc. to Ulysses Simpson Howard
11/11/1896, the prop. name for this new po was Leona
and it would be on the n side of the Curb. R,, opp. the
mouth of Foresters Ck, 7 mi n of Calloway po (then at
the mouth of Pucketts Ck), 12 mi s of Baxter po, 13 mi
s of Harlan po// On 3/28/1913, Wm. F. Howard pet. for a
move 0.22 mi s to a pt 400 ft s of the river,900 ft e
of Foresters Ck, 60 ft s of L8N (Layman Sta.), 3 mi e
of the co. line, 3 mi w of Wallens Ck po, 4 mi e of the
Birchfield (sic) po, 2% mi s of Pass po. (SIR); Acc. to
the I&N's 1921 timetable, the Layman Sta. on the Ky & V
RR 2 mi above Molus, 1 mi below Ameron, 3 mi below
Wallins, and 11 mi below Baxter;



IAYMAN Harlan Co., Ky): Acc. to 1920 Census, Hicey
C. Blanton (30) & wife Mary (29) lived in Prec. 9
(Layman) ; The Munson Coal Co. sexved by the Layman px
{1924) ;



v/ IEDFORD (Harlan Co., Ky): po in a hol. at the
head-of Cranks Creek. Named for the family
of Aley Ledford's emancipated slaves who were
given a "large boundary of land--several
thousand acres (here)" where they farmed and
cut timber (oak, ash, poplar). They assumed
the Ledford family name and buillt nice homes
in that hol., and had a store, chu., sch., &
po called Ledford. Other colored families ar
a few white families in that vic. but mostly
colored. Patriarch of the colored Ledfords
was Sinelair (Sinkler, Sink) Ledford, ne.. c.
1830. His son, James, was pm. After his
death,. Sink's children moved away. No longer



any colored Ledfords on Cranks Creek. (P.25)
Other colored families there: Turner. Stout,
Howard, Pope. The Ledfords lived in the
last hol. of Cranks Creek. PO bldg. is gone.
DK when James (called Jeemes) died, c.1915
or 1920 but is buriled in an unknown grave
on the creek. Most pop. left when sold out
to the coal co's. Coal trucks ruined the
road, so did a flash flood in f'77....(P
105~ 06) (John Egerton, Generatlons. 1983§

v B0 est. as Leadford, /1890 Jas. H. Leac
ford (sic); Disc.. 11/1&/5893 (mail to Pansy)
Re-est. as Ledford (but dk if at same site)
1/11/1898, JTas. H. Ledford; Disc. 1/31/1913
(m. to Cawood) (NA):



b Jeemes
LEDFORDa(Harlan Co., Ky): Sinkier,Ledford was
a postmaster. A Negro. He was son of Sinkler
Ledford and he had a son named Sinkler too.
Jeemes lived 2 mi up a gravel rd to/ the head
of the last hollow off Cranks Creek. Jeames
died betw. 1915-20 and the po was disc. about
then. A no. of black families lived on the
creek (before WWI) Rev. Bradleyshad an inter-

Turner
racial chu. there.. Peabody Coal Co. acquired
their land. White Ledfords lived in the Cawoc
& Smith area. People called him Jeemes but he
was really James. The road to the head of
Cranks Creek hzs been destroved by the coal



trucks and a flash flood in 1977. Abandoned
coal %tipples and empty houses. Concrete
foundation of the po. (Pp. 105-7). (John
Egerton, GENERATIONS, U. Press of Ky., 1983);
\/Acc. to Jas. H. Leadford (sic), 4/6/90, the lst name
prop. for this new po was Leadford Store (with "Store"
x'd. out). & it would be 8 mi_s& of Jonesv. po (Va.),N
4 13 mi (of Harlan po, not vil. [poor handwriting]//
" Acc. Jas. H. Ledford, 12/25/97, po was 8 mi e of
Martins Fk, on the n bank of Cranks Ck, 8 mi e of Ca-
wood po, 10 mi s of Bvarts po. Not vil. (SIR);

Sef




/" LEDFORD (Harlan Co., Ky): Acc. to the 1900 Census, Jas.
H. ledford (ne 2/1861) & his wife Eliza (7/72) were
Blacks living in the Lower Martins Fk. Prec;



VIEJUNICR (Harlan Co., Ky): Acc. to Leander Bowling, 5/2
/1918, the proposed name for this new po was Clover Gap
and it would be 150 ft w of Clover Gap Br, s. of Big
Black Mt. and n of Little Black Mt, 50 ft n of RR to
serve what will also be called Clover Gap and 4 mine
towns serving the Clover Coal Co, Bowling Mining Co,
Upper Harlan Coal Co, and the W.E. Garrett Coal Co.,
150 £t n of Clover Fk, 2 mi w of High Splint po, 4% mi
e of Evarts po//Acc. to Ernest W. Reece, 8/2/39, po was
350 ft w of Clover Fk R, 25 ft n of Wilbar Station (on
the 18N), % mi sw of Benito po, 4% mi n of Evarts po.
(SIR) ; Acc. to L&N's 1921 timetable, Shields was 4 mi
above Evarts and 1 mi below Ridgeway and 5 mi above
Kildav, and 15 mi above Baxter;




‘/LEUUNIOR (Harlan Co., Ky): "This coal town with po and
sta. on the L&N RR's Clover Fork Branch is 13 mi up
that fk. of the Cumb. R.and 9% (air) mi ene of H. The
po was est. as Jejunior on 12/14/1918 with Kenes Bowl-—
ing, pm, and named for Lee Bowling, Jr. whose father
had just dev'd. the local Bowling Coal Co. Two months
before, the L&N had est. its sta. there as Shields."
(Book-P. 169); BAcc. to 1920 Census, John Shields (25)

V lived in Coxton Prec. 14. H. Robt. Shields (54) & wife
Huldah (45) (he a Tenn-born farmer) lived in Baxter
Prec. 22. Sam'l. Shields (30) & wife Florence (35) in

Wilhoit Prec. 8C;



/ LENARUE (Harlan Co. , Ky): "This coal town with epo ex-
tends for % mi along Ky 990 and Turtle Ck. from its
confl. with Martins Fk of the Cumb. R, 3 {air) mi se of
Harlan. It was named for the Lenarue Coal Co. which hac
been named for the daughter of F.F. Cawood who opened
the local mine in 1920-1. The po was est. on May 29,/%9
28with Frank F. Cawocd, pm. The local sta. on the
L&N RR's Martin Fork Branch is called Glidden." (Book-
P. 169); Acc. to no sign., 6/1919, this po was 400 yds
e of Martins Fk, 200 ft n of Turtle Ck, 44 ft e of the
Martins Fk RR (sta. will be Ienarue), 1% mi s of Bee Pec
po, 3 mi n of Cawood po. (SIR);



v/ LENARUE (Harlan Co,): Named for Lenarue '+~

Cawood. (Mabel Collins, "Town Names Given by

Railroads, Companies, Settlers" unid. & un-

dated Hdrlan newsp. clipping); po est. 5/29/
qi@%?‘ Frank F. Cawood...(NA); Lenarue Coal Co
named for the daughter of F.F. Caywood (sic)
who developed the mine here in 1920-1. (B.W,.

' Whitfield, Jr. in a letter to me, 5/11/19?9),
Lena Rue Coal Co. at Lena Rue (sic), Harlan
Co, (W.R, Thomas LIFE AMONG THE HILLS & MTS.
OF KY., Lou, 1926, P. 69); The Iena Rue Coal Co.
here (1924); Acc. to 1920 Cens, Frank F. Cawood (33)
lived with wife Hattie (24) & daughter Iena R. (5), et

in the Lena Rue Coal Mining Camp in Cawood Prec. 7. He
was a coal mine op;



ILENARUE (Harlan Co., Ky): Acc. to the L&N's 1921 time-
table, the Glidden Sta. was on the Martins Fk. Br
2 mi above Chevrolet, 7 mi above Harlan, 1 mi below
Merna Sta and at jct. with Lick Br. Spur, 5 mi below
Coalville Sta; It was jct. with Merna Br., 2 mi below
Merna (1960 timetable);



/LEONARD (Harlan Co., Ky): po est. 9/28/1860, Jonathan K.
Bailey, Disc. 9/6/61; Re-est. 8/22/72, Wm. R. Bailey...
Disc. 1911 (PCR-nA); Acc. to Wm. R. Bailey, 6/5/86, po
was 20 yds s of Clover Fk, 100 yds s of Childreses (?)
Ck, 5 mi e of Bailey po, 8 mi w of Clover Fk po, 9% mi ¢
of Poor Fk po// Acc. to Ibid., 4/20/97, po was 30 yds n
of Clover Fk, 2 mi w of Fugitts Ck, & mi e of Bailey po,
2% mi from the Va. line. (SIR); Acc. to 1883-4 Gaz, this
was a small settlement 18 mi from Harlan, with a pop. o
30. Gen. stores: (1) John Creech, (2) John M. Smith.
Flour & sawmills: (1) Isaac Creech, (2) Elcanah Wynn;
Acc. to 1879-80 Gaz, this was a small settlement; Acc.
to 1895-6 Gaz, it was 20 mi f£rom H. Pop. 50. W.R. Baile

was pm, justice, & Gen. storekeeper. Isaac Creech had a
flour mill;



LECOMARD (Harlan Co., Ky): Acc. to 1860 Census, Lecnard
Farmer (23), a lawyer, lived with his parents lewis
Farmer (son of Stephen & Nancy (Russell) Farmer. In

1 1830 Lewis mar. Ann (nee Hurley) who was then 67; Mo
Ieonard Bailey was listed in the 1860 Census;



vIEONARD (Harlan Co., Ky): Acc. to 1876-7 Gaz, This vic.
was settled 1820. Had pop. of 90. 18 mi from Harlan in
e. pt. of the co. Wm. R. Bailey was pm. J.K. Baily & Co
had gen. store. Other gen. storesx (2) Sam'l. Howard,
(3) C.C. Quilen (sic) & Co., (4) T.S. Ward; If no area
families of this name, could it have been named for Jas
Francis Leonard, master telegrapher from Frankfort?
(1834-1862) . (see KY ENCY. P. 544); This po was at the
mouth of Childs Ck. of Clover Fork (Hodge, 1912); No
such fam's. listed in the 1880 or 1860 Censuses; Acc.
to 1860 Census, Jonathan K. Bailey (24) & bro. Wm. (21)
but not Ieonard;



/LEWIS (Harlan Co., Ky): Acc. to 1910 Census, Bird
Hensley (23) & wife Alice (22) lived on Poor Fk, in
Prec. 5, Mag. Dist. 4, next to James M. Lewis (42) who
lived next to Chadwell F.C. Lewis (31) and nr a no. of
other Iewis families, the oldest being Hiram (52) &
wife Hannah R. (48). No William D. (for Dillon);



V'LEWIS (Harlan Co., Ky): po est. 7/26/1909, Bird Hensly
(sic), Disc. 8/15/1910 (mail to Kellicka) (POR-MA);
Acc. to Bird Hensly, 6/1909, the prop. name for this
new po was Alice and Bird, and it would be 40 ft n of
Poor Fk, 4 mi e of English Ck, 4 mi n of Nolinsburgh pc
{sic), 5 mi s of Jane po. (SIR); This po operated 1909
1910 on Poor Fk, 4 mi above the m. of English and 4 mi
below Nolansb. Bird Hensley, its only pm, seemingly
first requested it be called Alice and Bird which, as
a multi-word name, was disallowed by the POD; The
lewis fam. settled on the Iower Poor FKk, just n of the

present Cumb. (City); Acc. to 1870 Census, lewises
lived in Dist. 8 (Big Rock po);




7 LIGGEIT (Harlan Co., Ky): "This coal town with epo is o
the Catron's Ck. Branch of the L&N RR's Cumb. Val. Div.
on Ky 72, at the mouth of the Double Branches of Catron
and six (alr) mi s of Harlan. It was founded ca. 1920
and named by the first pm Floran D. Perkins, for his
wife's family. The po was est. on 2/16/1920." (Book-P.
172) ; Acc. to 1920 Census, F.D. Perkins, a coal mine op.
(45) lived with his Chio-born wife Mattie L. (45) on Ivy
St. in Harlan. No reference to a Liggett. Her parents
were also born in Chio; ca. early 1920s, the Perkins-
Harlan Coal Co. of Liggett, Ky. was under construction;



pare 9385

v/ LIGGETT (Harlan Co.): Mine there named for F.D
Perkingf wife's maiden name. (Mabel Collins,
"Town Names Given by Railroads, Companies,
Settlers" unid., & undated Harlan newsp. clip.)

v/ po est. 2/16/1920, Floran D. Perkins...(NA);

v/ The Perkins-Harlan Coal Co. had mines here.
(c. 3/1923); Acc. to the L&N's 1921 timetables, the
Liggett Sta. was on the Catrons Ck. Br. 7 mi above
Dressen, 3 mi above Gulston, and 1 mi above Bardo; Acc.
to 1960 timetable, it was the same plus 2 mi above Mary
Alice; .



\/LIGGEIT (Harlan Co., Ky): Acc. to F.D. Perkins, 8/12/
1919, the prop. name for this new po was Catron and it
would be ca. 7 mi s of Cumb. R, 300 yds n of Catrons
Ck, 100 yds n of the L&N's Ky. & Va. RR (sta. will be
Catron), 5 mi from the co. line, 5 mi s of Elcomb po,
7% mi s of Harlan po. The rr was being built from
Catron to Harlan up Catron Ck. via the ex po of Pansy
& Elconb. The mining town of Catron was now being
built with a projected pop. of 400. RR to be completed
by 1/1/20.// Acc. to F.A. Watson, 7/26/39, po was at
Liggett Sta., on Catrons Ck, 7.7 mi sw of river, % mi s
of Bardo po, 4 mi n of Sampson po, 7.7 mi sw of Harlan
po. (SIR);




LISLE (Harlan Co., Ky): Acc. to James L. McIntyre, 12/1,
1936, this prop. po would be 3 mi e of the Cumb. R, 50
ft e of Wallins Ck, 60 ft e of Banner Fk. RR (no sta.),

"7 mi se of Dixie Town po (Va.}, 2 mi nw of Twila po.

' (SIR); The Lisle po operated betw. 1936-1939 (PCR);This
was a small mining town (now extinct) nr Wallins Ck;
Acc. to the Le&N's 1921 timetable, this sta. on the
Bamner Fk. Br. was 4 mi s of Kerr Sta, 1 mi s of
Kentenia, 1 mi n of Tisdale and Twila {(ILow Sta);



JLOQNEY ORERK (Harlan Cowmty, Ky.) “Green
Cornett, an 0ld settler, told me that this
creek was go named because g man ngmed Looney
was runing away from the Indiang and that the
Indignsg ran him all up and down ihe creek."
(Ina Mae Enzor of Harlasn Co., Ky. a gtudent of
Leonard Roberts, Union College, 1957.); "...a
settler -named Looney hewed out a clearing at
the south base_of the Big Black, -and his son
ventured across the -peak and cleared. 2 corn
patch on a stream, later known as Looney Creek
essa" {Harry M. Caudill, Theirs Be The Power,
1983, P. 86 ! . :




¥ Lo 1gY 71— |1bd)
/ IOUELLEN (Harlan Co., Ky): "This hamlet with po on
Clover Fk. of the Cumb. R., 12% (air) mi ene of H,
grew up around a former coal camp est. in 1921 by the
Cornett & Lewis Coal Co. and named by its president
Denver B. Cornett for his daughter. The po dates from
Dec. 3, 1921 when Arthur B. Babbage became the 1lst pm.
At that time the I&N RR sta. there was called Lisbon
but is now Closplint No. 2." (Book-P. 179); Acc. to
1900 Census, Denver B. Cornett (9/83) lived with his
father Arthur B., a widower (11/53), the co. judge, in
Mt. P. (too early for Iouellen); Acc. to L&N's 1921
timetable, the Lisbon Sta. was 8 mi above Evarts & 17

mi above Harlan and 2 mi above Seagrave. The end of the
Clover Fk. Branch;




V/iOUELLEN (Harlan Co.): A former coal mining
camp located e. of Harlan, site.of a former
coal mine, Cornett_.Lewis Coal" Co., and namet
by the president of the company, Denver B,
Cornett for his daughter, Louellen..Mine ha'

been liquidated and closed. (Bryaﬁ~w——WhTt
Fieldy—Jdr—oef-Brooksddes~Ky. in a letter t
me, 4/20/1979);  Sh-Colwosel, Y/a]iy 79
//Named for the daughter of D.B. Cornett Pres.
of Cornett Lewis Coal.Co. Mine developed in
1920 1. (B.Wv Whitfield, Jr.. of Brookside, Ky
in letfer to me, 5/11/19?9), po suspended 4/30/
V' 1985 (POR) : S



V/£0UELLEN (Harlan Co.): Coal camp on Clover
Fork. Est. by the Cornett & Lewis Coal Co.
which had been founded and operated by 2
Harlan Co. families. The town was eSt., in the
1920s on part of 2000+acres (imn-$he-¥iegpthat
the company had bought;in the vie. At iits
peak, the commu., had 288 miners homes along
with a club house, theater, boarding house,
chu,, sch., company htrs. bldgs., MD, a Negro
chu. & sch,, running water & electricity. Min
closed in 1958, Miners moved away and their
homes were torn down. Camp abandoned. Once
occupied by 800+ people., Now just a field.
(Ronald Edward Yarbrough, A GEOG. STUDY OF A
MICRO REGION IN APP,--THE CLOVER FORK RIVER
WVATTRY N HART.AN MO Ky PR Nie IT_Marnmn



IOUELLEN (Harlan Co., Ky): Denver Cornett rep. Harlan,
Perry, and Leslie Co's. in the Ky. legislature; This
place was 18 mi up the Clover Fk. (L&N) line. That
stretch was an "almost continuous mining camp."

(ca. 1928-9, repro. in Stump, Harlan Mt. Roots, Vol.

5 (4), Sum. 1991, Pp. 145-51); Denver B. Cornett ne £
1883 in H. Co., Ky. Son of Arthur Blankenship Cornett.
(Stump, Harlan Mt. Roots, Vol. 6 (3), Spr. 1992, P.113




LOUELLEN (Harlan Co., Ky.) Dire (485
"Mr. Cornett, one of the founders of Cornett-
1 Lewis Coal Company had two daughters, Lou and
‘ €llen. The mining town was named for themn,
thus (sic) they came up with the name
Iouellen, Ky." (Irene B. Muse, postmaster,
in a letter to Robert K. Framcis of the Post-
mark Collectors Club, Yalesville, Ct., and
s turned over to me, 3/29/1969,) P.0. est.
12/3/1921, Arthur W. Babbage....{N.A.)

/ Named for tpe daughter of D.B. Cornett. (Mabe:
Colling, "Town Names Given by Rallroads,
Companies, Settlers" unid. & undated Harlan
newsp. clipping);



\/]'_OUELI_EN (Harlan Co., Ky): Acc. to Arthur W. Babbage,
6/20/1921, the prop. name for this new po was Lisbon
to serve the town of Lisbon and the unagented Lisbon
Station, 40 ft s of L&N, 200 ft n of Clover Fk, 2k mi e
of High Splint pc, 4 mi s of Dione po, 4 mi from co.
line// Acc. to Myrtle B. Vaughn, 7/24/39, po was on the
w side of Ky 38, 45 ft e of Clover Fk, 2 mi e of High-
splint Sta, and 1% mi e of the L&N, 1 mi w of Closplint
po, 2 mi e of Highsplint po. (SIR); Louellen is 8 mi
from Cumb. City over the Big Black Mt. (FCT, 12/4/74,

v II, P. 1:3); 1930 pop.=900; The Cornett-Lewls Coal Co.
with commissary was here. €. 1960. All gone. (KY EXPL.
Vol 17° (1), 5/02, P. 40);



/IDYALL (Harlan Co., Ry): "This 5th cl. city with po is
just below the forks of the Cumb. R. and about a mi w of
Harlan. It dev'd. as a-coal shipping pt. around an L&N
RR switching yard and maintenance fac. est. in 1920 on
land acquired from the local Creech family. The yard
was named Ioyall, some say, for a company official, tho
no record of such a person has yet been found. The
local po, est. on 9/2/1922, as Shonn (a local name for
rail siding), was renamed Iovyall in 1932." (Book—-P. 180)

/APO; 2000 pop.=766; This town was inc. 1929 and was
probably named by the 18N. Rick Partin owned store

there before 1921. DK why called that. PO was Shonn.
(Stump on Ioyall, Harlan Mt. Roots, Vol. 6 (3}, Spr.
1992, Pp. 105-6):




SLOYALL (Harlan Co.): Named For an OfflClal
of %he I%N. (B.W. Whitfield,.JB. of Brook-
side, Ky. in a letter to me, 6/3/1979); (Pron
u aw/el") An L&N RR town on the‘present Cumb,

/ Val. Subdiv. of the Corbin Div. "Abdut 1920,
the L&N RR acquired property frem the Creech
family on which to build a sw1tch1ng yard and
maintenance facility. = The rr named the new
yard Loyall."” The town of Loyall grew up
around the yard .and came t6 have-a pop. of c.
1500, "The po was named Shonn because ithe
L&N for years had a siding at this location
by that name. When a name was needed for the
bo, someone suggested Shonn. The town was

-y



. never called Tigerville." It isnt now and
never was a coal town. But "most of the coa
mined in Harlan Co. and some sw Va, coal is
switched and classified at the Loyall yard.
When steam power was replaced by diesel
power, the Loy#ll shop was closed. The town
is still alive and growing...." (Mrs. W.B.
Yonce of Loyall, Ky. statement to me by

letter from Ron- Flanary Big Stone Gap, Va.
6/26/1980) ' '



LA T
LOYALL (Harlan Co.): RR town est. by the L&N's
Cumb. Val. Div., in 1921lptc ship Harlan Co.
coal. Site was the Howard farm.,..(John L,
Rewis,' "Loyall--The Result of Co-operation"
1&N. EMPLOYES' MAG. 9/1930, Pp. 13-4); Shown(”,

v ke todall (09) hatw, 6 hfz1 + /13y (ma),

/Shonn p.o. est.. 9/2/1922 with Mrs. Nancy E.
Sergent, pm. s n.ch. to Loyall betw. 6/1/
1932 and 6/1/1932 (bpostal guide);

crecficing € Pey(as)
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LOYALL /(Harlan Co.)}: The po there was lst call
ed Shonn though the rr yard office was spelled
Shann. Some residents wanted to honor Milt
Howard,whose nickname was Tiger,by calling it
Tigerville but he said no. Loyall was chosen
instead. (Mabel Collins, "Town.Names Given by
Railroads,. Companies, Settlers" a Harlan news.
date unknown); cf Mrs. W.B. Younce, a widow
who lives there, right opp. the rr. She runs a
rooming hse. for rallroaders. Her husband was
a Cumb. Val. Div. (IL&N) conductor...{"Y(ah)ns"
She was raised in Loyall. Loyall has an L&N
yard., Or c¢f RonmieFlanary with. the Southern Ry

at' Somerset (c. 5/19?2+) He's a personal frien




/

of Chas. Castner (my informant, 3/21/72)

Mention Castner by name. Mrs. Younce would

be willing to talk with me and Flanaryjwoul

be a good source of info. All of the co's.
coal is brought together for shipment at ILoyall Yard
just before the Poor/Clover Fks. confl. Exception:
Pucketts Ck. & Banner Fk. branches (latter n of Loyall
and owned by the Bamner Fk. Coal Corp. & Creech Coal Co
Coal shipped from ILoyall to Corbin for transhipment on
other L&N branches and other lines. (A.B. Gloster, 1934
in KY EXPL. Vol. 8 (8), 2/1994, Pp. 50-1};



\/LOYAI_L (Harlan Co., Ky): Acc. to Mrs. Nancy E.
Sergent, 1/4/1922, the prop. name for this new po was
Ioyall (the rr sta. name) to serve the vil. of ILovall
200 yds nw of the po with a pop. of 600 (900 ft betw.
PO & sta., W.G. Cudd, sta. agent) but, as Shonn, it
would be 100 yds n of Cum. R, 200 yds s of L&N, 1 mi
w of Baxter po, 3 mi e of Dayhoit po, 2 mi nw of
Harlan po// On 10/5/25, Ibid. pet. for a move 600 ft :
to continue serving the town and sta. of Iovyall, 500
ft w of the river, 1 mi se of 4 Mi. Ck, 1 mi w of
Baxter po// On 2/4/30, Tbid. pet. for a move 100 ft n
to a pt 600 £t ne of river, 2 mi se of 4 Mi. Ck, 1100
ft se of L&N (rr sta=Baxter), 1 mi rw of Baxter po//




Name of po was changed to lovall on 5/1/1932// Acc.
to Nancy E. Sergent, 3/25/32, the Ioyall po was
serving the Loyall Sta., 400 ft n of the river, 100
ft s of the rr, 1 mi sw of Baxter po, 3 mi ne of Day-
hoit po, 2 mi nw of Harlan po// Acc. to Bmma E.
Hoskins, 7/24/39, po was 80 ft e of US 19 (sic), 100
ft w of L&N, 6864 ft w of Baxter po. (SIR); acc. to
the LaN's 1921 timetables, this sta. on the Ky & Va.
RFR was 1 mi below Baxter and 4 mi above Wilhoit; The
Loyall Sta. was 1st called Shand (L&N 1921 timetable)



V/iYNCH (Harlan Co.): At the head of Looney Cr.

A mining town. In the fall of 1917, a rep. of
the US Steel Corp. requested of the L&N RR Co.
at-Middlesboro that facilities be est. to
gserve a coal mine that was to open at the head
of Locney. Since wartime demand for coal was
greaty the rr cd. immediately complied. A
model mining town was developed, 5 mi. long.
Modern facilities: hotel, dept.-&tore, churche
schools, rest,,(@txﬁ hosp., ete. many residend
by the mid 19305 were of foreign stock:s Ital,
Greeks, Syrians, "Keep to their own groups, ré
taining their @wm)nat'l. customs." (J.R., Wood,

WPA ms, ¢l936);
‘/'Tl\of. thuﬂ Clpry, [a‘f!{) (Fen M, Cyaf,of Qm.m /s

[PAVIN] aan A A AN



LYNCH (Harlan Co., Ky): Acc. to G.C. Sledge (?), 10/2/17
the prop. po of Lynch Mines would serve the rapidly
growing vil. of Lynch (with a pop. then of 600 but was
expected to be 6,000 within 2 yrs.), 3 mi e of Poor Fk,
on the w bank of Iooney Ck, 2 mi from co. line, 200 ft w
of I.3N° (then abuilding), 1% mi ne of Benham po// Acc. to
no sign, 8/18, the po was Lyp_ch Mines but the town was
Iynch & was 4 mi se of the river, 150 £t n of Big Looney
Ck, 175 ft n of L8N (Lynch Sta), 2 mi e of Benham po, 10
mi nw of Inman po (Va.), 5 mi from co. line. C.D. Purcel
was sta. agent// Acc. to E. Rice Walton, 7/22/39, the po
was now Lynch & was 3 air mi from Wise, Va, 400 ft ne of
Lynch Sta, 65 £t n of ILooney Ck, 3 mi from Poor Fk, 2.10
mi e of Benham po. (SIR);



1
VIYNCH (Harlan Co., Ky): In 1963 US Stee
sold the local homes to their residents.

(1.cJ 7/15/1979, P. E3:5); The site was acq. by

US Steel from the Wentz Corp. 30,000 acres were owned
by USS by the early 1930s and later 4,000 acres. By
1920 its pop. was 9200. The local mine was the 1st in
the US to be fully electrified. (Caudill, Power, U. of
I11 Press, 1983, Pp. 85-102); At its peak, only % of
pop. were area folk; the rest were blacks and immis.
from Europe. Became a real melting pot. Self-containec
co. town. Billed as one of the best coal towns in the
region. (Filson Club Hist. Q.);



/

I¥YNCH (Harlan Co., Ky): "This 5th cl. city:with po ex—
tends 2% mi along Ky 160, in the narrow Looney Ck. val.
beginning at a pt. 23 (air) mi ene of H. Tt was founde
in 1917 to house the workers of the newly dev'd. coal
operations of the US Coal & Coke Co., a subsidiary of
US Steel, and was named for Thos. Lynch, the 1lst pres.
of the company. The po, est. as Lynch Mines on Jan. 19
1918 with Frank A. Kearns, pm, became simply Lynch in
1922. The town was inc. in 1963." (Book-P. 181); Its
/" 2000 pop. was 900; Had over 10,000 pop. in WW II; APO;



\/ LYNCH (Harlan Co., Ky): Had the world's largest tipple
when it was built in the early 1920s. Pop. peaked as
ca. 10,000. Now largely dependent on tourism as is
neighboring Benham. Mine reopened for tourists in the
summexr of 2003. (AP 11/3/2002); Ky's largest company-
owned town. Founded to supply coal for the steel ind.
in WW I. The first totally electrified coal mine in US
Model coal town "dismantled by US Steel in the 1960s."
(Highway Marker #1803); Acc. to the L&N's 1921 time-
table, the Lynch sta. was 3 mi e of Benham's sta. and
27 mi from Baxter on the L&N's Poor Fk. Branch;
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LYNCH (Harlan Co6:):i . po est: as.ILynch Mlnes,
1/19/1918, Frank A. Kearns; 2/28/1922, .

Margaret Bondurant. ch. to Lynch, 10/1/22,
ibide we.o(NAY; one. time 1% had a pop: oj

10,000. Built. and wholly owned by US Coal & -

'Goke Cos, & sub31d1ary of US Steel Corp.;

Hundreds of "homes rented. to" company employees
Laid out in.a ndrrow- valrey. 2% mi. -long. US
119=main hiway thru-town....Some 2000 Negroe<
lived at the w. end of town. Coal mine commu.
founded 1917 .by US:-.Goal & Coke Co.. (B.W..

Whitfield, Brookside,- Ky, in a letter-to- me,

5/11/1979) 5 e, Ldmpanst Comtonuing. n 2
vrovid |, <o WMO([910I ?oﬁ 64“ Oﬁ P %ﬂoo :
thlf/f'?h'. APy :



/1 IL¥YNCH (Harlan Co., Ky): Built 1917 by US Coal & Coke Cc
a subsidiary of US Steel. Largest coal camp in the
world on part of 19,000 acres. Fluctuating pop. but
blieved to have been 10,000 at its peak. 38 naticnali-
ties. Had world's largest coal tipple. Model coal camp
but tightly controlled by the company. Homes and bldgs.
were sold to their occupants in the late 1950s and the
town was inc. by them. 5th cl. city had a pop. of 1614
in 1980 and 1166 in 1990. (Jas. B. Goode in KY ENCY.

1 1992, P. 586); Thos. Lynch in 1917 was CEO of US Coal

» Coke Co. which became part of US Steel Corp. in late
1940s (check) . USC&C had acq. 40,000 acres from 1917+.
The Lynch op'n. sold by USS 1984 to BApogee Coal Co.
with div's. as Platt R. Mining Co. &/or Arch of Ky. Tow
inc. 1963. Homes/busi's. owned by resi's/prop's;



L. /

LYNCH (Harlan Co.): Named for Thos. Lynch, the
1st pres: of the US Coal & Coke Co, as well a:
several subsidiaries of the US Steel Corp.
Land at this site was purchased in 1917 with
Plans to open a mine on both sides of Looney
Creek. The Lynch Mine is said to have the
world's largest tipple. (Mabel Collins, "Town
Names Given by Railroads, Companies, Settlers
unid, & undated Harlan newsp. clipping); L&N
RR tracks reached this pt. in 1917 "+to serve
the huge development of the United States Coal
& Coke Co., a subsidiary of the US Steel Corp.
centered around Lynch.....That company owned
some 42,000 gcres of coal land at the head- .
waters of Looney Creek and in 1917 commenced



'an intensified development of” this pProp-
erty, digging mines, bulldlng tipples, in-
stalllng coal handling machinery and
erectlng a complete city %o .house the

- miners and care for their needs. This work

was started in Sept. 1917....The 1st car
of coal was moved from the mines on Nov. 1
1917.&5." (Kincaid A Herr, I&N RR, 1964,
P. 20
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LYNCH (Harlan Co.): Ele. of 1700 feet, thus
the highest town in Ky. Surrounded by sSteep
timbered ridges 2000 ft. higher; 6 miles
away 1s Big Black Mt,, 4150 ft. high, the
highest elevation in the state. The tipple
is in the center of town and was once con-
sidered the largest in the US; it processes
all cozal mined in the area by the US Steel
Corp. "Big Black Mt." identifies "“ithe range
. of massive hills that straddle the (state%
line through most of H. Co. (as well as) the
highest of the series of separate hilltops.
The town was founded by US Steel in 1917 at



a point on Looney Creek, 5 mile from its
mouth. Then "the area stretching into the §
hills along Looney Creek was impenetrable,
with only a few mt, cabins tucked up some
of the hollows,.," Ky 160 passes through,
Called "The Trail of the Lonesome Pine" for
John Fox's book. The remoteness of the
area required that it be self-contained;
everything needed by the work force had to
be furnished by the company. They built
homes, hosp., sch., hotel, chu's,, rec.
facitities, stores & shops, p.o. The pop.



1

peaked at 12,000. Became awmodel town.

The pop. was ¢. 5000 by 1958. Had independ-
ent sch.district. "The houses, built in 3
tiers up the hill rising on_the n, side of
Lonney Creek, are much. neater and better
groomed than in. most coal towns."....(Joe
Creason. "The Top of Ky." LCJM, 2/23/1958



/ MARTINS FCORK (Harlan Co., Ky): po est. 1/21/1922, Delor:
Middleton, 9/9/26, Josephus Scott, act. and a.ch. 11/17,
1926...Disc. 1935 (POR-NA); Acc. to Walter Middleton,
2/1919, the prop. name for this new po was Hurst and it
would be 100 yds s of the Cumb. R, 4 mi e of Brownies
Ck, 35 mi n of the rr, 3% mi nw of Hagan po (Va.), 5 mi
w of Smith po, 6 mi s of Pansy po. Not a vil. (SIR);



J MARTINS FORK OF THE CUMBERLAND RIVER (Harlan
Co., Kyl: Acc. to-trad., Jos. Martin, a
Virginian ' seeklng out lands for a syndicate
that incliided Patrick Henry, wandered into
(the future Harlan Co.) before Boone blazed
the Wilderness Trail. He-found wild clover
growing a long a stream and left behind two
names--Martin's Fork. and.Clover Fork (g.v.)"
(Harry M. Caudill, Thelrs Be The Power, 1683,
P. 86); The sect. of 0. To. in the Cramnks Ck & upper

\/Marl:lns Fk. val's. in early settlement times was func-
tionally tied to Jonesv. in Lee Co., Va. for 'trade.
More accessible than any Ky. p‘laces,,' like Mt. P. Ct.Hse




L2A-Ca Vo,

J MARTIN'S STATION and BARTIN(S) CREEK (Harlan
Co., Ky}t Jos. Martin had arr. at this site
before Boone to hunt, explore, and trade with
the Indians. The creek is across the mt, from
the sta., site. The mt. is Stone Mt. which some
call Cumberland Mt. (from Gurtis Burnham Led-
ford to John Egerton in GENERATIONS: AN AMER.
ekt b hess 0L K d8%0eePesditds oo
H, Co.;




/ MARY ALICE (Harlan Co., Ky.)
"The owner of the Mary Alice Coazl Co. (Dr.
H.X. Buttermore) named the town of Mary Alice
for wis two daughters, Ruth Alice and Mary
Jane." (From postmaster of Mary Alice, to
Robert K: Prancis of the Postmark Collectors
Club of Yalesvillie, Ct, and turned over to me,
3/29/1969.); Named for Mary Jean Buttermore &

/ Ruth Alice Buttermore. {Mabel Collins, "Town
Names Given by Railroads, Companies, Settlers"
unid. & undated Harlan news. clipping); Ppo
gs@;a ‘S;e‘tw. 7/1/1945 and 6/30/1947 (Postal
uide



/MARY ALICE (Harlan Co., Ky): "This coal town with po is
on Ky 72 and Catron Ck, a br. of Martins Fk. of the
Cumb. R., 3% (air) mi s of Harlan. It was named by the
owner of the Mary Alice Coal Co., Dr. H.K. Buttermore,
for his two daughters Mary Jane and Ruth Alice. The po
was est. in 1945." (Book-P. 189}; Acc. to Willard

/ Martin Buttermore, 5/18/1946, this po was 80 ft e of
the 18N (Mary Alice Sta.), 1 mi rw of Gulston po, 2% mi
s of Teetersville po, 6 mi sw of Grays Knob po. (SIR);
The po operated from 1947 to the present; po was on Ky
72 (1/1/1996); Acc. to the L&N's 1960 timetable, the

Mary Alice Sta. was on the Catrons Ck. Br. 4 mi above
Dressen & just below Gulston;



MARY ALICE (Harlan Co., Ky): Harry K. Buttermo:
was the pm at Elcomb 10/28/31+ before he est. this
po. (PCR);




v/ MARY HELEN (Harlan Co.): The Coalgood name
refers only to the p.o. The community is
locally called Néxry Helen. Merna is the name
of the train stop. Commu. preceded the est,
of the p.o. The Mary Helen Coal Corp. owned
the 1st mine there sometime hefore 1919. The
coal corp. is now called ‘Bow'¥al. Coal Re-
spurcesCorp. The Coalgeod name was derived
from good coal. Mary Helen was named for the
1st 2 women who lived there., Now: 3 prepara-
tion plants, lab for analyzing coal, loading
facilities, 10 operating mines in the vie.
(Eliz. L. Benge, letter to me,.5/17/1980);

(UJQ¢t#wU%LALLxHMNT,PD,




MARY HELEN (Harlan Co.): RR sta. there was
1st called Merrra and the po was known as Coal-
good. The Mary Helen name was given to 1t by
the company's stockholders for the company
owned a mine in W.Va. named Mary Helen. (Mabel
Collins, "Town Names Given by Railroads,
Companies, Settlers" unid, & undated Harlan
newsp. clipping); "S.J. Dickenson leased the

land from the Hall family and supervised the
ground breaking. There were only fi¥e or six
log cabins on t?e Ero erty. W.J. Simonton was
the engineer.," (Ibid.); po est. as Coalgood,
{0 11/1/1919, Silas J. Dickenson...(NAY; Founded

O €.1919 by the Mary Helen Coal Corp. (B.W.
Whitfield, letter to me, 5/11/1979);




v'MARY HELEN (Harlan Co.): The Mary Helen Coal

Co. opened its mine in 1919; Acc. to S.J. Dickin-
son, 6/25/1919, the prop. name for this new po was

Merna to serve Merna Sta., but it would be called Coal-
good and would ke 1 mi n of Martins Fk, 100 f£t-n of
Turtle Ck, 2 mi s of Chevrolet po, 4 mi n of Cawocd po,
300 £t s of C&V (L&N) RR// Acc. to B.S. Berger, 8/9/39,
powas 1l mi e of Ky 66, 300 yds n of Turtle Ck, 1 mi e
of the river, 100 ft s of Merna Sta. & the 1&N, 1 mi e
of Ienarue po, 5 mi n of Cawood po. (SIR): pce. to 1930

Census, this place, listed as Merma, had a pop. of 250
The Coalgood po is APO and was on Ky 990 in 1/1/1996;




CBNY)

v/ MARY HELEN (Harldn Co.): Coalgood name refers
only to the p.o.' It derives from good coal,
Local people cgll their community Mary Helen.
Merna name applies only to the rr sta, Mary
Helen Coal Corp. opened its mine here 1917..

(B.W. Whitfiteld, Jr., in lettmrt :
1980) ; Acc. to the L&N's 1921 tmeta(bfc)e,mt?rfe T

/ Sta. was on the Martins Fk. Br.,at the end of the line
8 Iﬂl above Harlan and 1 mi above Glidden Sta;
Bcc. to the 1&N's 1960 timetable, the Merna Sta. was o
the Merna Branch (line}, 2 mi above Glidden Sta.-




v MRRY HELEN (Harlan Co., Ky): A coal camp named for the
daughter of the coal co. owner. The co. was also calle
Mary Helen. DK the owner's name. (Wm. Sherman Oxendine,
prof. of hist., Union Coll., interv., 6/23/1978);



l/l\mRY HEIEN (Harlan Co., Ky): "This coal town with po ex-
tends up Turtle Ck. and its branches from a pt. about 1
mi. from the confl. of Turtle and Martins Tk of the Cumk
R., and 3% (air) mi se of Harlan. It was founded and
named around 1917 by the Mary Helen Coal Corp. The po
was est, on Nov. 1, 1919 by Silas J. Dickenson as Coal-
good, the transpositicn of the words aptly describing
the quality of the coal being mined there. While the px
still bears this name, the local La&N RR sta. has always
been Merna, for reasons unknown." (Book-P. 190);



WIS Ce [Pl

v MOLUS (Harlan): po est. 1/7/191%4, Grant
Saylor...{NA); Acc. to Grant Saylor, 6/13/1913,
the 1st name prop. for this new po was Molas and it
would be ca. 250 ft s of Cumb. R, 150 ft e of Saylors
Ck, 100 ft s of the W&B RR (sic} (Molus Sta.), 2 mi e
of the co. line, 24 mi s of Layman po, 25 mi e of
Burchfield po//Acc. to Perry L. Howard, 7/25/39, po wa
1 mi from Bell Co, 75 yds e of Molus Sta, 100 vyds e of
Curb. R, 2 mi n of Cardinal po, 2 mi s of Coldiron po/,
On 12/27/46, Albert Howard pet. for a move ca. 700 ft
w to a pt 690 ft se of Molus Sta. (SIR); pcc. to the

L&N's 1921 timetable, this sta. was on the Ky & Va. RR
2 mi below Layman, 5 mi below Wallins & 13 mi below
Baxter; Grant Saylor's father Andrew ran the local

store;



NOLANSBURG (Harlan Co.): Nolan Branch was lst
called Lewis Branch for its Ist resident, a
Mr. Lewis, He later sold -his place %o Bill
Nolan which was afterwards called Nolan Branc
for him. (Elsie Rowlett; carrier, Pack Horse
Library, Harlan Co., to WPA, late 1930s); Com
named for Chad Nolan who had bought the right

V/of-way for the rr co.” (Mabel Collins, “Town
Names Given by, Rallroads. Companies, Settlers
unid, & undated Harlan news. clipping); Splint
P.o. named for seam of coal. (Ibid.};

t.
v q»f‘é/.%‘??uohn . McKnlgqaflTb_...“ﬁ)A o
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NOLANSBURG (Harlan Co.): Wm, Nolen (sic), ne
1840 in Ky. Had a wife Jane, nee 1842 in Ky,
and a son, Chadwell, ne 1872 in Ky. (21880 Cen-
sus of Harlan Co.) Chadwell Nolen wed Louise

P Tyurner but dk when.. (Hist. Stat. of Harlan Co.
Ky. by Annie Walker Burns, n.d., ms in KE.S Lib,
Wm, Nolen, 27, farmer, ne.Ky.|Ris wife, ‘Jane,
27, had 35,children then: Sarah, 4; Mary, 2, &
Arminta 2%;mos,; Acc. to John G. McKnight, 3/27/99,

/ this prop. po would be on the n side of Poor Fk, 2 mi s
of Greeley Ck, 10% mi e of Baxter po, 7 3/4 mi w of
Creegh po, 12 mi rw of Leonard po. (SIR);

(e i iy e



NOLANSBURG (Harlan Co., Ky): Acc. to Jillson II, Pp.
1562-3, the earliest Nolan{en)s to acg. land in Harlan
Co. were Jas. & Sam'l. on ILaurel Br. (1853, 1856) &
John & Sam'l. on Bear Wallow Fk. & Bills Br. (1856, 57)
and John on Laurel (1865). Chadwell Nolan on Poor Fk
(1863, 1865) and on Laurel Fk (1866). The name was
variously sp. Nolan, Nolen, & even Nolin. B.F. Nclen
acg. land on Poor Fk (1883); Acc. to 1870 Census, Wm.
Nolen (28), son of Jos. & Mary (Marsee) Nolan (Wm's.
dates=1842-1919) marr. Jane, d. of Sam'l. & Sarah (Pac
Howard (1842-1919) in Dist. 8 (Big Rock po). They livex
nr. Chadwell Nolan (25), Wm's. bro. His dates (1845-
1923) . In 1863 he mar. Iouisa (1845-1918), d of Jos. &
Eliz. {Clay) Turner,whose lst husband was Stephen



Cawood, son of John & Nancy (Turner) Cawood. Their d.
Mary Jane (1867-1906) marr. Jas. Farmer Skidmore in
1887. Benj. Nolan (1865-1894) was a son of Chadwell &
Icuisa. In 1887 he mar. Cora Ellis Kelly. But there
was another Benj. Nolan, son of Jos. & Mary and thus
another bro. to Wm. & Chad. This Benj's. dates=1842-
1897. He mar. Minerva S. Howard, d. of Geo. B. & Fann
Howard. He lived in Dist. 5, Mt. Pleasant po. (sic).
Elhanan Nolen (1862-1941), son of Sam'l. Nolen (36} &
grandscn of Jos. & Mary Nolan & bro. to Benj. & Chad.
Sam'l. wife was Mary (32, d of Enoch & Susan (Blair)

Creech. Also lived in Ibid. Both sp. used for the
same family



v NOLANSBURG (Harlan Co., Ky) [cont.] Acc. to Martha E.
Bailey, 2/10/1912, po was 200 ft n of Cumb. R, 20 yds
s of L&N, 3 mi s of Jane po// On 8/29/1920, Mrs. Mary
Bays pet. for a move 600 yds e to a pt 200 yds n of
Poor Fk, 3/4 mi w of Kellioka po, 2 3/4 mi e of Dillon
po, eff. 9/6/20 for greater patron convenience, closer
to rr sta & pm's. resi. No agent// Acc. to Sarrah
Harris (sic), 10/27/36, the po's name was changed to
Splint on 11/1/1936 and was then 75 yds n of Poor Fk,
50 ft n of L&N (Nolansb. Sta.), 3 mi w of Totz po, 3
mi e of Laden po// Acc. to Julian C. Leady, 8/26/44,
po was moved a short distance because the po bldg.was



burned, and was now 3 mi sw of Totz po, 300 yds e of
rr (Splint Sta.)// On 10/21/49, Thelma H. Roberts pet.
for a move 1 mi due sw to serve the towns of Nolansh.
and Kellicka, on the w side of US 119, 0.2 mi due sw
of Splint (rx) Sta, 150 ft w of Poor Fk, 3 mi sw of
Totz po, 4 mi ne of Putney po, 10 mi s of Pine Mt. po.
Ky 38 from here to Shields po and US 119 from here to
Putney and Totz. (SIR); Acc. to the L&N's 1921 time-
tables, the Nolangb. sta. was on the Poor Fk. Br. 1l
mi above Baxter, 1 mi above Laden, 1 mi below Kellicka
and 11 mi below Poor Fork (town-sta.); Did the Nolansk
po become the Splint po in 19362; The Splint po was
disc. in 1957;




\/PANSY (Harlan Co., Ry): Acc. to Carlisle B. Pope, 10/
17/1892, this prop. po would be serving the Turner
locality, 4 mi s of Martins Fk, on the w side le of
Catrons Ck, 5 mi s of Harlan C.H. po, 7 mi n of Hagan
po (Va.), 6 mi s of Baxter po. Not a vill// Acc. to
Ibid, 1/1/97, it was 4 mi s of Martins Fk, 6 mi from
Va. line, 6 mi sw of Harlan po, 7 mi rw of Hagans po/,
Acc. to John McHenry Riddle, 8/4/26, the prop. name
for this re-est. po was.Pansy but it would be called
Gulston for the local rr sta. (tho' it would be serv-
ing the vil. of Pansy with a pop. of 75, 1700 ft n of
rr sta, 4 mi #'of river, 300 ft e of Catrons Ck, 80 fi
ne of L&N, 1% mi nw of Yancey po, 2 mi ne of Bardo po,

S



2% mi s of McCombs po (sic)// On 1/30/30, M.F. Engle
pet. for a move 156 ft n to a pt 6 mi s of river, 400
yvds e of Catrons Ck, 250 ft s of 1&N (Gulston Sta.),
Y mi w of Yancey po, 1% mi ne of Bardo po, 6 mi s of
Harlan po// Acc. to Ibid., 7/25/39, po was % mi e of
Gulston Sta & 75 £t n of tracks, 600 ft n of Slaters
Fk, 2 mi n of Bardo po, 3 mi s of Teetersville po, 5
mi w of Smith po, 6 mi e of Alva po. (SLR);po was sus-
v pended 3/23/2001 (PCR);



/ PANSY (Harlan County, Ky+) P.0. est. I11/28/
895 With Carlisle B. Pope, 1st pm. (L...)
Digc. 6ff 12/3%/1918 with mail to Elcomb.
(Aoc. %o the Nat'l. Ar‘chiveS); Ace. to L&N's 1921
L/timetalble, the Gulston Sta. was on the Catron's Ck. Br.
4 mi above Dressen and 2 mi below Bardo and # mi below’
Liggett. Here the line was joined by the Slaters Ck. .~
Br. and thus Gulston was 1 mi below Yancey; Acc. to the
I&N's 1960 timetable, the Gulston sta. was on the
Catrons Ck. Br. just above Mary Alice and 2 mi below
Bardos :



\/PATHFORK (Harlan Co., Ky): Acc. to P.L. Taylor, 2/25/
1916, this prop. po would be 4 mi s of the Cumb. R,
50 yds e of Pucketts Ck, ca. 1 mi from co. line, 4 mi
se of Burchfield po// On 3/1/1918, Park L. Taylor pet
for amove 5 mi se to a pt 5 mi s of the river, 80 ft
s of Pucketts Ck, 1% mi from co. line. Eff. 3/9/18.
Along the same road// On 3/22/28, Britt Howard pet.
for a move 350 yds w to serve a place called Ribble,
5 mi e of the river, 25 ft s of Pucketts Ck, 2% mi
from co. line, 2 mi e of Insull po, 3% mi w of Alva
po. Eff. now// On 11/3/38, Addie Wilson, act. pm pet.



for a move (but no data) to a pt 2 mi from Bell Co,
on the n side of Ky 72, 100 £t n of Pucketts Ck, 1%
mi e of Insull po, 4 mi se of Blackmont Sta, 3 mi w
of Alva po// Acc. to P.L. Taylor, 7/24/39, po was
150 ft n of tracks, 300 ft n of Pucketts Ck, 4% mi s
of the river, 3 mi w of Alva po, 2 mi e of Insull po
{SIR) ;



LAY
J/ PATHFORK (Harlan Co.): Do est. 5/24/1916,
Park L. Taylor...(NA); Path Fork (sic), a
short cut from Pucketts Creek to Brownies Cr,
and Martins Fork (sic). (B.W. Whitfield, Jr.

of Brookside, Ky. in a letter to me, 5/11/79)
v/ PO on Ky 72 (1/1996) ; C.B. Burchfield with the Black

Star Coal Co.. of this place. (ca. 1922); The Black Star
coal camp of the Speed & Sackett Co. of ILouisville.
(Acc. to Marion Howard, in Mabel Collins' article);



\/ PATHFORK, ALVA,and INSULL (Harlan Co., Ky): Pathf. is
ca. 1 mi e of the Bell Co. line. The vic. was settled
1785 by Ben Howard and families of Lee, Daniels,
Shackelfords, Craigs, and Lawsons, 5 mi up Puckett Ck
from the r. on land once an Indian camp. Britt lee
arr. 1852 and settled at the m. of Path Fk. and
timbered there. Iogs floated down Pucketts & the rive
to the band mills at Wasiota. Lee opened local store
& po till his death in 1898. In 1915 the Black Mt. RR
Co. built line from Hulen thiu here to Alva, 2 mi.
long. By then the Willis-Harlan Coal Co. was here and
the Black Star Coal Co. was at Alva and the South Coa
Co. was at Insull. Black Star was the main employer
of Puckett Ck. men ip=t923. The road up this ck. was




paved in 1923. The Bringardner Inmber Co. of Lexingtor
acqg. a tract of timber land from the Ky. & W.Va. Coal
& Land Co. and opened a band mill here. Built many
homes. ILeft vic. in 1944. In 1945 the land was leased
by Blue Diamond who ran the local mine till 1951.
(Mildred T. Jacobs, "The Commu. of Pathfork, Ky" in
1955, repro. in Harlan County Trad:.tlons *2/ 14/1998,
Pp 102"03) r




/PEEVEE (Harlan Co., Ky): Acc. to Chas. D. Cole, 4/5/15,
the name prop. for this new po was Coles and it would he
100 ft s of Looney Ck, 50 £t n of the L&N (Clutts Sta.),
5 mi from co. line, 1 mi w of Benham po, 2 mi e of Poor.
Fk. po// Acc. to Gomer Gilliam, 12/27/26, this po'wss %
serving the Clutts RR Sta, 1 mi s of Poor Fk, 100 ft's
of Looney Ck, 75-100 ft s of L8N, 2-2% mi from co. line,
llzmleofCumb PO, 13'mwofBenhampo, 4 mi ne of
Clover po// In 12/1927, ? pet. for a move 400 ft nw to &
pt. (undec.-too light). (SIR); Acc. to the L&N's 1921
timetable, the Clutts St. was on the Poor Fk. Br. 1 mi
above Poor Fk. Sta. and 1 mi belcow Benham;




/ PEEVEE (Harlan Co., Ky): po est. 11/11/1915, Chas. D.
Cole, 11/17/1917, John A. Surgener, 9/26/18, Chester C.
Matthis, 11/12/19, Otto Hemphill, 7/19/20, Thos. J.
Brennan, 1/25/23, Robert N. Wells, 11/26/26, Comer,.7/si
Gilliam, 7/26/27, Chas. E. Flanary, act. Disc.li—1933
(POR-NR) ; The Iooney Ck. Coal Co. began its op. 1914 at
Benham, Ky. R.W. & P.V. Cole {gen'l. mgr.) and Chas. D.
Cole. Coal was shipped from Clutts, later renamed Pee
Vee. (Stump, Vol. 5 (4), sum. 1991, P. 152);




/' PINE MOUNTATN (Harlan Co., Ky): Acc. to Jas. C.
Creech, 5/20/1913, this po, late Jane, was 3 mi n of
Poor Fk, % mi ne of Greasy Fk, 1% mi from the co.
line, 7 mi e of Incline po, 5 mi from Nolansb. po//
On 10/8/19, Ibid. pet. for a move 3/4 mi w to a pt 3
mi n of Poor Fk, 400 ft n of Greasy Ck, 3 mi from co.
line, 4% mi ne of Dillon po. Eff. 10/15/19// On 3/3/
1936, Bessie M. Watkins pet. for a move 0.7 mi ne to
a pt 100 ft e of Greasy Ck, 9 mi n of Cum. R, 3 mi
se of Big Laurel po, 8 mi e of Incline po, 9 mi n of
Laden po// On 10/27/36, Ibid. pet. for a move 1.2 mi
se to a pt 1 mi from ILetcher Co, 200 ft n of Isaacs




Ck, 8 mi n of river, 7.5 mi ne of Incline po, 8 mi n
of Laden po, 3.9 mi sw of Big Laurel po// On 7/16/40,
Ibid. pet. for a move 0.6 mi ne to a pt 8.45 mi n of
river, 200 ft w of Greasy Ck, 2.1 mi from co. line, 3
mi se of Big Laurel po, 7 3/4 mi e of Incline po, 3 m
w of Gilley po. Eff. 8/1/40// On 4/14/44, Alice E.
Boggs, act. pm, pet. for move 1500 ft w to a pt. 9.10
mi e of Poor Fk, 20 ft n of Greasy Ck, 3% mi e of Big
Laurel po, 7.3 mi h of Incline po, 9.9 mi nw of Putne
po. Eff. 4/22/44// On 2/26/45, Mrs. Bessie M. Watkins
act. pm, pet. for a move 2640 ft (3 mi) stoapt8m
n of river, 50 ft w of Greasy Ck, 5 mi from co. line,
3 mi se of Big Laurel po, 8 mi n of Putney po, B mi e
of Incline po. (SIR);



PINE MOUNTAIN SETTLEMENT SCHOOL (Harlan Co., Ky):
Est. 1913 by Ethel Delong and Katharine Pettit on invit
of local landowner Wm. Creech. Till 1949 was a boardinc
sch. Had 16 bed hosp. Serving rural area. Poultry and
dairy farm. Non-sectarian and affiliated with Berea Co]
Burton B. Rogers was dir (ca. 1960s). 24 bldgs. Nr. the
confl. of Greasy Ck, Laurel Fk, & Isaac Ck. Was Ky's.
largest settlement sch. To make ed. & med. assistance
available to rural mt. folk. 800 acres incl. forest &
farm. Now an env. ed. ctr. Fac's. used for commu. acti-
vities. Innovative ed. prog'ms. The settle. sch. was
est. with the "help of Katharine Pettit of Iex, a
member of the Ky. Fed. of Women's Clubs. Creech offer-
ed her 136 acres for sch.... (FCT, 11/30/77, 1I P. 5:2-




PINE MOUNTAIN SETTLEMENT SCHOOL (Harlan Co., Ky):

At the head of Greasy Ck. Est. 1913 by Katharine
Pettit and Ethel Delong Zange "on land donated by Wm.
Creech" as a boarding sch. & settlement sch. and later
became a center for env. ed. (Jas. S. Greene III in
Ky. ENCY. 1992, P. 724);




POO RE (later CWIBERLAND) (Harlan Co., Ky.)
"That wag the name of Cuberland before it was
changed because the buginessmen did not want i
gign oity regishers with thelr home address gs
Poor Fork. (They had 'little to do to come in
here and change our town.)  One saild that it
wag the powregt of the forks, bub my cousin
Osgcar (Yeary) said it was the richesi. I
gould not find why it was.called that. It was
named after the Poor Fork River but I do no%
kmow why the river wasg so -called." (Ina Hae
Enzor of Harlan Co., Xy. A student of Leonard
Roberts, Unlon College, 1957.)



/

POOR FORK—CUMBERIAND (Harlan Co., Ky): Acc. to 1879

Gaz, this vil. (as Poor Fork) had a pop. of 100. Jos.
Creech was pm & flour mill cwner. Bennett Bailey had a
carding mill. Gen'l. stores: J.P. Smith, J.T. Smith
Jonathan Creech (who also had a sawmill); Elijah Creech
& Jos. Creech had flour mills as did Isaac Huff. (The

Poor Fork and Pine Mountain po's. operated at the same

time. How were they distinguished? Check their sites...
Acc. to 1921 LaN timetables for the Poor Fk. Br., the
Poor Fk. Sta. was 22 rail mi from Baxter & 2 rail mi

below Benham;



/
POOR FORK—CUMBERIAND (Harlan Co., Ky): aka Pine Mt. was

18 mi ne of Harlan with a pop. of 60. Jonathan Cornett
was pm & blacksmith. Jonathan Creech ran a flour mill &
gen. store. Isaac Huff had a flour mill. J.P. Smith ran
a gen. store. Other businesses (1879-80 Gaz.); Acc. to
1876-7 Gaz, Poor Fork had a pop. of 100 and had been
est. 60 yrs before. Named for the stream. 22 mi from Mt
Pleasant. Exports: ginseng, feathers, wool, beeswax, &
hides. Benj. F. Nolen was pm & gen. storekeeper. Other
gen. stores: (1) Enoch Blair, (2) C.F.C. Nolen. Mr.
Grig (sic) had saw & carding mills; Cumberland's pop.

/ in 2000=2611 APO; In 1897, Wm. Cornett was pm & store-
keeper of Poor Fork. PO was in his store;




e
‘/POORFORKOF’I'HECUMBERI.ANDRIVER(HarlanCo., Ky} :
Heads at Proctor Gap in Ietcher Co. (Hodge, 1912, P. 1,




/

PUINEY (Harlan Co., Ky): pobst. 6/17/1925 with Ioree D.
Smith, 7/31/29, Cobern J. Hansford, act..... (APO) (PCR
Ma); Acc. to L.D. Smith, 2/21/1925, this prop. po
would be 200 £t ne of Poor Fk, 500 ft ne of Cliff Br,
ca. 100 ft se of the L&N (Putney Sta.), 1 mi sw of
Dillon po, 6 mi ne of Rosspoint po, 7 mi s of Pine Mt.
po// Acc. to undec., 7/25/39, po was 500 ft s of US 11¢
right next to the Putney (rr) Sta, 1000 ft n of Poor
Fk, ca. 9 mi ne of Harlan po, ca. 5 mi w of Splint po,
ca. 8 mi s of Pine Mt. po. (SIR); Named by a lumber co
/ operating there in the 1920s-30s. (Mabel Colling; ca.
1930, had a sawmill & lumber camp on Poor FX run by the
Inter-mt. Coal & Lumber Co. Processed thousands of
acres of timber on Pine Mt. and the hills n. of it.
(Elmon Middleton, Harlan Co., Ky. 1934, P. 44) ;




PUTNEY {Harlan Co., Ky): Intermountain Iumber Co. of
Putney ca. 1925 when Curtis Wilson was mill superintend
ant and Harry Frymore was storekeeper. Geo. Schiffer
was the mill's sawyer. (Bnna Banks York, 1112 Canter-—
bury Dr, Greencastle, Ind. 46135, in XY EXPL. Vol. 1l
(4), 9/1996, P. 7); APO; po on US 119 (1/1/1996); Acc.

J to the L&N's 1921 timetable, this sta. was on the Poor
Fk. Br. 7 mi above Baxter, 3 mi above Rosspoint, 1 mi
below Dillon, 4 mi below Nolansb;



/ REDBUD (Harlan Co., Ky): po est. 9/6/1929, Sallie M.
Stewart, 6/3/30, Mrs. Laura Smith, act. (RExExehxwEmx)
12/5/30, Wm. L. Stewart, act. and a.ch. on 12/19/30....
Disc. 1942. (PCR-MNA); Acc. to Sallie Mae Stewart, 5/10/
1929, this prop. po would serve the commi. of Griffiths
ville and the Darby Coal Mining Camp, 1% mi se of
Clover Fk, 100 ft s of Yocum Ck, 1% mi se of Evarts po,
1 7/8 mi nw of Kenvir po, 2% mi e of Draper po, 5 ft s
of Pike R4// Acc. to W.L. Stewart, 7/5/39, po was 250 £
e of Cumb. R, 1 mi”s of Evarts po & sta., 1 mi g'of N
Kenvir po. (SIR); Iocality was lst known as woods.
Named for the trees. (Mabel Collins); Here was the Red
Bud Sch.; Black Mt. El.Sch. here betw. Kenvir & Evarts.
(Gertie Eachus in KY EXPL. Vol. 15 (6), 11/2000, P. 7);




REDBUD (Harlan Co., Ky): Acc. te 1870 Census, Griffith
families lived in Dist. & (Big Rock po); Homeplace of
Jackson D. Asher and his father Dillon;



v’

RIDGEWAY (Harlan Co., Ky): "This coal town with epo and

sta. on the 18N RR's Clover Fk. Branch is on Clover Fk.
of the Cumb. R., 10% (air) ene of Harlan, and was named
for the Ridgeway Coal Co., which opened a mine there
around 1921. The po was est. on 10/6/1925 with James A
Evans, pm." (Book-P. 251); John Ridgeway was a Mt. P.
pm from 6/9/1820 to 1823 (POR); Acc. to the 1920 Cens
Jas. A. Evans (69) lived with son Daniel (42) and
Daniel's wife Lela (31) in Mag. Dist. 2 (Evarts). James
was a NC-born clerk in a boarding home. But no Ridgeway



Ly s LTS
“"RIDGEWAY (Harlan Co.): po est. 10/6/1925,
James A. Evans...(NA); Ridgeway Goaly, Co.
c. 1921. (B.W. Whitfield, Jr. Brookside, Ky.
in a letter to me, 5/11/1979); Acc. to James A.
Evans, 5/4/25, this prop. po was in the commissary of
the Harlan Coal & Coke Co. mining camp, 200 ft n of
Clover Fk, 3/4 mi w of High Splint po, 1 3/4 mi e of
Iejunior.po, 3 mi sw of Iouellen po. (Ridgeway Sta. on
the 1&N) . Part of the mining camp of Benneto Coal Co.
(sic) serving 1500-2000 pop. No agent at this pre-pay
sta. (SIR); Acc. to the L&N's 1921 timetable, this ste
/ was 16 mi above Baxter, 1 mi above Shields, 1 mi
below Seagrave and 3 mi below Lisbon (Louellen);



v/ ROSSPOINT (Harlan Co., Ky): Acc. to Benjamin W.
Sergent, 5/11/1901, this prop. po would be 30 yds n
of Poor Fk, 4 mi (ép)of Baxter po, 7 mi sw of Nolensb.
po, 5 mi ne of Harlan po. Not a vil. (map)// Acc. to
E.C.G. Howard, 2/9/12, po was 0.12 mi from Poor Fk, o
Early Br, 113 ft n of Wasioto & Black ME. RR, 6 mi
from co. line, 2 mi w of Kellig po, 3 mi ne of
Baxter po, 6% mi s of Incline po// On 11/25/20. B.W.
Sergent pet. for a move ¥ mi w to serve the Gatun (rr
Sta., 75 ft mw of Poor Fk, 2 mi sw of English Ck, 50
ft sw of L&N, 2% mi ne of Baxter po, 6 mi sw of Dillo
po, 7% mi sw of Incline po// On 10/20/30, Benj. W.



Sergent pet, for a move 500 yds se to a pt 200 yds se
of Poor Fk, 1 mi sw of English Ck, 3 mi ne of Baxter
po, 4% mi sw of Putney po, 4 mi se of Incline po, 500
yds se of L&N (Rosspoint Sta.) . Eff. asap, moving to
new highway and 500 ft from the rr. (SIR); Acc. to
the L&N's 1921 timetables, the Rosspoint Sta. on the
Poor Fk. Br. was 4 mi above Baxter, 1 mi above Gatun
and 3 mi below Putney;



v ROSSPOINT (Harlan Co.)s "The story goes that
during the Civil War there was a 'lookout' mar
by the name of Ross who ran up on the high
¢liff point to watech for rebels. When he saw
them coming he gave the alarm to the people
below. That's the story of Rosspoint." (Mabel
Collins, "Town Names Given by Railroads,
Companies, Settlers, unid. & undated Harlan
REWSD. clipping);_ po est. 5/31/1901, Benj. W,
Sergent...(NA); 872¢ 1933,  Gatun was named by the
rr (Mabel Collins);



SAL'S BRANCH (Harlan Co., Ky.) "In Harlan
GoumUy, near. Evarts, there is g hollow called
®al'a Branch: This name came from a woman
named Bally who once lived there, I oouId
not find out anytliing morsé gbout her." ) (41mg
B. BlcPfOfd of Whitley Co., Ky., one of/ Leonar
Robertg' folklore students, cl957.)

o

Mot listed as susch in Field.- But there isg a
Bally Williamg Branch of Saylor Cre k in &W
Harlan Co. (Top. map. E720).

Middladon, @)
=1



SALT TRACE BR. OF STRAIGHT CREEK (Harlan Co., Ky):
Residents were served by store & po of Gross (now
Bledsoe) . The pm was the store's cowner. The local Red
Ox _Sch. was moved to the head of the Ky. R's. Middle Fk
in ILeslie Co. The sch. was % mi from Straight Ck. The

¢ trace was early named for its being the rte. to a salt
works in Clay Co. Route for Virginians & Harlan Count-
ians alike. The store was nr the mouth of this branch.
An old mill was nr the head of this stream. (Col. Edwar
Ward, 311 S. Main St., Apt. 207, Harlan, Ky. in KY EXPL
Vol. 15 (5), 10/2000, Pp. 90-93);




SALT TRACE (Harlan Co., Ky): po est. 7/10/1876 with
John Forrester (sic), 8/21/76, John W. Forrester, Disc.
9/29/1888 {papers to Sandy Fork, Leslie Co.) (PCR-MB);
Acc. to John D. White, M.C., 7/8/1876, this prop. po
would be 1 mi n of Straight Ck, 16 mi e of Cumb. R,
8 mi n of Wallins Ck po. Mr. John Forrester (sic)
would be pm. (SIR); Acc. to 1883-4 Gaz, this was an
"unimportant p.o.; Acc. to 1879-80 Gaz, this po was

/]‘ recently est. in Letcher Co;



/ SALTS (Harlan Co., Ky): po est. 2/12/96, John B.
Forester, 6/3/97, Elijah (?) T. Howard, 8/18/98, John
B. Forester (rescinded 9/14/98) [EJH stayed on as pm],
1/4/04, John W. Forester, Disc. 9/30/1911 (mail to
White) ; Re-est. 11/11/1915, Lucy Wilson (rescinded 2/21
1916) (POR-MB); Acc. to John B. Forester, 6/2/1895,
the prop. name for this new po was Brock and it would
be 6 mi n of Curb. R, 1% mi n of Straight Ck, 4% mi ne
of Pass po, 7 mi s of Sandy Fk. po. Not a vil. (SIR);




/ SAMPSON (Harlan Co., Ky): po est. 5/1/1928, Emily Lang-
ford, 10/3/30, Mrs. Laura Langford, act, and a.ch. on
12/8/30.... Disc. 1950 (POR-NA); Acc. to Mrs. Emily
Langford, 12/27/1927, this prop. po would be 150 yds n
of Martins Fk, 3 mi e of Cranks Ck, 150 yds n of L&N
(rr & sta. not yet built), 1 mi from co. line, 3 mi e o
Martins Fk po, 3 mi sw of Smith po, 5 mi s of Yancey po
// Acc. to laura Langford, 7/31/1939, po was % air & 4
rd mi. from Lee Co. (Va.) line, 300 ft nw of rr, 100 yds
s of Martins Fk R, 2% mi sw of Smith po, 9 mi ne of
Alva po. (SIR); BAcc. to 1920 Census, J.E. Sampson (33)
wife Gertrude (30) lived on Main St. in Harlan. He was

a practicing lawyers;



SAMPSON (Harlan Co., Ky): Acc. to 1920 Census, Emily
Langford (9) lived with her parents Mashon (?) (34) &
Rosa (24) on Ky. Av. in Harlan. Father was a gen. deliv.
wagon driver. No Laura; Acc. to 1920 Census, Laura Lank-
ford (30) lived with her husband Milford (29) in the
Upper Martins Fk. Prec. nr Fmily Lankford (26) & her
husband Edwin (37) nr several Fees and other Lankfords.
/No Sampsons) ;  Could it have been named for Gov. Flem
Sampson? Flem D. Sampson, a lawyer, ne 1875 in Iondon,
Ky. Practiced law in Barbourv. Knox Co. judge 1906-10.
Judge of 34th Judicial Dist. of Ky. 1911-6. Judge with
Ky. Ct. of App, 7th Appel. Dist. 1916 and its chief jus

1/1/1923 & 1924. Gov. 1928-31. In 1936 his home was in
Barbourv;



/

SAYIOR (Harlan Co., Ky): po est. 11/22/1897, John M.
Saylor, 5/4/99, levi B. Saylor, declined; 6/30/1899, Wm.
P. Saylor, 9/24/08, lLevi B. Saylor, 2/11/1910, Lizzie
Daniel, 5/9/11, Mary C. Lee, Disc. 10/15/1912 (POR-NR);
Acc. to John M. Saylor, 10/30/97, this prop. po would b
75 mi e of Cum. R, 2 mi sw of Pucketts Ck, 10 mi se of
Calloway po// Acc. to Mrs, Mary Lee, no date but betw.
4/10 & 6/11, po was on Pucketts Ck, 6 mi se of river, 7
mi se of Calloway po, 6 mi ne of Cubbage po// Acc. to
Iizzie Daniel, 6/14/10, po was serving locality of Mirl
Daniels (sic), 3 mi w of Martins FK R, % mi s of Browni
(sic) Ck, 1 mi from Bell Co, 10 mi w of Hurst po, 7 mi
of Cubage po. (SIR);




/ SECOND BRANCH OF CUMBERLAND RIVER (Harlan Co):
Extends s for 3/4 mi. to the river 3 mi. above
Molus. No First Branch identified on any maps
It's actually the 3rd n. bank branch of the
Cumb. R. in Harlan Co. (F720sw), "This would
have to be at Baxter, about 4wo miles above
Molus, and a mile below Harlan. Here the Poo
Fork R. joins the Clover Fork R....." (B.W.
Whitfield, Jr., letter to me, 2/8/1987) (I
dk he knows what I'm referring to here....)
"The only thing I can find regarding Second
Branch is that it 1s the second branch east

2 and north of the Cumb. R. north and east of

+ Molus, Ky." (B.W. Whitfield,/Brookside. Ky.
letter to me, 7/20/1987) T (/2. 298 browme

odo e~ Malu g




(V)
SHIEIDS {Harlan Co.): L&N RR completeém'dbo ’
this pt. 10/6/1918. (Kincaid A. Herr, L&N RR
1964, P, 20%.); Po est. as Lejunior, 12/14/
1918, Kenes Bowling...(NA); Named for Tee
v Bowling, Jr. or Lee, Jr. (B.W. Whitfield, Jr
of Brookside, Ky. in a letter to me, 5/11/
v/ 1979); Named for Lee Bowling, Jr. whose
father developed the Howling Coal Co. at
Shields, Ky. ¢.1919. Gano was a shipping pt,
for a nearby coal mine. Commu., is called
o Lejunior. (Ibid., 6/28/80);By 1/1/96, the po

was on Ky 28; RR from Kildav to Shields (6.35.-mi)was
completed 10/1918;

'



/SHORT TOWN (Harlan Co., Ky): Acc. to John Wm. Short,
3/17/1942, this prop. po would be serving localities
of Cote or Dark Bottom and the town of Short Town, 1%
mi away. Not on a rr, 400 ft s of Clover Fk, 2 3/4 mi w
of Lejunior po, 2% mi e of Evarts po, 4 mi s of Nolanshb

(no road). (SIR); Jas. Short, ne 1804 in Wash. Co, Va
died in Harlan Co. (Anita Sizemore, PO Box 59, Keokee,
Va. 24265 in KY EXPL. Vol. 9 (7), 1/1995. She was then
doing a book on the Short family and said she would

answer all letters); The po operated from 1942 to 1950

-~



SHORT TOWN (Harlan Co., Ky): Acc. to 1920 Census, John
Short (28) & wife Bettie and their sons Jas. A. (6),
Wm. (3%), & Hampton (5 mos) lived nr a mining camp. He
was a miner. In Mag. Dist. 2 (Bvarts), Jas. Short (63)
and wife Eliz. (62), a fammer, lived in Ibid. next to
Allen Short (26) & wife Louise (32). Several Short
fam's. lived in Klondike Prec. 3: the oldest was
Charley Short, Sr. (73) & wife Thursey (75), a farmer,
nr him was Wright Short (55) & wife Harnah (35), a fan
er, Frank Short (53) & wife Rachel (51), a farmer.
Hampton Short (70) lived with his son-in-law Wiley
Holmes {g.v.) in Ibid. John Short (37) & wife Polly
(27) lived in Smith Prec. 21, on the Martins Fk. Rd;



7/ SMITH (Harlan Co.): po est. 6/2/1897, Noble
L. Smithe..(NA); An old commu. named for the
“Smith family. (B.W. Whitfield, Jr. of Brook-

- side, Ky. in a letter“to me,.5/11/1979);

Creed Smith, sonof Noble ran.the -local’ store
until he moved to Va. ca. 1890. (P. "58) Creed
Smith opened store & sawmill ca. 1885. Only a
sch. was-in vic.. before then. Noble Smith was
biz landowner.- HlS son,. Creed; was ne ca.. . -,
1845. (Pp.- 64-5) Until the est. of po at

Cranks, Smith, & Ledford, the area was depend
ent for postal serv1ces on ihe po- at the .stor
.at Cawoodi:(P. 72) The com., was "galled Smith
'because Creed Smlth owned the largestﬂportlon



Mg T2

of the val. and the surrounding slopes and
hollows, and because he had a store and gris
mill there; the omly other structure at the
confluénce of Cranks Creek and Martin's Fk.
was a one rm. 1og sehoolhouse. Smith em-
braced a network of creeks and branches and
hollows in a narrow vallev thirteen hundred
ft., above sea level." (P. 98) Creed was son
of Noble, who was son of David and grandson
of Henry. David Smith had come to Harlan Co.
as a youngster. (P. 98)." In 1976 acquired
the area by eminent domain for a flood cont.
dam & recreation lake. Later"indundated by



) -

O S eIy

the batkup waters of Martins Fk." (P.101)
The Wash Smith Cem. nr the botitom of Cranks
Ridge "in a clearing on a gently sloping
hillside facing upyhe val. fenced. Family
cem. for Ledfords, Smiths, Skidmores, Farm-
ers, incl. Geo. Washington "Wash" Smith, for
whom 1t was named. He was =gon of Noble &
Naney. Smith was at mouth of Cranks Creek.
Martins Fork Dam. (P. 226) (Curtis Burrmm
Ledford to John Egerton in his GENERATIONS,
U Press of Kv, 1983);




f SMITH (Harlan Co., Ky): Acc. to Noble Lincoln Smith,
3/20/97, this prop po would be on w bank of Martins Fk,
at m. of Cranks Ck, 4% mi s of Cawood po, 5% mi ne of
Hagan po. Not vil// Acc. to Ibid., 5/19/14, po was 200
yds w of Martins Fk, 230 yds sw of the m. of Cranks Ck,
1% mi from Iee Co, 6 mi sw of Cawood po, 8 mi ne of
Hagan po// Acc. to Emily Langford, 11/27/36, po was 2 ai
& 3 rd mi from Lee Co, 200 yds s of L&N (no sta.), 100
yds sw of Cranks Ck, 7 mi s of Cawood po, ca. 3 mi e of
Sampson po// Acc. to Ibid., 7/31/39, po was 100 yds w of
Cranks Ck, ¥ mi n of Martins Fk, ¥ mi n of L&N, 2 mi n
of Sampson po, 6 mi s of Cawood po// On 8/2/43, Creed
Fulton Smith pet. for a move 335 yds w to a pt (no data
on SIR entry), eff. 8/9/1943. (SIR):



/SMITH (Harlan Co., Ky): "This hamlet with po and a sta.
on thé Martins Fk. Branch of the L&N RR's Cuab. Val. Dix
is on Ky 987, just e of Martins Fk. of the Cumb. R and
7% (air) mi sse of H. The po, est. on 6/2/1897, with
Noble L. Smith, pm, was named for a local family."
(Book-P. 274); The po, on Ky 1138, was suspended by 1/
1996 (POR) ; Noble Smith,lo§ the surveyors of 190,000

acres in the 1840s. 86, 000 acres of th:Ls were acq. in
1886 by Edward Davis of Phila(krx=mk

Em&ks) (see Kentenia entry....): po was suspended lO/l/
1991 (POR);




SMITH IAKE (Harlan Co., Ky): On Cranks Ck. Named for
Herbert Smith. (Jackie Owen) ;



SUKEY RIDGE (Harlan Co., Ky): Site of °
Harlan Co's. new airport. (Acc. %o ICJ, 12/
16/1984%, P. B1:3-6) . :




'W/SUNSHINE (Harlan Co.)_z—- Martins Fork Coal Co,
was developed here in 1912. (B.W. Whitfield,
Jr', of Brookside, Ky. in a letter to me, 5/1]

/1979) Catrons Creek Coal- Co. c1914, Joins
the city of Harlan on the sw, (N.W. Whitfield
Jr. in a létter to me, 6/28/1980); Acc. to Benj
\/Franklln Lankford, 2/19/38,. this prop. po would be
serv:.ng the vil. of.Comet with pop. of 1500 ‘& Dressen
Sta, L'mi from Cum. R, .3/4' mi s of Martins Fk, 100 ft
w of L&N, 15m:1.seofHa:r:1anpo, 25mlsofBaxterpo
// Acc. to Ibid., 11/30/38, po was ¥ mi w of Martins
Fk, 1% mi s of Clover Fk, 1% mi éw of Harlan po, 2 mi
sofBaxterpo, 3min0fTeetersv. po, lnu.swof -TY
(map) (SIR) ’ - v -

P
v .



/TEETERSVILLE (Harlan Co., Ky) : Acc. to Mrs. Jemnie
Teeters, 3/14/1938, this prop. po would be serving the
commui's. of Black Bottom, Elcomb, and Little Creek,
with a pop. of 400, within % mi of the po, 4 mi s of th
river, 800 ft e of Catrons Ck, 800 ft e of I&N, 3 mi s
of Harlan po, 3% mi n of Gulston po, 5 mi w of Grays
Knob po// Acc. to Ibid., 8/7/39, po was on the Catrons
Ck. Rd, 1500 ft e of Catrons Ck, 2 mi s of Harlan Sta.
& po, 3 mi n of Gulston po.- (SIR); Named for the local
Teeters fam,who ran store. (Mabel Collins): PO in op'n.
from 1938 to 1955 (POR-NA);




V' IEN:SPOT (Harlan Co., Ky): (F216c) Probably
a coal towny on Ky. 1601, about 3 mi. up
Jones Creek from Clover Fk. at Verda, at the
mouth of Cawood Branch and 0.9 mi. from Ky.o
38 at Verda. Not identified on the Nolansb.
15 min. map (1919) -

4 "Ten Spot was the name of ten houses just s.
and e. of Verda. Harlan Wallins Coal Corp.
operated at Verda until 1958. We had a Five

V/SQot at Brookside. These five bungalow type
houses were copied from houses on Silk
Stocking Av. at Barrenfork Mine of Fordson
Coal Co. on Wallins Creek." (B.W. Whitfielg,
Jr., letter to me, 2/8/1987)



V%HREE”POINT {Harlan Co.)s Coal town with dpo
and a sta. at the end of the Lick Br. Spur of
the L&N's Cum, Val. Div, While it's possible
that it may have been named for 3 nearby mt.
peaks, it was more likeély named for the Three
Pt. Coal Corp. which ran the local mine. The
co's. name Rexiwe) refers to service, quality,
and (prepara ieny dependability, 3 virtues
claimed for its local operation. (B.W. Whit-

field, Jr., letter, 6/28/1980); In 4/1954 the

/ permanently shut down. Had been owned by Elmer D. Hall

Coal co. camp incl. Rex Hedrick's commissary, a sch,

chu., Hall Hi.Sch. (Ellen Iorentzson in Harlan Daily

Enterprise, 2/28/1964, P. 19);




. AR [ U

/THBEE POINT (Harlan Co.)t Three mts. have thei
peaks in close proximity here. (Hardy, thesis,
1949, .P, 25); "The mine at Three Point prided

/ itself in three qualities (sic), dependability,
service and quality." (Mabel Collins, "Town
Names Given by Railroads, Comapnies, Settliers"
unid. & undated Harlan newsp. clipping): po est

/'8/29/1927, Louis J. Hampton...(NA); The Three
Point Coal;Cos (B.W. Whitfield, Ur. in a letter
to me, 5/11/1979); Named forfthe Three Point
Codl Cogp. referring to serwvice, quality, and
preparation. (B.W. Whitfield, Jr. in a letter
to me, .6/28/80); DK if @ver'cal;ed Coalville.
(Ibid.); " e :




/ THREE POINT (Harlan Co., Ky): "This coal town with epo
lies nr. the head of Lick Br. of Martins Fk. of the Cum
R., 6 (air) mi sse of H. It may have been named either
for 3 nearby mt. peaks or for the 3 virtues——dependa-
bility, service, and quality--claimed for the local min
by its owner the Three Point Coal Corp. The commi, or
at least the sta. at the end of the Lick Br. Spur of
the LsN RR's Cumb. Val. Div., may have been called Coal
ville as early as 1921. The Three Point po was est. on
8/29/1927 with Iouis J. Hampton, pm." (Book—-P. 293);
Coalville Sta. was 5 rail mi above Glidden Sta. on the
L&N's Lick Br. Spur (1921);




4

THREE POINT (Harlan Co., Ky): Acc. to L.J. Hampton, 1927,
this prop. po would be 100 yds e of Martins Fk, 100 vyds
e of Lick Br, 20 ft w of L&N (Coalville Sta.), 5 mi from
Va. line, 75 mi from Cawcod po, 3% mi e of Smith po, 4 m
from Yancey po// On 1/28/30, Ibid. pet. for a move 100
ft (on 10/15/29) to a pt 100 yds e of Lick Br, 30 ft w o
rr, 4% mi from co. line, 25 mi sw of Cawood po, 4 mi e o:
Yancey po// Acc. to Rex Hedrich, 7/31/39, po was 2 mi nw
of Ky 66, 40 ft sw of L8N, 5 mi of Glidden Sta, 2 mi w o:
Martins Fk. R, 11 mi n of Cumb. R, 2 mi sw of Cawood po,
7 mi nw of Smith po, 11 mi s of Harlan po. (SIR);




' T0TZ (Harlan Co., Ky): Acc. to Edgar L. Bradley, 11/23/
1920, this prop. po would be serving a commu. called
Colton (sic) which was its rr sta. name (a pre-pay
freight sta. with no agent), 500 ft n of Poor Fk, 100 ft
s of LaN, 6 mi from co. line, 2 mi w of Dione po, 2 mi e
of Kellioka po, 6 mi n of Evarts po// Acc. to Paul H.
Coleman, 1/13/30, this place was no longer aka Colton, &
was 200 £t n of Poor Fk, 75 ft n of 1&N, 3 mi from co.
line, 2 mi w of Dione po, 3 mi e of Nolansb. po, 4 mi mw
of ILouellen po// Acc. to Jas. Bennett, 8/15/39, po was
70 £t s of L&N, 100 ft n of Poor Fk, 2 mi w of Dicne po,
2% mi e of Splint po. (SIR);



APy
/' TOTZ (Harlan Go.): lst called Calton. Local

mine then bought by L.A. Billips who later
sold it to Harry Todd Totz of W.Va. (Mabel
Collins, "Town Names Given by Railroads,
Companies, Settlers " “unid., & undated Harlan
news: clipping); po est. as Totz, 4/18/1921,
Edgar L. Bradley...(NA}; Named for Harry Totz
of W.Va, who developed # local mine ¢l922. -
the Harlan Cumberland Coal Co. there

(B.W, Whitfield, Jr., in a letter to me, 6/28/

/1980} 5 on Ry 522 (1/1/1996) ; Acc. to LeN's 1921 timet.
Colton Sta. was on the Poor Fk. Br., 2 mi above Kelliok
and 2 mi below. Dlone, 14 mi above Baxter & 8 mi below
Poor Fk;



T0TZ (Harlan Co.): Named for brothers who arr.
America ¢.1900, They were horse peddlers.

"Progpered and invested in land and mines." Ir
c. 1922, bfought land and mines here. (Mary S,
Davis, pm, in letter to Delphine Haley, 7/;/7;:



/'I‘OI‘Z (Harlan Co., Ky): "This coal town with po & sta. or
the Pocoxr Fk. Br. of the L&N RR's Cumb. Val. Div. is on
Ky 119 and the Poor Fk. of the Cumb. R., 12 (air} mi ne
of Harlan. It was named for Harry Totz of W.Va. who hac
acquired the local mine by 1921. The Totz po was est. o1
April 18 of that yr. with Edgar L. Bradley, pm. The
station, early called Colton, is now known as Pine Mt.
Station for its location at the foot of the Pine Mt.
Ridge." (Bock-Pp. 296-7); This rail sta. ch. name fxor
Totz amd Pine Mt. betw. 1947-1960 (L&N);

“Te




v/TIREMONT (Harlan Co.): Before the rr came
through, this was called Pine Flat. (Mabel
Collins, "Town Names Given by Railroads,
Companies, Settlers" unid. & undated Harlan
newsp. ¢lipping); Acc. to Hazel B. Wilson, 6/5/45,
this prop. po would be ca. 400 ft n of river, 1000 ft
w of Watts Ck, 600 £t n of L&N (Tremont Sta.), 25 mi w
of Dayhoit po, 3 mi e of Wallins Ck po. (SIR);

W/ Acc. to the LsN's 1921 timetable, the Tremont Sta. was
on the Ky & Va. RR, 3 mi above Wallins and just below
Wilhoit Sta, 4 mi below Loyall and 1 mi below Baxter;

\/ The Tremont po operated betw. 1945 and 1976;




/' TWAY (Harlan Co., Ky): R.C. Tway, pres. of the Tway Coa’
Co. His office in 1936 was the Home Life Bldg. in ILouis-
ville. Resi: Plainview Famms, Jeff. Co., Ky; The R.C.
Tway Coal Co., formerly the Pinev. Coal Mining Co. On
the e side of Martins Fk, 3 mi above (se of) Harlan.
(Peck, 1915, P. 13); R.C. Tway's coal co. bought cut
the mines of the Pineville Coal Co. of Harlan, Ky. The
owner of the latter was R.W. Creech, pres. & g.m. {1913]
W.R. Ballon was mine foreman. It was sold in 1914 to
Tway. R.C. was from Louisv. (W.C. Stump in Harlan Mt.
Roots, Vol. 5 (4), sum. 1991, Pp. 135-8); The R.C. Tway
Coal Co. began op. 1914. Main office was in H., Ky. R.C
was pres. & g.m. On Martin Fk, 1 mi above H., Ky. The
mine was formerly operated by the Pineville Coal Co.
(Ibid. in Ibid., Vol. 6 (3), Spr. 1992, P. 100);



TWAY (Harlan Co., Ky): R.C., was co~founder of the H.Co
v Coal Op's. Ass'n. Org. 9/12/1916. He was pres. 1917-26
R.C. Tway Ccal Co. of Harlan, Ky. T.N. Gibson, Super-
intendent. (Acc. to Annual Rept. of State Dept. of
Mines of Ky., Lexington, 1921, P. 38);



\/'IWAY (Harlan Co., Ky): Acc. to Mrs. Hazel C. Smith,
3/24/1949, the prop. name for this new po was Hallwood
and it would serve the 0Old R.C. Tway Coal Co. and the
locality of Tway, on the sw side of Ky 66, 380 yds ne
of the Cum. R, 1% mi se of Harlan Sta, 2 mi se of
Harlan po, 2 mi mw of Grays- Knob po. The po was est. by
Mrs. W.F. Hall, but due to "her age and failing health
she turned the papers over" to Mrs. Hazel C. Miller.
(SIR); WNamed for a local mine owned by R.C. Tway of
Iouisville, Ky. (Mabel Collins); Was/is this place at
the mouth of Dave Smith Br? (Condon, P. 48); R.C. Tway
co-est. the Harlan Co. Coal Operators Ass'n. in 1916.
(Henry C. Mayer in KY ENCY. 1992, P. 211); po in op'n.
from 1949-1957 (PCR); R.C. Tway Coal Co. served by the
Harlan po (1924};



/IWILA (Harlan Co., Ky): Acc. to C.C. Matthis, 1/3/17,
this prop. po would be called Low for the rr sta, 5 mi s
of the river, 100 £t w of Wallins Ck, 50 ft w of 1&N, 5
mi sw of White Star po// On 12/13/30, Mrs. Dora Hilton
pet. for a move 1500 ft n to a pt 5 mi s of the river,
50 £t w of Wallins Ck, 5 mi se of Wallins Ck po, 100 ft
e of L8N. PO to be in the new commissary bldg. (map)//
Acc. to Mossie L. Winters, 7/26/39, po was % mi s of Ry
219, ca. 40 ft w of Wallins Ck, ca. 5 mi se of Wallins
Ck. Sta. (L&N), 3 mi s of Lisle po on Ky 219, 10 mi se
of Coldiron po. (SLR);



VTUILA (Harlan Cownty, Ky.) D.o. est. 4/6/1917
with Chester C. Mathig, lat pw.m. Disc. 2/15/
1919 with mall to Whitestar. Re-est. 7/12/191!
with mxxk John C. Starbuck, p.n. (fcc. to the
Ngtional Archives); po est. 4/6/1917,Chester C.
Matthis (sic), Disc. 2/15/19 (mail to White Star) (orde:
rescinded), 7/12/19, John E. Starbuck, 3/11/24, Grover
H. Creech, 2/19/26, John Trail, act. a.ch. 8/14/26,
Dora Helton was act. 4/3/28 and ass. g@. 12/27/28...Disc
1957 (POR-NA); Acc. to 1930 Census, Twila (Low Sta.)
had a pop. of 516 (WPA); Acc. to the L&N's 1921 time-
table, Low :Sta. was on the Bammer Fk. Branch just above

Tisdale, 1 mi above Lisle, 2 mi above Kentenia. At the
end of -the line;



\/VERDA (Harlan Co., Ky): Acc. to no sign, no date, the
prop. name for this new po was T ville (?)
[crossed out], and it would be 300 yds w of Clover
Tk, ¥ mi w of Jones Ck, 20 ft e of L&N (Verda Sta.),
5mi s of Kildav po, 15 mi n of Ages po, 6 mi sw of
Disney po (sic)// On 8/16/23, Wm. L. Stewart pet. fos
a move 300 ft w to a pt 600 £t s of Clover ¥k, 800 £1
s of Jones Ck, 100 ft s of L&N (Verda Sta.), 3/4 mi v
of Kildav po, 1% mi e of Ages po, 5 mi ne of Cawood
po// On 3/19/25, Fred lester pet. for a move 300 ft
ne to a pt 500 yds nw of Clover Fk, 1000 yds rw of
Jones Ck, 100 ft sw of L&N (Verda Sta.), % mi from
Kildav po, 3% mi rnw of Renvir po// On 1/25/35, Wm. H.



Basham pet. for a move 650 ft s to a pt 300 ft n of
Clover Fk, 400 ft ne of Jones Ck, 650 ft s of I&N, 4
mi. from co. line, 3/4 mi w of Kildav po, 1 mi e of
Ages po// Acc. to Raymond H. Cornett, 7/24/39, po
was 3 mi w of Cub. R, 6 mi n of Harlan Sta. (SIR);
Acc. to 1910 Census, Virda Middleton (11) lived with
her grandparents Ben (82) & Sally (72) on Poor Fk. R
in Mt. P. Prec. #1A. (Who was her father?); Green
Skidmore ne 2/1907 in H. Co. marr. in 1931 to Verdie
Middleton and lived at Cranks by 1951 (Jackie Owen.
"Barly Settlers on the Poor Fk of the Cumb. R."
Salisbury, NC, 1990, Pp. 54-5);



/ VERDA (Harlan Cownty, XKy.) ©v.o. est. 4/24/
1917 with Chad Middleton, lst pm. Mrs. fmgnda
Turner wag DM Fron 4/7/1931 {Acc. %o the
ational Archives) Coal camp named for Verda
/Middleton who once lived at the mouth of Jones
Creek, acc. to early settlers. (Mabel Collins,
"Town Names Given by Railroads, Companies,

Settlers" unid. & undated Harlan newsp. clip.);
Verda=up Ky. 38 from Brookside. Many of the

, Eastover miners livefl)in this vic.; po disc. 1964
and was a R.B. from 18647to 1973 (POR—-NA) 1930 pop.=
300; Acc. to 1921 L&N timetable, this sta. on Clover Fk

Br, was 2 mi above Brooks & Ages, 2 mi above Baxter, &
1 mi below Kildav;



v'VERDA (Harlan Co., Ry): "This coal town and rr sta. are
on Clover Fk. of the Cumb. R., at the mouth of Jones
Ck, 4% (air) mi e of Harlan. The town and its now epo,
est. on 4/24/1917, with Chad Middleton, pm, are said tc
have been named for Verda Middleton, pion. settler."
(Book-P. 304); Acc. to 1910 Census, Chad E. Middleton
(23) & wife Lavina (20) & daughter Margaret (2) in the
Yocums Ck Prec 2, Mag. Dist. 2 nr other Middletons, but
no Verda. Another Chad Middleton (45) & wife Polly (43)
on Clover Fk Rd in Ibid. nr other M's. But no Verda.
Another Chad Middleton (28) & wife Mary Lee (22) but nc
Verda;



/ WALLINS CREFK (Harlan Co., Ky): "This 6th cl. city witl
L&N RR sta. and po is on the Cumb. R. at the mouth of
Wallins Ck, 4% (air) mi w of Harlan. The ck. was early
named for a pion. Va. surveyor who is said to have beer
killed by Indians in that vic. The Wallins Creek po
was est. on 5/22/1866 with John C. Howard, Jr., pm."
(Book-P. 308); BAcc. to 1883-4 Gaz, this was a small po
Acc. to 1879-80, a small po; Acc. to 1895-6 Gaz, it wa
10 mi sw of Harlan. Jos. Blanton was pm. Gen. stores:

(1) Jesse Blanton, (2) H.B. Howard, (3) J.J. Noe &

/ Blanton, (5) S.W. Saylor; City had a 2000 pop. of 257;
The Wallins Ck. Collieries Co's. mines here the 1lst in
co. open for shipment, 8/1911. On Terrys Fk. nr W.Ck.
(Elmon Middleton, Harlan Co., Ky, 1934, P. 48);




fy

o/ WALLINS (Harlan Co.): Mry Wallins (sic) was
a member of the 1lst known surveying party
into the county. He. He and another man were
killed by Indians. The ridge on which his
party had eamped, the c¢reek nearby, and the
(later) town of Wallins were named for him.
(Mabel Green Condon, A HIST. OF HARLAN CO.
Nashvilles Parthenon Press, 1962, P. 49);

v PO of Wallins Creek est. 5/22/1866, John C.
Howard, Jr...Disc. 9/26/1896 (mail to Harlan)
Re-est. 5/8/1897, Silas W. Saylor...(NA);

v The po was named for the creek. lst coal mine
in the co. was developed here 1911, on Terry:
Fk. of Wallins. (B,.W. Whitfield, letter to m:
5/11/1979); .




WALLINS (Harlan Co., Ky.) The com. and rr
sta. was named for nearby Wallins<Creek,
The creek was named for Gen'l, Wallin, a Va.
1 surveyor "who with 12 men crossed the mts.
into Ky. from his home state back in pre-
Rev., War days....Gen'l, Wallin's party was
attacked by a tribe of Indizans and in the
ensuing melee only Gen'l, Wallin and a man
named Terry escaped." {(RR South, "Our Station
Names" I&N MAG., 10/49, P. 15)j/Named for a
J Capt. Wallins who was killed by the Indians...
(Mabel Collins, "Town Nameg Given by Railroads
Companies, Settlers" unid, & undated Harlan

newsp. clipping); ?



Afo
WALLINS CREEK (Harlan Co., Ky): Acc. to Silas Woot-
son Saylor, 3/22/1897, the po had been disc. 10/31/
1896 and was being re-est. to serve a vil. of 100
pop, on the n side of the Cum. R, opp. the mouth of
Wallins Ck, 5 mi e of Layman po, 9 mi w of Baxter po,
10 mi w of Harlan po. {map)// Acc. to Sherman
Blanton, 4/24/14, po was 100 yds e of river, 100 ft
s of Wallins Ck, 100 ft e of W&BM RR (Wallins Sta),
3 mi n of Layman po, 4 mi s of Wilhoit po// BAcc. to
Marion S. Howard, 5/30/14, the po of Wallins Creek
was serving the commi. of Wallins, 700 £t n of the
river, 700 ft e of Wallins Ck, 110 ft n of L&N, 2%
mi e of Layman po, 5 mi w of Wilhoit po, 6 mi s of




Salts po// Acc. to Myrtle B. Milam, 8/3/1939, po was
1l air & 7 rd mi from Bell Co, 3/4 mi e of US 119, %
mi e of Cum. R, 300 £t ne of Wallins Ck, 1090 ft e
of Wallins Sta, 2% mi n of Lisle po, 4 mi s of Day-
hoit po, 2 mi e of Coldiron po, just s of Terry Fk.
of Wallins, on the Depot St. or R.R. Ave, opp. the
mw end of Wallins St. (SIR); Acc. to 1921 L&N time-
table, Wallins was a sta. on the Ky. & Va. RR, 2 mi
from Ameron and 3 mi from Tremont & Wilhoit; The
Wallins Ck. Coal Co. began op. 1911 and had its main
offices here. Owners: John & Dover Williams, Phil &

Louis Francis. (Stump in Harlan Mt. Roots, Vol. 5 (4
Sum. 1991, P. 144);




\/WILHOIT (Harlan Co., Ky): Acc. to Milton Hensley,
11/27/1896, this prop. po, as Day, would be 60 yds n
of the Cumb. R, 6/7 mi e of Watts Ck, 6 mi nw of
Harlan po, 5 mi nw of Baxter po. Not a vil// In 2/190°
Wm. E. Cornett pet. for a move ¥ mi e to a pt 200 yds
n of the Cumb. R, 300 yds e of Fourmile Ck, % mi w of
a vil. with a pop. of 75, 3 mi w of Baxter po, 6 mi w
of Rosspt. po// In 8/07, Bessie R. Blanton pet. for a
move 3 mi wto a pt 3 mi e of Wallins Ck po, 5 mi sw
of Bledsce po, 200 yds n of river, 300 yds w of Watts
Ck. Not a vill// (Ibid's. map of 11/18/07 on file)//
Acc. to Camille Noe, 12/20/12, po will move 3/4 mi s



to serve the vil. of Wilhoit, 3/4 mi s of the river,
100 ft e of Ewings Ck, 3/4 mi s of Wasioto & Black Mt.
RR, 4 mi w of Baxter po, 5 mi e of Wallins Ck. po//
Acc. to Ray B. Moss, 1/16/1916, this po, late Wilhoit
and formerly Day was now White Star and 1 mi s of the
river, on the n side of Ewings Ck// Acc. to Walter
Shriff, 4/17/26, it was 7/8 mi s of the river, 80 ftr
of BEwings Ck, 7/8 mi s of Dayhoit po, 7/8 mi s of
Wilhoit Sta (on the rr) (SIR);



v/ WIIHOIT (Harlan Co.): Named for Roy Wilhoi
who founded the Wilhoit Coal.Co. Later Whit
Star Coal Co. on Ewings Creek, the 2hd coal
mine est. in the county, 1911. (B.W. Whit-~
field, Brockside, Ky. in a letter to me,
5/11/1979); Acc. to the LeN's 1921 timetable, the

v Wilhoit Sta. was on the Ky & Va. RR, 3 mi above
Wallins, 4 mi below Ioyall at the jct. with the
Wilhoit Br. 2 mi below the White Star Sta.; BAcc. tc
1870 & 1880 Census, there were several Day families
in the co. but no Wilhoits; Several Day families in
the 1900 Census. Milton HensEy (12/47) & wife Nancy

(9/55) did not live nr any Days; No Wilhoits in 1900
Census; )




WILHOIT (Harlan Co., Ky): Acc. to 1920 Census, Joe
Wilhoit and wife Gracie (?) (27) lived in Sunshine Prex
#24. He was a Tenn-born miner; Coal co's. served by the

v White Star po (1924) : White Star Coal Company's No.1,2,
3, and 5 mines and the Riverside Coal Mining Co.;

The White Star Coal Co. est. the 2nd mines in H. Co. in
1911 on Ewings Ck. (Middleton, 1934, P. 48); The Wil-
/ hoit Coal Co. on Bwing Ck, 5 mi below H. Roy Wilhoit wa
its 1st pres. J.M. Moss was veep and D.B. Cornett was
sec. (1911) and later was g.m. This co. was sold in 191
and became Moss & Sons Coal Co. with W.L. Moss as pres.
Its new ship. pt. was renamed Kaydee, Ky. Mule mine was

opened on E. Ck. by Roy Wilhoit in 1911. (W.C. Stump,
P.0O. Box 444, Ioyall, Ky. 40854, "Wilhoit, Ky: A For-
gotten Legacy" Harland Mt. Roots, Vol. 5 (4), sum. 1991
Pp. 130-1):




/ WILHOIT (Harlan Co., Ky): The Wilhoit Coal Co. was late:
the White Star Coal Co; The Wilhoit Coal Co. had a plan
1 mi up Ewing Ck. Began shipping coal in the winter of
1911. By 1915 it had beccme Moss & Son Coal Co. (W.R.
Peck, Paper Presented to the Annual Mtg. of the Ky.
Mining Inst., Pineville, Ky. 5/14/1915, P. 11);



v WILHOIT (Harlan Co.): A Mr. Moss from Louisv.
‘helped. finance a mine' here and suggested this
name. (Mabel Collins,."Town Names Given by

Railroads, Companies, Settlers" unid. & undat
_ é},Harlan newsp. clipping); Dpo est. as Day,
/ 8/7/1897, Milton Hensley...n.ch."to Wilhoit
2/20/1913, Fred D. Keithly; 1/16/1914, Ray B.
Moss; n.ch. (sic) to. White Star, 12/13/15,
ibid. ...Disc. eff. 4/15/1925 (mail to Dayhoi-
... Resest, 7/26/26, Walter Shuff; Disc. 4/15,

1330 (mail to Dayhoit); Dayhoit po wa t.
/22/1921, Harry C. Valentine..f?NA) (&PO ]



/ YANCEY (Harlan Co., Ky): A coal town, lst called
Slaters Fork. 2Zmong the area's early settlers were the
Fees. David Fee, their progenitor, was in there after
the W. of 1812. Coal op'ns. are gone. Sch., chu's, &
homes are gone. Only the Fee Fam. Cem. remains, on the
hill nr what was once called Fighting Gap, in the mt.
betw. Yancey & Smith. In the Rose Hill Quad (7% min.
top.) But Yancey itself is in the Harlan Quad. (Kenton
Fee, 117 Fee Dr, Cawcod, Ky. 40815, 606-573-5586, in K
EXPL. Vol. 14 (10), 4/2000, Pp. 6-7); Acc. to the L&N':

v 1921 timetable, Yancey Sta. was on the Slaters Ck. Br,
1 mi above Gulston;Slaters Fork was corrupted from
Slaughters Fk. Nr. the head of Catrons Ck.\\The Slaught-
ers were early residents of Culpeper Co, Va. {Condon's
1962 co. hist., P. 32); )




/ YANCEY (Harlan Co., Ky): Acc. to E.O. Guthrie, 4/13/23,
this prop. po would be serving the vil. of Pansy, 7/8 m
n of the prop. po site, with a pop. of 50, 2 mi n of
Martins Fk, 100 ft e of Slaters Fk. of Catron's Ck, 20
ft w of L&N (Yancey Sta.), 5 mi from co. line, 3 mi e of
Liggett po, 4 mi s of McCombs po (sic), 9 mi w of Grays
Knob po. (no rr agent at Yancey Sta.)// Bcc. to Clyde
Guthrie, 7/24/39, po was 50 ft e of Slaters Fk (Br.),
1mi s of Catrons Ck, 40 ft w of Yancey Sta, 1 mi s of

Gulston po, 2% mi e of Bardo po, 12 mi w of Cawood po.
(SIR) ;



LA Rl B S -
/YANCEY (Harlan Co.): Yancey Gross,-a civfl
engineer, came to Catron's Creek. The local
mine was named for him. (Mabel Collins, "Town
Names Given by Rallroads, Companies, Settlers"
unid. & undated Harlan newsp. clipping); po est
1/12/1924, Elbert O. Guthrie...(NA); Named for .
‘race horse by E. Guthrie who developed the mine
here, 1919-20. (B.W. Whitfield, Jr. of Brook-
side, Ky. in a letter to me, 5/11/1979);



-

YANCEY (Harlan Co., Ky): "This coal town with epo on
Slaters Fk. of Catron Ck, 5 (air) mi s of Harlan, was
built up around the mine est. in 1919-20 by Elbert O.
Guthrie and named by him either for a race horse or for
Yancey Gross, a civil engineer. Guthre also est. the
local po on Jan. 12, 1924." (Book-P. 326);



/' Y0CUM CREEK (Harlan Co.)s "...Daniel Boone
was accompanied by a man named Yocum, a
settler near theltown of Evarts, known as
Yocum's Creek. [(sic) These two men were
captured by the Indians....It being the custo
for Indians to scalp all white people, they
left off” this custom in order to make a sport
ing affair with this man who had herétofore
outsmarted them (meaning Boone). It was
ordered that he must run the gauntlet....Now
Daniel Boorie's cunning saved him again and he
.got through the gauntlet without getting
seriously injured. So this man, Yocum, was

ordered to do likewise. Yocum felt it would




be. impossible for him and he declined
momentarily. When the Indians insisted Yocum
hopped upon a nearby stump and waving his
arms high above his head he crowed like a

. rooster.- This delighted the Indians, and xk
they laughed and made merry, and called on
him again.to rooster, which he did, and the
Indians turned both prisconers loose to go
their way. - From this event this creek $ill
this day is called Yocum's Creek." (Anna Mae
Chivers, carrier, Pack Horse Lib.v...)/Sub-
stantially the same  story is told by Henry
Harvey Fuson in a ms. hist. of H. Co. 1942,
now is Spec. Coll., of the UK Lib. but in his
acct. Boone & Yocum escape from the Indians.



YOCUMS CREEK (Harlan Co., Ky): Joins Clover Fk. 8 mi
above Harlan Town. (Rev. L.E. Tupper, ca. 1896, his
journ. of a trip thru H. Co. in KY EXPL. Vol. 17 (5),
10/2002, Pp. 15-7); This stream is 8% mi up Clover Fk.
Jos. Turner's land, formerly owned by Silas Woodson
Kelly. (Hodge, Pp. 45-6 who sp. it Yokum) ;




Ruby Castlewood Smith, PIONEERS AND BUILDERS
OF HARIAN CO. (Ky), pub. by the Genealogical
Soc. of Harlan, (PO Box 1498, Harlan, Ky.,
40831), 1985, ‘ ]
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1840. (Anonymous). One Mans' Cravin'. 14 x 20 cm.
49,(2) pp. portraits. illustrations. map. printed
wrappers.The Pine Mountain Settlement Scheool, Pine
Mountain, Harlan County, Ky.: (1945) KYC3;TLM
Biographical and genealogical data on William Creech,
Sr., Sally Dixon Crgeech, and the Creech family,

with references to the Pine Mountain Settlement
School and life in the Kentucky mountains.




Mr. Robert L. Brown, Harlan Co. Public
Library, 3rd and Central, Harlan, Ky. 40831



o Harlad Comm

- Mr. BFeed Lewlis
ouner of Creck's Drug Store
Harlan, Ky..40831.

MY . Vernbn Cole
Exec. Officer in the Bank of Curberlagnd
Cunberland, Ky. 40823 :

Bob Frazier, who hag an insurance agency in
Gunbherland. {check--doeg he 1live in Ciumber-
1znd? He's a2lso anm officer of the Bank o7
Cunberland)



(each of the above are suggested by R.B.
Campbell of Hyden, 1y.)





